
Post Office Box 3544 
Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 
https://moundbasingsa.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN  
that the Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s (“Agency”)  

Board of Directors (“Directors”) 
will hold a BOARD MEETING at 1:30 P.M. on Thursday, October 18, 2018 

at the County of Ventura’s Public Works Agency’s Saticoy Operations Yard 
Conference Room B located at  

11251‐A Riverbank Dr, Ventura, CA 93004 

MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AGENDA 

Thursday, October 18, 2018 

CALL TO ORDER 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA
The Board will receive public comments on items not appearing on the agenda and within the subject matter jurisdiction of
the Agency.  The Board will not enter into a detailed discussion or take any action on any items presented during public
comments.  Such items may only be referred to the Executive Director or other staff for administrative action or scheduled
on a subsequent agenda for discussion.  Persons wishing to speak on specific agenda items should do so at the time
specified for those items.  In accordance with Government Code § 54954.3(b)(1), public comment will be limited to three
(3) minutes per speaker per issue.

3. ROLL CALL

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE

6. DIRECTORS UPDATES

7. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Board and will
be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
Board member pulls an item from the Calendar. Pulled items will be discussed and acted on
separately by the Board. Members of the public who want to comment on a Consent
Calendar item should do so under Public Comments. (ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED)

7a. Approval of MINUTES 
The Board will consider approving the Draft Minutes from the Board of Directors 
Meeting of August 16, 2018 and the Special Meeting/Public Hearing of August 23, 
2018. 

7b. Monthly Financial Reports 
The Board will receive monthly financial reports from UWCD’s accounting staff. 



Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda for 
October 18, 2018 
Page 2 

7c. Invoices for payment approval (outstanding invoices $42,529.11) 
The Board will consider approving invoices for payment, as follows: 
1. insureCAL Insurance Agency (General Liability Policy)  $1,995.24
2. Klein Denatale Goldner Cooper Rosenlieb & Kimball (legal services) $8,861.57

(encompasses invoices for legal services for May, June, July, August and 
September) 

3. Bondy Groundwater Consulting (GSP Grant application) $16,585.61
4. Bondy Groundwater Consulting (GSP $6,365; Admin $1,987.21) $8,352.21

(encompasses invoices for GSP tasks and GSA administration for July 
and August) 

5. County of Ventura IT Services (Website and hosting) $1,774.68
6. Michael Mobley (expense reimbursement) $100.00
7. Bondy Groundwater Consulting (GSP$3752.50; Admin $1,151.45) $4,903.95

8. ACTION ITEMS
8a. Approval of Stakeholder Engagement Plan 

Motion 
The Board will consider approving the proposed Stakeholder Engagement Plan. 

8b. Approval of Grant Agreement 
Motion 
The Board will consider approving the DWR Prop 1 Grant Agreement. 

8c. Approval of Waiver of Late Fees and Penalties relating to Groundwater 
Extraction Fees 
Motion 
The Board will consider approving a one-time waiver of Late Fees and Penalties 
relating to Groundwater Extraction Fees for all customers. 

8d. FY 2018-19 Budget Amendment 
Motion 
The Board will consider amending the FY 2018-19 budget to account for revenue 
projections on an accrual basis. 

9. INFORMATION ITEMS
9a. GSP Development Options 

Informational Item 
Executive Director Bryan Bondy will lead the Directors in a discussion of the 
various options relating to the development of the Agency’s Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan. 

9b. Ventura’s WaterPure Project Presentation 
Informational Item 
Ventura Water will provide an overview of its WaterPure project. 

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT 



Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda for 
October 18, 2018 
Page 3 

Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are provided to the Board of Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, 
including any documents provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, are available for inspection at UWCD’s offices at 106 North 8th 
Street in Santa Paula during normal business hours. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 
benefits of, the District’s services, programs or activities because of any disability. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or 
if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, please contact the Mound Basin Clerk of the Board at (805) 525-4431 or the City of 
Ventura at (805) 524-1500. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Agency to make appropriate arrangements.

Approved: __________________________________________________ 

Executive Director Bryan Bondy 

Posted: (date) October 15, 2018 (time) 9a.m. (attest) Kris Sofley 
At: https://www.moundbasingsa.org 

Posted: (date) October 15, 2018 (time) 9:15a.m. (attest) Kris Sofley 
At: https://www.facebook.com/moundbasingsa/ 

Posted: (date)  October 15, 2018  (time) 9a.m. (attest) Kris Sofley 
At: United Water Conservation District, 106 N 8th Street, Santa Paula CA 93060 

(attest) Debra Martinez Posted: (date) October 15, 2018   (time) 1:30p.m. 
At: Ventura City Hall, 501 Poli Street, Ventura, California 93001 

Posted: (date)  October 15, 2018  (time) 9a.m.  (attest) Kris Sofley 
At: County of Ventura’s Public Works Agency’s Saticoy Operations Yard, 11251‐A Riverbank Dr, 
Ventura, CA 93004 

https://www.moundbasingsa.org/
https://www.facebook.com/moundbasingsa/


MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 5 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018  
TO:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Executive Director Update 
 
a) Basin Boundary Modification Update 

 

b) Website Update  

 
c) Extraction Fee Update 

 

d) GSP Grant Update 

 

e) Miscellaneous Updates 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 



Post Office Box 3544 
Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 
https://moundbasingsa.org 

 
 

MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING, 1:00 P.M., Thursday, August 16, 2018 

Ventura City Hall, Room 223 (Santa Cruz Room) 
501 Poli Street, Ventura, California 93001 

MINUTES 

 
DIRECTORS IN ATTENDANCE: 
Mike Mobley, Chair  
Kevin Brown, Vice Chair/Secretary 
Glenn Shephard, Treasurer 
Jim Chambers 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Conner Everts 
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 
Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 
 
PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE: 
Dan Detmer, UWCD 
Ryan Kristensen, GHD 
Dante Tello, Bank of Sierra 
Jennifer Tribo, Ventura Water 
 
CALL TO ORDER 1:10p.m. 
 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 

Chair Mobley asked for public comments.  None were offered. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
Chair Mobley, Vice Chair/Secretary Brown, Treasurer Glenn Shephard, Director Jim 
Chambers all present.  Director Everts is absent. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Motion 
Motion to approve the agenda, Director Shephard; Second, Director Brown.  Voice vote: 
four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); none opposed; one absent (Everts).  
Motion carries unanimously 4/0/1. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Director Shephard asked to pull Consent Calendar item 5.b for discussion, then made a 
motion to approve Consent Calendar item 5.a Minutes; Second, Director Chambers.  
Roll call vote: four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); none opposed, one 
absent (Everts).  Consent Calendar 5A motion to approve carries unanimously 4/0/1. 
 



Mound Basin GSA Board of Directors Meeting 
MINUTES 
August 16, 2018 
Page 2 
 

5a Approval of Minutes from July 26, 2018 Mound Basin GSA Board meeting 
 
5b Approval of Invoices to County of Ventura and City of Ventura 

Ventura County/Watershed Protection District ($50,000); City of Ventura/Ventura 
Water  ($55,000)  

 
Director Shephard reported that the County of Ventura was revising documentation 
for the cash advance (loan) agreement between the County and the Mound Basin 
GSA.  He said that the invoice prepared by the Mound Basin GSA was okay, and 
that Legal Counsel Joe Hughes was involved, but a letter of intent needed to go 
before the County Board of Supervisors for its approval.  He also requested that 
the repayment deadline in Article 1 Advance and Repayment, Section B. 
Repayment be changed to December 31, 2021. 
 
Director Brown reported that the invoice and agreement looked fine and would be 
sent to the City’s attorney Miles Hogan for review. 
 
Motion to approve and submit invoices to the County of Ventura – Watershed 
Protection District in the amount of $50,000 and the City of Ventura – Ventura 
Water in the amount of $55,000, for authority funding contributions to the Mound 
Basin GSA activities which will be repaid with accrued interest at the LAIF rate and 
authorize Board Chair to work with the County and City to finalize the cash advance 
and repayment agreements’ language and invoicing, Director Brown; Second, 
Director Shephard.  Voice vote: four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); 
none opposed; one absent (Everts).  Motion carries unanimously 4/0/1. 

 
6. BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  No announcements were made. 

7.  ACTION ITEMS 
7a. Nomination and Appointment of Environmental Stakeholder Director 

Motion to approve the Santa Clara River Environmental Groundwater Committee’s 
nomination of Connor Everts for a second one-year term as Environmental 
Stakeholder Director, Director Brown; Second, Director Shephard. Voice vote: four 
ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); none opposed; one absent (Everts).  
Motion carries unanimously 4/0/1. 
 

7b. Nomination and Appointment of Agricultural Stakeholder Director 
Motion to approve the Mound Basin Agricultural Water Group (MBAWG) 
nomination of Jim Chambers for a second one-year term as Agricultural 
Stakeholder Director for the Mound Basin GSA, Director Brown; Second, Director 
Shephard. Voice vote: four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); none 
opposed; one absent (Everts).  Motion carries unanimously 4/0/1. 
 



Mound Basin GSA Board of Directors Meeting 
MINUTES 
August 16, 2018 
Page 3 
 

7c. Review and Planning for Public Hearing on Establishment of the Agency’s 
Groundwater Extraction Fee Assessments and Proposed Mound Basin 
Boundary Modifications 

 Chair Mobley reviewed the numbers in the long term and FY 2018-19 budget, 
including a $25,000 reserve balance and the removal of the $50,000 in in-kind 
services from UWCD as revenue and shown as reduction in labor expenses 
instead. He reported that the prior version of the Budget had an extra six-month 
period of revenue that will not be received during the budget period (extractions 
and extraction fee revenue is shifted in time to reflect the fact that revenue is 
received during the six-month period after the pumping occurs).   

 
Director Chambers asked about the volume dropping off and Chair Mobley 
explained that January through June extraction volumes were revised downward 
based on further review of historical records and input from UWCD’s CFO Tina 
Rivera and Ventura. Director Brown asked if those figures had been confirmed with 
United Water and Chair Mobley said the numbers would be finalized by the end of 
the month but that these were good estimates.  Chair Mobley, Director Brown and 
Director Chambers continued to discuss the pumping and extraction estimates.  
Director Chambers expressed concern over the $40 per acre foot rate to cover the 
decrease in estimated usage.  Ms. Tribo said she spoke with Bryan Bondy 
regarding the numbers and, over the next six months, it may be possible to adjust 
the rate if more extraction occurs.  Ms. Tribo reiterated that the pumping reported 
for the period of January through June of 2018 is billed in July 2018, and Mr. Bondy 
was looking to secure more revenue upfront.  Director Chambers asked how much 
agriculture was being charged in contrast to M&I.  Director Brown said the rate was 
the same, no differential in rates for each group.    
 
He also said that GSP Chapter 2 expenses of $52,000 was added to make the 
budget consistent with the grant schedule after Mr. Bondy’s meeting with DWR’s 
Eddie Pech. 
 
Chair Mobley addressed the Basin Boundary Modification, and Mr. Detmer of 
UWCD added that the latest revision is a more accurate depiction of geologic 
conditions. 
 
Chair Mobley said minor (non –substantive) edits were made to the proposed 
Resolution.  Including keeping language to indicate that extraction fees should 
apply to all pumped water whether it is native ground or augmented water.  Director 
Brown took issue with this and asked that the language in the Resolution be 
changed to omit “or augmented water.”  He said that what Ventura put into the 
basin should not be charged to be taken out, and that only an administrative fee 
should apply not a pump fee. 
 
Director Brown said that Ventura was looking to bring in direct potable reuse (DPR) 
as part of its aquifer storage and recovery project as well as indirect potable reuse 
(IPR) from its recycled water project as well as State Water to be stored in the 
Mound Basin.  He said that Ventura would have to negotiate with the Mound Basin 
GSA before any of this occurs, of course, but adding an extraction fee on top of 
administrative costs doesn’t seem appropriate.  



Mound Basin GSA Board of Directors Meeting 
MINUTES 
August 16, 2018 
Page 4 
 

Motion to approve the adjustments made to the proposed groundwater extraction 
fee assessments in the Agency’s Long Term Budget worksheet and FY 2019-19 
Budget; and approve the publishing of the DRAFT Resolution adopting the 
proposed groundwater extraction fee assessment and FY 2018-19 Budget as 
amended for public review, Director Shephard; Second, Director Brown.  Voice 
vote: four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); none opposed; one absent 
(Everts).  Motion carries unanimously 4/0/1. 
 
 

7d. Proposed Bylaws 
Motion to approve the proposed Bylaws as amended by legal counsel based on 
Board direction, Director Shephard; Second, Director Chambers.  Voice vote: four 
ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, Shephard); none opposed; one absent (Everts).  
Motion carries unanimously 4/0/1. 

 
 

9.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None were offered. 
 

ADJOURNED  2:05pm 
The Board adjourned at 2:05p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, 
September 20, 2018 or call of the Chair. 

 

I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Mound Basin 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Board of Directors meeting of August 16, 2018. 
 

 

ATTEST:___________________________________________________ 
  Kevin Brown, Board Secretary  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 
  Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 
 

 

 





Post Office Box 3544 
Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 
https://moundbasingsa.org 

 
 

MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY SPECIAL BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING 

Thursday, August 23, 2018, 1p.m. 
Ventura City Hall, Community Meeting Room (Room No. 202)  

501 Poli Street, Ventura, California 93001 
MINUTES 

DIRECTORS IN ATTENDANCE: 
Kevin Brown, Vice Chair 
Jim Chambers 
Mike Mobley, Chair  
Glenn Shephard, Treasurer 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Conner Everts 
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 
Bryan Bondy, Executive Director 
Joe Hughes, Legal Counsel 
Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 
 
PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE: 
Kathy Bremer, resident 
Dan Detmer, UWCD 
Neal Maguire, Ferguson Case Orr Paterson LLP 
Debra Martinez, Ventura Water 
Tony Morgan, DBS&A 
Jennifer Tribo, Ventura Water 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 1:03 p.m. 
 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2.  PUBLIC HEARING  

Resolution 2018-04 A Resolution of the Board of Directors of Mound Basin 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency Determining and Establishing Groundwater 
Extraction Charges against All Persons Operating Groundwater Extraction 
Facilities within the Mound Basin 
Board Chair opened the Public Hearing regarding the Agency’s establishing a fee 
pursuant to Water Code Section 10730 et seq., to offset anticipated administrative and 
operational costs of the GSA, GSP development costs, and other efforts required for 
compliance with SGMA. The Agency anticipates assessing a groundwater extraction fee 
on pumpers within the Basin and is seeking feedback from stakeholders.   



Mound Basin GSA PUBLIC HEARING 
August 23, 2018 
Page 2 
 

Chair Mobley stated that Director Everts was not in attendance and asked Executive 
Director Bondy to go through the PowerPoint presentation, after which time he would take 
comments from the public. 

Mr. Bondy thanked the Chair and provided background information on the formation of the 
Agency, the need to set a groundwater extraction fee and how that fee will be scaled to 
meet the scope of work and time frame or schedule of work in developing a Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan for the Mound Basin by the deadline established by the Department of 
Water Resources.  Mr. Bondy explained that in addition to the revenue generated by the 
groundwater extraction assessment, the County of Ventura and the City of Ventura had 
also agreed to provide a cash advance to the Agency, which would be paid back by the 
Agency in 2021 and 2022, accordingly.  He also stated that there was a third revenue 
source, the Prop 1 Grant award, but that the way grants pay out, you have to spend the 
money to complete various sections of the work and then the grant funder reimburses the 
Agency for a portion of that expense.  This is why, as shown in the long term budget 
spreadsheet, the groundwater extraction fee reduces over time, to the point of $19 per 
acre foot by 2021, after the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) is submitted.  Mr. 
Bondy also explained that the amount of staff time required will be greater in the beginning, 
and administrative costs are expected to drop as most of the work is completed and the 
Agency transitions to implementing the GSP.  He added that after the GSP is submitted, 
2022 and 2023 on the spreadsheet, the Board has proposed maintaining a $25,000 cash 
reserve. 

The Draft Resolution regarding the groundwater extraction fee is in keeping with the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and the duties of the Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (GSA), including the noticing that is required by SGMA.  The 
groundwater extraction fee will be billed by the Agency on a semi-annual basis, January 
through June and July through December, and that revenue is not to exceed the costs of 
GSP development and administrative services required to support that development. 

Chair Mobley asked if there were any public comments at this time. 

Director Brown said that he had asked for the removal of the term “or an augmented 
supply” from the second page of the Resolution, under item 1 during the August 16, 2018 
Board of Directors meeting.  He continued that Ventura Water would have to have a 
separate agreement with the GSA regarding storing its indirect potable reuse (IPR) water, 
so that it would not incur an additional extraction charge for water it had put into the basin. 

Neal Maguire said that at last week’s meeting, there was no mention on the agenda of a 
possible modification to the Resolution and that it would be in violation of the Brown Act 
to do so.  He said he wanted to make sure that everyone was paying their fair share for 
groundwater, and that he wanted to make sure that water that is stored in the basin is 
charged at the same rate as native groundwater.  The GSA’s role doesn’t differentiate 
between augmented or native water supply, he said.  

Chair Mobley stated that the Resolution had been agendized properly, Mr. Maguire 
contended that is was listed as a planning discussion and should not have been changed. 

Chair Mobley said that water is not treated differently in the form of extraction fees. 



Mound Basin GSA PUBLIC HEARING 
August 23, 2018 
Page 3 
 

Director Brown said that agreements may be researched and the GSA can review injection 
and extraction.  He said typically an administrative fee is charged in association with 
injection and/or extractions, as is the custom with Fox Canyon, but that Ventura Water 
wouldn’t move forward without an agreement with the GSA in advance.  Director Brown 
stated that stored water should be treated differently.  Mr. Maguire said he disagrees with 
that premise. 

Mr. Maguire said that native and augmented supply all require management through the 
GSA and it is only equitable to charge the City of Ventura for use of the basin for storage. 

Director Brown said he disagreed one hundred percent. 

Mr. Maguire said the Resolution should be kept as it is. 

Director Brown said that Fox Canyon GMA and UWCD have the same type of agreements. 
Ventura Water would have to have a new agreement with the GSA to put new water into 
the Basin.  He said he would look at rates for IPR storage/extraction with similar cities like 
San Diego, Monterey and Pismo. 

Mr. Maguire said that if there’s a shortage, the City cuts back first and that the status quo 
should be maintained.  In three or four years, no one will recall this discussion.  The Ag 
community thinks the City should pay the same for stored water and maintain the status 
quo. 

The GSA’s Legal Counsel Joe Hughes said that this is all part of the process in a public 
hearing.  He said that regarding the area of the Mound Basin, and areas that Director 
Brown has looked at, the ability to “bleed over” into other areas of the aquifer, Fox Canyon 
and Oxnard’s practices.  Ventura’s IPR may draw water from the Mound basin, but how 
do you control the inequity? 

Mr. Bondy said a study of the basin could be done and the GSA Board could consider 
adjustments.  He said monitoring and modeling could help the Board look at what options 
are available, and that the City’s EIR and project rules should also be considered. 

Chair Mobley said these are things that will be learned through the GSP process. 

Tony Morgan asked if the cash advances from the County and City as listed in the long 
term budget spreadsheet are to be repaid with interest. 

Director Shephard said that the financial agreements are not in place as yet.  Ms. Sofley 
added that the loan repayments include accrued interest based on the LAIF interest rates 
for the loan period. 

Mr. Morgan said that if the extraction rate is established today, next year it will need to be 
re-established or does the extraction rate carry over.  He said the Resolution mentioned 
a period of rate. 

Chair Mobley said the $40 per acre foot extraction rate will exist until the Board changes 
it, as reflected in the long term budget worksheet. 

Mr. Morgan asked if the public would have another shot at discussing the rate. 



Mound Basin GSA PUBLIC HEARING 
August 23, 2018 
Page 4 
 

Chair Mobley replied that the rate could change every six months, and that the public will 
be asked for comment prior to each time the extraction rate changes. 

Chair Mobley asked if there were any other comments.  None were offered.  Chair Mobley 
asked the Clerk of the Board if any written comments had been received from the public.  
She replied that no written comments had been received by the Agency. 

Chair Mobley moved to close the Public Hearing portion of the meeting at 1:40p.m. 

Chair Mobley then asked if the Directors had any comments to make. 

Director Shephard asked Legal Counsel if he had reviewed the language in the 
Resolution.  Mr. Hughes responded that he had read the proposed Resolution and that 
the document was fine.  Director Shephard asked if the Resolution was to be amended or 
adopted.  Mr. Hughes said that it could be amended and adopted. 

Director Chambers said the changes in rate, which started with a low number and don’t 
reflect the volume of pumping that United provided regarding a 10-year average, are now 
significantly higher.  He said that basing the rate on the charts from United, and averaging 
over a 10 year period, seemed to be more equitable.  The pumping number used seems 
arbitrary.  And that he notices that Ag is responsible for 75 percent and M&I is responsible 
for 25%, and he’d like the Board to look at that 10 year average comparison of Ag and 
M&I. 

Director Brown said that the rate is based on the same pumping reports as United, and 
that the City is paying its fair share. 

Chair Mobley said that July through December is always higher and that January through 
June is always lower but that the estimates for the rate are based on historical data.  The 
City is pumping less from the basin now, but the GSA needs revenue and that puts Ag’s 
percentage higher than normal. 

Director Brown added that the City was also providing a cash advance to the Agency. 

Director Chambers said that at the last discussion, he had asked for clarification on 
augmented pumping or augmented water, and other types of water resources and asked 
that regardless of the City’s plan, the wording in the Resolution stay as it is. 

Director Brown said that he did not agree. 

Chair Mobley said that augmented was anything not natural and could come from State 
Water, recycled water recharge and so on. 

Director Chambers said that surface water affects the basin, whether it is part of another 
supply, shouldn’t matter as most of the Ventura River is not in the basin boundary but 
pressure there slows percolation above. 

Mr. Bondy said that these questions will be addressed with the development of the GSP.   

Chair Mobley said that the ag community is in favor of leaving the Resolution as it is, with 
the same fee for natural or native water pumping as for stored water pumping. But why 
would you pay over and over for the same water?  Pay an extraction fee once and a small 



Mound Basin GSA PUBLIC HEARING 
August 23, 2018 
Page 5 
 

administrative fee perhaps.  Board needs to study that in depth and examine the benefit 
and costs associated with injecting or recharging the basin as a form of water storage and 
bring it back to the board when there is more information. 

Director Brown said that the Board doesn’t really have a choice, they have to analyze and 
reach an agreement just like in other basins. 

Director Shephard asked Legal Counsel to start off with the language in the Resolution 
and deal with the City’s issue as it comes up. 

Mr. Morgan said that Item 1 on Page 2 states that the fee starts today, retroactive of the 
last six months. 

Chair Mobley said the language is not explicit, just back to the January through June usage 
period for billing, actual usage. 

Mr. Bondy said there is a footnote that explains that. 

Mr. Morgan said $40 per acre foot from January through June, but if the fee starts today, 
does that means it’s retroactive to last year.  Is it clear to stakeholders who might just pick 
up this document with no knowledge of this discussion. 

Mr. Hughes clarified that the fee started, and is applied to the pumping period and that the 
Resolution should be amended in item 2 to read “These groundwater extraction charges 
shall be billed semiannually with billing periods covering January through June and July 
through December, beginning with January through June, 2018 billing period” just to put 
a finer point on it.  He instructed Chair Mobley that the motion should be to approve the 
Resolution as presented with the addition of the language amended in item 2. 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2018-04, establishing a Groundwater Extraction Charge of 
 $40 per acre foot, with the additional language amending item number 2, to reflect the 
 semiannual billing period begins January 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018, Director 
 Chambers; Second, Director Shephard.  Roll call vote: three ayes (Chambers, Mobley, 
 Shephard); one no (Brown); one absent (Everts).  Motion carries 3/1/1/. 
  
3. FY 2018-19 Budget 
 Motion 

Chair Mobley asked if there was any public comments or Board questions on the 
amended FY 2018-19 Budget, none were offered.   
 
Motion to approve the amended FY 2018-19 Budget as presented, Director Brown; 

 Second, Director Shephard.   Voice vote:  four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, 
 Shephard); none opposed; one absent (Everts).  Motion carries 4/0/1. 
 
4. Mound Basin Boundary Modification 
 Motion 

Mr. Bondy explained that since the basin boundary modification deadline had been 
extended, it provided an opportunity for the Agency to make a minor scientific modification 
of the northern basin boundary, based on the most recent geologic mapping of the aquifer.  
He reported that there are no known wells in the area and that he did not believe there 



Mound Basin GSA PUBLIC HEARING 
August 23, 2018 
Page 6 
 

would be any impact to well owners by making this change.  He said that when the 
deadline was extended, he advised the Board to make this minor change and then all of 
the basin boundary modifications would be addressed at the same time. 
 
Chair Mobley asked if there were any public comments or additional questions from the 
Board.  None were offered. 
 
Motion to approve the proposed boundary modifications and submit the boundary 
modifications as presented to the Department of Water Resources, Director Brown; 
Second, Director Chambers.  Voice vote: four ayes (Brown, Chambers, Mobley, 
Shephard); none opposed; one absent (Everts).  Motion carries 4/0/1. 
 

ADJOURNED 2:10p.m. 
The Board adjourned at 2:10 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, 
September 20, 2018 or call of the Chair. 

 
I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Mound Basin 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Special Meeting and Public Hearing of August 23, 2018. 
 

 

ATTEST:___________________________________________________ 
  Kevin Brown, Board Secretary  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________________________________ 
  Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 
 

 
 











MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 7(b) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors and Executive Director 
FROM: Erin Gorospe, UWCD 
SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Reports 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will receive the monthly financial reports for the Mound Basin GSA. 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

UWCD accounting staff has prepared various financial reports based on the Mound Basin 
GSA revenue and expenses for the month of September, 2018.  Because this is the first time 
financial reports have been prepared for the GSA, staff has also provided a combined profit 
and loss statement covering FY 17-18 and FY 18-19. 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. September 2018 Profit/Loss Statement 
B. September 2018 Balance Sheet 
C. Profit & Loss Statement from July 2017 to September 2018 

 



 Accrual Basis  Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
 Profit and Loss Budget Performance

 September 2018

Jul - Sep 2018 Annual Budget % of Budget

Income

40001 ꞏ Groundwater Extraction Fees 0.00 204,000.00 0.0%

41000 ꞏ Grant revenue
41001 ꞏ State Grants 0.00 9,540.00 0.0%

Total 41000 ꞏ Grant revenue 0.00 9,540.00 0.00

Total Income 0.00 213,540.00 0.0%

Gross Profit 0.00 213,540.00 0.0%

Expense

52200 ꞏ Professional Services

52240 ꞏ Prof Svcs - IT Consulting 1,774.68 2,400.00 73.95%

52250 ꞏ Prof Svcs - Groundwater/GSP Pre 114,430.00

52252 ꞏ Prof Svcs - GSP Consultant 10,117.50

Total 52250 ꞏ Prof Svcs - Groundwater/GSP Pre 10,117.50 114,430.00 8.84%

52270 ꞏ Prof Svcs - Accounting 0.00 17,000.00 0.0%

52275 ꞏ Prof Svcs - Admin/Clerk of Bd 0.00 20,000.00 0.0%

52280 ꞏ Prof Svcs - Executive Director 3,138.66 50,000.00 6.28%

Total 52200 ꞏ Professional Services 15,030.84 203,830.00 7.37%

52500 ꞏ Legal Fees
52501 ꞏ Legal Counsel 4,482.33 42,400.00 10.57%

Total 52500 ꞏ Legal Fees 4,482.33 42,400.00 10.57%

53000 ꞏ Office Expenses

53010 ꞏ Public Information 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%

53020 ꞏ Office Supplies 0.00 1,000.00 0.0%

53070 ꞏ Licenses, Permits & Fees 0.00 500.00 0.0%

Total 53000 ꞏ Office Expenses 0.00 3,000.00 0.0%

53500 ꞏ Insurance
53510 ꞏ Liability Insurance 0.00 1,955.00 0.0%

Total 53500 ꞏ Insurance 0.00 1,955.00 0.0%

Total Expense 19,513.17 251,185.00 7.77%
Net Income -19,513.17 -37,645.00 51.83%

 Page 1 of 1



 Accrual Basis  Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
 Balance Sheet

 As of September 30, 2018

Sep 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings
10000 · Bank of the Sierra 13,416.40

Total Checking/Savings 13,416.40

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 170,499.24

Total Accounts Receivable 170,499.24

Total Current Assets 183,915.64
TOTAL ASSETS 183,915.64

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
20000 · Accounts Payable 40,477.91

Total Accounts Payable 40,477.91

Other Current Liabilities

20001 · Advance from County of Ventura 55,000.00

20002 · Advance from VCWPD 50,000.00

20003 · Cash Advance to Open Account 100.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 105,100.00

Total Current Liabilities 145,577.91

Total Liabilities 145,577.91

Equity

32000 · Retained Earnings 57,850.90

Net Income -19,513.17

Total Equity 38,337.73
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 183,915.64

 Page 1 of 1



 Accrual Basis  Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
 Profit and Loss

July 2017 through September 2018

Jul 2017 - Sep 2018

Income
40001 · Groundwater Extraction Fees 78,815.64

Total Income 78,815.64

Gross Profit 78,815.64

Expense

52200 · Professional Services

52230 · Prof Svcs - Grant Solicitation 16,585.50

52240 · Prof Svcs - IT Consulting 1,774.68

52250 · Prof Svcs - Groundwater/GSP Pre
52252 · Prof Svcs - GSP Consultant 10,117.50

Total 52250 · Prof Svcs - Groundwater/GSP Prep 10,117.50

52280 · Prof Svcs - Executive Director 3,138.66

Total 52200 · Professional Services 31,616.34

52500 · Legal Fees
52501 · Legal Counsel 8,861.57

Total 52500 · Legal Fees 8,861.57

Total Expense 40,477.91
Net Income 38,337.73

 Page 1 of 1



MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 7(c) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors and Executive Director 
FROM: Erin Gorospe, UWCD 
SUBJECT: Invoices for payment approval 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will review and approve invoices for payment. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will consider which of the invoices it elects to pay at this time and which will be 
held over for payment at a later date. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The Mound Basin GSA has $42,533.15 in outstanding invoices, as follows: 
The Board will consider approving invoices for payment, as follows: 
1. insureCAL Insurance Agency (General Liability Policy)  $1,995.24 
2. Klein Denatale Goldner Cooper Rosenlieb & Kimball (legal services) $8,861.57 
     (encompasses invoices for legal services for May, June, July, August and  

  September) 
3. Bondy Groundwater Consulting (GSP Grant application) $16,585.61 
4. Bondy Groundwater Consulting (GSP $6,365; Admin $1,987.21) $8,352.21 

(encompasses invoices for GSP tasks and GSA administration for July  
 and August) 
5. County of Ventura IT Services (Website and hosting) $1,774.68 
6.  Michael Mobley (expense reimbursement) $100.00 
7. Bondy Groundwater Consulting (GSP$3752.50; Admin $1,151.45) $4,903.95 

There is currently a balance of $50,824.40 in the Agency’s checking account.  Accounting 
staff is asking for Board’s direction regarding which invoices to pay and which to hold over 
for payment at a later date. 
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

The fiscal impact is a cash outflow of up to $42,533.15.  If all invoices are paid, the Bank 
of the Sierra checking account will have a balance of $8,291.25. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Check Detail Report 
B. Check Requests and Invoices as outlined in Background above 

 
Action: ___________________________________________________ 
Motion:_____________________  2nd:__________________________ 
K. Brown ___    M. Mobley___    G. Shephard___    J. Chambers___   C. Everts___   



 12:03 PM
 10/11/18

 Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
 Check Detail
 October 11, 2018

Num Date Name Amount

11251 10/11/2018 insureCAL Insurance Agency -1,955.24
11252 10/11/2018 A.J. Klein, Inc T. Denatale, B. Goldner -8,861.57
11253 10/11/2018 Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc -16,585.50
11254 10/11/2018 Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc -8,352.21
11255 10/11/2018 County of Ventura- IT Servces Department -1,774.68
11256 10/11/2018 Michael Mobley -100.00
11257 10/11/2018 Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc -4,903.95

TOTAL -42,533.15

 Page 1 of 1





insureCAL Insurance Agency
1065 Colorado Ave., Ste 5

Turlock, CA 95380
P: (209) 250-0269

Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
501 Poli St
Ventura, CA 93001

INVOICE
Invoice No: 201500217INV

Invoice Date: 10/05/2018

Description Policy Number Eff Date Line of Business Due

Professional Liability Premium Amount
10/18/18 - 10/18/19 Professional Liability $1,955.24

Total: $1,955.24

Detach and return this portion with your payment

Customer: Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Invoice No: 201500217INV

MAIL TO: 

insureCAL Insurance Agency
1065 Colorado Ave., Ste 5
Turlock, CA 95380

Due Date: 10/18/2018

Amount Due Enclosed

$1,955.24

























MOUND BASIN 

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
P O Box  3544 

Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 

https://moundbasingsa.org 

CHECK REQUEST 

Date required:__ ________________ Date Requested: October 18, 2018

Pay to:  Klein, Denatale, Goldner, Cooper, Rosenlieb & Kimball, LLP 

Address: P.O. Box 11172 _ 

City, State, Zip: _Bakersfield, CA 93389-1172 2

Amount $8,861.57

Charge to Account(s):_Legal services May 4, 2018 through September 19, 2018

Reason for Check/Petty Cash Request: Mound Basin GSA legal counsel 

Requested by:_Kris Sofley, clerk of the board___________________ 

Approved by:________________________________     ___________________________ 
          Board Secretary/Treasurer 

Authorized by:___________________________________________________________ 
          Board Chair 

(Attach invoices/receipts/documentation for costs verification) 



























P O Box  3544 
Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 

https://moundbasingsa.org 

CHECK REQUEST 

Date required:__ ________________ Date Requested: October 18, 2018 

Pay to:  Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc.  

Address:_ 10488 Graham Court 

City, State, Zip:_Ventura, CA 93004 

Amount $_8,352.21

Charge to Account(s):_$6,365 charged to GSP grant tasks; $1,987.21 charged to GSA Ad-

ministration for July and August 2018.

Reason for Check/Petty Cash Request:  payment for contracted services 

Requested by:_Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board__________ 

Approved by:________________________________     ___________________________ 
          Board Secretary/Treasurer 

Authorized by:___________________________________________________________ 
          Board Chair 

(Attach invoices/receipts/documentation for costs verification) 



Page 1 of 2

Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc. Client:  
10488 Graham Ct.
Ventura, CA 93004
(805) 212-0484 Project #:
bryan@bondygroundwater.com Invoice #:
Tax ID: 81-2577611 Invoice Date:

Description of Services

Labor Hours Rate Subtotal

GSP Grant Task 1 Create the GSA 0.25 $190.00 $47.50
• 7/26 Board meeting discussion of bylaws  and drug policy

GSP Grant Task 3.2 Basin Boundary Modification 7.75 $190.00 $1,472.50

GSP Grant Task 3.3 Organizational Activities 9.00 $190.00 $1,710.00

Non-Grant Reimbursable Activities 4.00 $190.00 $760.00

Subtotal Labor:  $3,990.00

• Develop draft long-term budget to support funding plan

Other: 
• Travel time for meetings on 7/9, 7/23 & 7/31

July 26 Board Meeting: 
• Review draft meeting packet
• Prep, travel, and attenance for non-grant items

• 7/26 Board meeting discussion long-term budget for fee development and 
public workshop
• Coordination and support for 8/26 GW Extraction Fee public hearing

501 Poli Street
Ventura, CA 93001
043
043-01
8/1/2018

• Mtg. w/ UCWD GW Staff and Chair Mobley re: UWCD in-kind labor 
assumtions for long-term budget
• Mtg. w/ UCWD Finance Dept. re: long-term budget review

Mound Basin GSA

Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc.
Invoice for Professional Consulting Services

Mound Basin GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan Support Services
Client Contract No. N/A

Invoice Period: July 1-31, 2018

• Review basin boundary modification initial notice and background info
• Basin boundary modification coordination w/ Board Chair and UWCD (incl. 
separate mtgs. w/ UWCD staff and J. Tribo on 7/9/18)
• Manage basin boundary modification tasks

• Review website design and provide feedback

• Discussion w/ Directors at 7/26 Board meeting



Page 2 of 2

Expenses (Non-Grant Reimbursable)

Date Description Units Rate Subtotal
7/9/2018 Mileage RT Vent.-Santa P. Mtg. w/ UWCD staff re: bound. M 18 $0.545 $9.81
7/23/2018 Mileage RT in Ventura - mtg. re: long-term budget 22 $0.545 $11.99
7/26/2018 Mileage RT Ventura -  7/26 Board Meeting & Public Worksh 21 $0.545 $11.45
7/31/2018 Mileage RT Vent.-Santa P. Mtgs. w/ UWCD re: long-term bu 18 $0.545 $9.81

Subtotal Expenses:  $43.06

Invoice Total (Please pay this amount):  $4,033.06

Thank you for your business.  The opportunity to add value is appreciated!

 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2

Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc. Client:  
10488 Graham Ct.
Ventura, CA 93004
(805) 212-0484 Project #:
bryan@bondygroundwater.com Invoice #:
Tax ID: 81-2577611 Invoice Date:

Description of Services

Labor Hours Rate Subtotal

GSP Grant Task 3.2 Basin Boundary Modification 0.75 $190.00 $142.50

GSP Grant Task 3.3 Organizational Activities 8.75 $190.00 $1,662.50

GSP Grant Task 10 Project Administration 7.00 $190.00 $1,330.00

Non-Grant Reimbursable Activities 6.00 $190.00 $1,140.00

• Travel time for mtg. w/ DWR POC re grant in Glendale re: grant agreement (split w/ UVRGA)

Subtotal Labor:  $4,275.00

• Attend 8/23 Special Board Mtg. and Public Hearing re: extraction fee adoption

• Reqeust labor rates from member agencies for grant

Mound Basin GSA

• Basin boundary modification coordination w/ UWCD 
• Attend 8/23 Special Board Mtg. and Public Hearing re: basin boundary 
modification

501 Poli Street
Ventura, CA 93001
043
043-02
9/1/2018

• Develop draft long-term budget to support extraction fee (funding plan)

• Review staff report and draft resolution for extraction fee and loans for 8/16 mtg. (funding plan)

Bondy Groundwater Consulting, Inc.
Invoice for Professional Consulting Services

Mound Basin GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan Support Services
Client Contract No. N/A

Invoice Period: August 1-31, 2018

• Coordination re: extraction fee public hearing (funding plan)

Other: 

• Receive info from DWR re: grant agreement
• Prepare draft Exhibits A-C for grant agreement

August 16 and 23 Board Meetings: 
• Review draft meeting packets and minutes (non-grant eligible items)
• Travel time for meeting on 8/23

• Review draft Agency website

• Meeting with DWR POC re: grant agreement in Glendale (split time w/ UVRGA)



Page 2 of 2

Expenses (Non-Grant Reimbursable)

Date Description Units Rate Subtotal

8/10/2018 60 $0.545 $32.70

8/23/2018 Mileage RT Ventura -  8/23 Sp. Board Meeting & Public Hea 21 $0.545 $11.45

Subtotal Expenses:  $44.15

Invoice Total (Please pay this amount):  $4,319.15

Thank you for your business.  The opportunity to add value is appreciated!

Mileage OW Vent.-Glendale Mtg. w/ DWR re: grant 
agreement (split w/ UVRGA)

 
 
 
 



P O Box  3544 
Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 

https://moundbasingsa.org 

CHECK REQUEST 

Date required:__ ________________ Date Requested: 2018-10-18 

Pay to:  County of Ventura – IT Services Department 

Address:_1957 Eastman Avenue, Suite A 

City, State, Zip:_Ventura, CA 93003-6489 

Amount $_1,774.68 

Charge to Account(s):_$50.68 domain registration; $1533. designer labor; $191 administration labor

Reason for Check/Petty Cash Request:  website design, development and hosting services  

Requested by:__Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board_____________________ 

Approved by:________________________________     ___________________________ 
          Board Secretary/Treasurer 

Authorized by:___________________________________________________________ 
          Board Chair 

(Attach invoices/receipts/documentation for costs verification) 





















 
P O Box  3544 

Ventura, CA 93006-3544 

 (805) 525-4431 

https://moundbasingsa.org 

 

 

CHECK REQUEST 
 
 

Date required:__ ________________ Date Requested: September 12, 2018  
 
Pay to:  Michael Mobley         

Address:_7221 Briarcliff Circle        

City, State, Zip:_Ventura, CA 93003-1401        
 
Amount $_100.00          
 
Charge to Account(s):________________________________________________  
 
Reason for Check/Petty Cash Request:  reimbursement of cash advance to establish  
 
checking account          
 
Requested by:__Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board___      
 
Approved by:________________________________     ___________________________ 
           Board Secretary/Treasurer 
 
Authorized by:___________________________________________________________  
           Board Chair 
 
 
 
(Attach invoices/receipts/documentation for costs verification) 
 
 
 
 
 

 







MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 8(a) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Executive Director 
SUBJECT: Approval of Stakeholder Engagement Plan 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will consider approving a Stakeholder Engagement Plan 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the Stakeholder Engagement Plan and direct the Clerk of the Board to post the 
plan on the Agency’s website. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The GSP Emergency Regulations require Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GPSs) to 
include a communication section that (1) explains the agency’s decision-making process; 
(2) identifies opportunities for public engagement and a discussion of how public input and 
response will be used; (3) describes how the agency encourages the active involvement of 
diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the population within the basin; and (4) 
explains the method the agency will follow to inform the public about progress 
implementing the Plan. The reason for developing Stakeholder Engagement Plan early in 
the GSP development process is to encourage the active involvement of individual 
stakeholders, stakeholder organizations, and other interested parties in the development and 
implementation of the GSP, as required by SGMA.  
 
The draft plan was adapted from the engagement plan developed for and adopted by the 
Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency (UVRGA).  It includes a component of 
“Additional Opportunities” to expand the plan, such as development of an advisory 
committee, if desired by the Board. The opportunities will be considered as the GSP 
development progresses and stakeholder interests evolve and become more specific.  The 
attached draft was prepared by the Executive Director. 
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT 

A. Draft Stakeholder Engagement Plan 
 
 
Action: ___________________________________________________ 
Motion:_____________________  2nd:__________________________ 
K. Brown ___    M. Mobley___    G. Shephard___    J. Chambers___   C. Everts___   



 

 1 

DRAFT  

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT PLAN  

MOUND BASIN  

(4-004.03) VENTURA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT 

(SGMA) PROGRAM 

 

PREPARED AND ADOPTED BY THE MOUND BASIN 

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY, 

MONTH DAY, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 2 

   

Table of Contents 

1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................ 3 

2 PURPOSE ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

3 GENERAL INFORMATION ............................................................................................................. 4 

3.1 Clerk of the Board ................................................................................................................. 4 

3.2 Executive Director ................................................................................................................. 4 

4 OUTREACH ACTIVITIES ................................................................................................................. 4 

4.1 Public Notices ........................................................................................................................ 4 

4.2 Stakeholder Identification .................................................................................................... 5 

4.3 Integrated Regional Water Management ............................................................................. 7 

4.4 Public Hearings/Meetings ..................................................................................................... 7 

4.4.1 Planning Commission ..................................................................................................... 7 

4.4.2 Public Meetings .............................................................................................................. 7 

4.4.3 Local Agency Meetings .................................................................................................. 7 

4.5 Direct Mailings/Email ............................................................................................................ 7 

4.6 Newsletters/Columns ........................................................................................................... 8 

4.7 MBGSA Website .................................................................................................................... 8 

4.8 Database ............................................................................................................................... 8 

4.9 Tribal Engagement ................................................................................................................ 8 

4.10 Additional Opportunities .................................................................................................... 8 

5 EVALUATION ................................................................................................................................ 8 

5.1 Attendance/Participation ..................................................................................................... 8 

5.2 Adherence to Schedule ......................................................................................................... 8 

5.3 Plan Update ........................................................................................................................... 9 

APPENDIX A ................................................................................................................................... 10 

TABLE 1...................................................................................................................................... 10 

FIGURE 1.................................................................................................................................... 11 

 
 
 

 



 

 3 

1 INTRODUCTION  
This Stakeholder Engagement Plan (Engagement Plan) summarizes the strategies to educate and 
involve stakeholders (those individuals and representatives of organizations who have a direct 
stake in the outcome of the planning process) and other interested parties in the preparation and 
implementation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Mound Basin – Department 
of Water Resources (DWR) Basin No. 4-004.03 (Figure 1). This GSP will be prepared in 
accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), which was signed by 
Governor Brown in September 2014 and became effective January 1, 2015.  
SGMA provides a framework to regulate groundwater for the first time in California’s history. 
SGMA’s intent is to strengthen local management of specified groundwater basins that are most 
critical to the state’s water needs by regulating groundwater and land use management activities. 
SGMA also aims to preserve the jurisdictional authorities of cities, counties and water agencies 
within groundwater basins while protecting existing surface water and groundwater rights.  
The Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MBGSA or Agency), a Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (GSA), was formed by three local agencies: County of Ventura (County), 
City of San Buenaventura (City), and United Water Conservation District (UWCD).  There was 
extensive stakeholder engagement during that process.  The governing board consists of one 
representative from each of those agencies plus two stakeholder directors representing 
environmental and agricultural interests.  The GSA is responsible for developing a GSP for the 
Mound Basin to achieve long-term groundwater sustainability. Additionally, SGMA requires and 
directs GSAs to encourage active involvement of stakeholders and interested parties in the 
process to sustainability manage the basin.  

2 PURPOSE  
The purpose of the outreach activities described in this Engagement Plan is to encourage the 
active involvement of individual stakeholders and stakeholder organizations, and other interested 
parties in the development and implementation of the GSP for the Mound Basin. This GSP is 
required under SGMA to be completed no later than January 31, 2022. The projects and 
management actions necessary to implement the GSP could affect individuals and groups who 
have a stake in ensuring the basin is sustainably managed as required by SGMA.  
In an effort to understand and involve stakeholders and their interests in the decision- making 
and activities, the MBGSA has prepared this Engagement Plan to encourage broad, enduring and 
productive involvement during the GSP development and implementation phases. This 
Engagement Plan will assist the MBGSA in providing timely information to stakeholders and 
receive input from interested parties during GSP development. This Engagement Plan will 
identify stakeholders who have an interest in groundwater in the Mound Basin, and recommend 
outreach, education and communication strategies for engaging those stakeholders during the 
development and implementation of the GSP. The plan also includes an approach for evaluating 
the overall success of stakeholder engagement and education of both stakeholders and the public. 
In consideration of the interests of all beneficial uses and users of groundwater in the basin, this 
Engagement Plan has been developed pursuant to California Water Code Section 10723.2.  
Additionally, this Engagement Plan has been developed to encourage the active involvement of 
diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the population within the Mound Basin, in 
accordance with GSP Regulations Section 354.10. 



 

 4 

3 GENERAL INFORMATION  
The following personnel will serve as contacts for the public during GSA formation and GSP 
preparation.  

3.1 Clerk of the Board 
For general information about MBGSA and the GSP status, contact: 

Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board, (805) 525-4431, email kriss@unitedwater.org.  

3.2 Executive Director 
MBGSA’s Executive Director will be available for stakeholders and the public seeking specific 
detailed information about the GSP.  Contact:  
Bryan Bondy, Executive Director, (805) 212-0484, email bryan@bondygroundwater.com.  

4 OUTREACH ACTIVITIES  
MBGSA will implement the following outreach activities to maximize stakeholder involvement 
during the development of the GSP and throughout SGMA implementation.  

4.1 Public Notices  
To ensure that the general public is apprised of local activities and allow stakeholders to access 
information, SGMA specifies several public notice requirements for GSAs. Refer to Table 1 in 
Appendix A for a summary of statutory requirements. Three sections of the California Water 
Code require public notice before establishing a GSA, adopting (or amending) a GSP, or 
imposing or increasing fees:  

 Section 10723(b). “Before electing to be a groundwater sustainability agency, and after 
publication of notice pursuant to Section 6066 of the Government Code, the local agency 
or agencies shall hold a public hearing in the county or counties overlying the basin.” In 
accordance with California Water Code Section 10723(b), the following was noticed to 
the public: On June 22, 2017, the MBGSA held a public hearing to consider becoming a 
GSA for the Mound Basin. The public hearing was noticed in the Ventura County Star in 
accordance with Government Code Section 6066. 
 

 Section 10728.4. “A groundwater sustainability agency may adopt or amend a 
groundwater sustainability plan after a public hearing, held at least 90 days after 
providing notice to a city or county within the area of the proposed plan or amendment. 
…” 
 

 Section 10730(b)(1). “Prior to imposing or increasing a fee, a groundwater sustainability 
agency shall hold at least one public meeting, at which oral or written presentations may 
be made as part of the meeting....(3) At least 10 days prior to the meeting, the 
groundwater sustainability agency shall make available to the public data upon which the 
proposed fee is based.”  In accordance with California Water Code Section 10730(b)(1), 
the following was noticed to the public: On August 23, 2018, the MBGSA held a public 
hearing to consider establishing a groundwater extraction fee. The public hearing was 
noticed in the Ventura County Star in accordance with Government Code Section 6066 
and data upon which the fee is based was posted to the MBGSA website and mailed to all 

mailto:kriss@unitedwater.org
mailto:bryan@bondygroundwater.com


 

 5 

entities on the interested parties list prior to the meeting. 
 

 Future noticing will occur as required by SGMA.  

4.2 Stakeholder Identification  
Pursuant to Water Code Sections 10723.8(a)(4) and 10723.2, the Agency will consider the 
interests of all beneficial uses and users of groundwater, as well as those responsible for 
implementing a GSP. 
MBGSA has engaged stakeholders in the development of the Agency to serve as the GSA. For 
example, during development of the joint powers authority agreement (“JPA Agreement”) 
forming the Agency, the signatory members held numerous public meetings to discuss important 
terms to be included in the JPA Agreement. The signatory members also held multiple 
stakeholder outreach meetings to engage and educate stakeholders within the Mound Basin about 
the SGMA requirements the JPA Agreement, and the Agency’s intention to form a GSA for the 
Mound Basin. In addition to the Agency’s public outreach efforts, it also designated two seats on 
its five-seat Board of Directors for Stakeholder Directors: one seat is reserved for an Agricultural 
Stakeholder Director and one seat is reserved for an Environmental Stakeholder Director.  
The Agency plans to continue its practice of seeking broad stakeholder engagement in 
management of the Mound Basin’s groundwater resources as it undertakes the process to 
develop and implement the Plan for the Mound Basin over the next several years. 
SGMA mandates that a GSA establish and maintain a list of persons interested in receiving 
notices regarding plan preparation, meeting announcements, and availability of draft plans, 
maps, and other relevant documents. The MBGSA compiled a list of interested persons for this 
purpose that will be maintained throughout the GSA formation and GSP development phases. An 
initial list of stakeholders and interested parties include, but are not limited to, the following:  

a) Holders of overlying groundwater rights, including: 
1) Agricultural well owners - There are agricultural users of groundwater 

operating on land overlying the Basin. To account for these users’ interests, 
the Agency designated a seat on its five-member governing board to be filled 
by an Agricultural Stakeholder Director. The Agricultural Stakeholder 
Director will be appointed from nominations received by the Mound Basin Ag 
Water Group (MBAWG) or the Ventura County Farm Bureau. The 
Agricultural Stakeholder Director is responsible for engaging the Basin’s 
agricultural users of groundwater and representing their interests before the 
Agency. 

2) Domestic well owners - There are domestic wells overlying the Basin. It is 
believed that the majority of these domestic well owners are de minimus 
users, as defined by SGMA. The Agency anticipates that the Plan will address 
the collective interests of domestic users of groundwater wells and plans to 
engage in outreach to domestic well owners throughout the development of 
the Plan through inviting their participation in the Agency’s public meetings. 

b)  Municipal Well Operators - The Agency is a joint powers authority created by three 
local public agencies. Two of the Agency’s signatory members—the City of San 
Buenaventura and the County of Ventura (irrigation)—operate wells within the Basin 



 

 6 

and are represented on the Agency’s Board of Directors..   
c) Public water systems  

1) Ventura Water (City of San Buenaventura) 
 The City of San Buenaventura is a signatory member to the JPA Agreement forming 

the Agency and is represented on the Agency’s Board of Directors.  
d)  Local land use planning agencies - Both the County of Ventura (“County”) and the 

City of San Buenaventura have land use planning authority on land overlying the 
Basin. Both are signatory members to the JPA Agreement forming the Agency and 
are represented on the Agency’s Board of Directors.   

e)  Environmental - There are several environmental organizations dedicated to 
preserving and maintaining environmental values operating within the boundaries of 
the Basin. To account for these users’ interests, the Agency designated a seat on its 
five-member governing board to be filled by an Environmental Stakeholder Director. 
The Environmental Stakeholder Director will be appointed from nominations 
received from local environmental nonprofit organizations supportive of the Basin’s 
groundwater sustainability. The Environmental Stakeholder Director is responsible 
for engaging stakeholders within the Basin and representing environmental interests 
before the Agency. 

f)  Surface water users, if there is a hydrologic connection between surface and 
groundwater.  Not applicable. 

g)  The federal government – No land overlying the Mound Basin is managed by the 
Federal Government. 

h)  California Native American Tribes - The Agency will ensure that a representative of 
overlying California Native American tribes is on the Agency’s interested parties list, 
in order to receive notices of all Agency meetings and other stakeholder involvement 
opportunities. 

i)  Disadvantaged communities, including, but not limited to, those served by private 
domestic wells or small community water systems.  The City of San Buenaventura 
(City) serves the areas indicated by DWR as Disadvantaged Communities (DACs) 
and Severely Disadvantaged Communities (SDACs).   

 j)  Entities listed in Section 10927 that are monitoring and reporting groundwater 
elevations in all or a part of a groundwater basin managed by the groundwater 
sustainability agency. The County is the designated California Statewide 
Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (“CASGEM”) entity for the Basin. The County is 
a signatory member to the JPA Agreement forming the Agency and represented on 
the Agency’s Board of Directors. 

MBGSA intends to work cooperatively with partner agencies, stakeholders, and interested 
parties to develop and implement the GSP for the Mound Basin and will maintain a list of 
stakeholders and interested parties to be included in the formation of the GSP.  A person can be 
added to the interested parties list by submitting an inquiry via the MBGSA website: 
http://moundbasingsa.org/contact-us/ or by contacting the Clerk of the Board. 

http://moundbasingsa.org/contact-us/


 

 7 

4.3 Integrated Regional Water Management  
The Watershed Coalition of Ventura County (WCVC) prepared an Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan in 2006 and has been updated multiple times since.  The Santa Clara River 
Watershed Committee, a sub organization of WCVC, is actively involved in the community on a 
wide range of issues affecting the watershed, including the Mound Basin. Since this group 
provides a forum for the discussion of issues that are important to the community, it is important 
for this group to be well informed throughout GSP development. Representatives from the 
MBGSA attend Council meetings and provide up-to-date information and hear feedback from 
Council members. 

4.4 Public Hearings/Meetings  

4.4.1 Planning Commission  

Periodic updates on SGMA implementation will be provided to the City of Ventura Planning 
Commission and the Ventura County Planning Commission and the public will be invited to 
listen.  

4.4.2 Public Meetings  

Comprehensive stakeholder involvement will include regularly scheduled public meetings to aid 
in developing and implementing the GSP. Each GSP chapter will be the subject of a public 
meeting to receive comments prior to approval.  In addition to signing up to receive information 
about GSP development at the MBGSA webpage, interested parties may participate in the 
development and implementation of the GSP by attending and participating in public meetings 
(Water Code Section 10727.8(a)). Prior public meetings have generally been held at Ventura 
City Hall, 501 Poli Street, Ventura, California 93001. Future public meetings will generally be 
held at this location, although some meetings may be moved to other locations depending on 
meeting room availability. Each meeting will have a scheduled time for public comments. 
Information about upcoming meetings can be found on the MBGSA website: 
http://moundbasingsa.org/. 

4.4.3 Local Agency Meetings  

To ensure their constituency is kept informed of the progress of GSP development and 
implementation, the Directors representing MBGSA member agencies, which consist of County 
of Ventura, City of San Buenaventura, and United Water Conservation District have committed 
to providing periodic updates during their regularly scheduled board meetings. These meetings 
offer a chance for the public to receive information and provide comment. Information about 
upcoming meetings is provided on the following agency websites, or by the means each agency 
currently meets its legal noticing requirements, whichever is appropriate:  
 http://cityofventura.ca.gov 

 http://ventura.org (Board of Supervisors)  
 https://www.unitedwater.org/  

4.5 Direct Mailings/Email  
Public meetings and project information will be disseminated through email, from the Agency 
office, or direct mail under special circumstances if requested. This communication will provide 
information for the community, public agencies, and other interested persons/organizations about 

http://moundbasingsa.org/
http://cityofventura.ca.gov/
http://ventura.org/
https://www.unitedwater.org/


 

 8 

milestones, meetings, and the progress of GSP development. Property owners with groundwater 
wells within the basin are notified via email and/or direct mailings about the establishment of an 
interested persons list and given the opportunity to receive future notices.  

4.6 Newsletters/Columns  
Periodic updates may be provided to the Ventura County Star newspapers to advise, educate, and 
inform the public on SGMA implementation.  

4.7 MBGSA Website  
Regular updates on the GSP development and implementation will be provided on the MBGSA 
website.  This information will include maps, timelines, frequently asked questions, groundwater 
information, and schedules/agenda of upcoming meetings and milestones. This information will 
be accessible on the MBGSA website: http://moundbasingsa.org/.  MBGSA staff will update the 
website regularly and invite users to request information or be added to the interested persons 
list.  In addition, general information about SGMA and groundwater conditions will be available 
on UWCD’s website. 

4.8 Database  
To distribute information about GSP development, an email list has been compiled into a 
database of interested persons and stakeholders. The database will be updated regularly to add 
names of attendees at public meetings along with those requesting information via email or the 
through the MBGSA website.  

4.9 Tribal Engagement  
Portions of the Barbareno-Ventureno Band of Chumash are located within the Mound Basin. 
Although the tribe is not subject to the requirements of SGMA, any federally recognized Indian 
tribe may voluntarily participate with GSAs in the preparation or administration of a GSP.  
MBGSA will inform the Tribal Elder, Julie Tumamait, throughout the GSP development process 
and GSP implementation. 

4.10 Additional Opportunities 
Additional opportunities for stakeholder participation (e.g., an advisory committee) will be 
considered as GSP development progresses and as stakeholder interests evolve. 

5 EVALUATION  
To determine the level of success of the Engagement Plan, the MBGSA will implement the 
following measures:  

5.1 Attendance/Participation  
A record of those attending public meetings will be maintained throughout the GSP development 
process. MBGSA will utilize sign-in sheets and request feedback from attendees to determine 
adequacy of public education and productive engagement in the GSP development and 
implementation process. Meeting minutes will also be prepared and will be provided on the 
MBGSA website once approved. 

5.2 Adherence to Schedule  
Public participation in developing projects and management actions for inclusion in the GSP is 

http://moundbasingsa.org/


 

 9 

instrumental to the success of the GSP. Keeping these tasks on schedule will be an important 
indicator of stakeholder involvement.  

5.3 Plan Update 
This Plan will be updated at least annually. 
  



 

 10 

APPENDIX A 
 

TABLE 1 
 

 
 

During GSA Formation:  
“Before electing to be a groundwater sustainability agency... the local 
agency or agencies shall hold a public hearing.”  

Water Code Sec. 
10723 (b)  

“A list of interested parties [shall be] developed [along with] an 
explanation of how their interests will be considered.”  

Water Code Sec. 
10723.8.(a)(4)  

During GSP Development and Implementation:  
“A groundwater sustainability agency may adopt or amend a groundwater 
sustainability plan after a public hearing”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10728.4  

“Prior to imposing or increasing a fee, a groundwater sustainability 
agency shall hold at least one public meeting”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10730(b)(1)  

“The groundwater sustainability agency shall establish and maintain a list 
of persons interested in receiving notices regarding plan preparation, 
meeting announcements, and availability of draft plans, maps, and other 
relevant documents”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10723.4  

“Any federally recognized Indian Tribe... may voluntarily agree to 
participate in the preparation or administration of a groundwater 
sustainability plan or groundwater management plan... A participating 
Tribe shall be eligible to participate fully in planning, financing, and 
management under this part”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10720.3(c)  

“The groundwater sustainability agency shall make available to the public 
and the department a written statement describing the manner in which 
interested parties may participate in the development and implementation 
of the groundwater sustainability plan”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10727.8(a)  

Throughout SGMA Implementation: 
“The groundwater sustainability agency shall consider the interests of all 
beneficial uses and users of groundwater”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10723.2  

“The groundwater sustainability agency shall encourage the active 
involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the 
population within the groundwater basin”.  

Water Code Sec. 
10727.8(a)  



 

 11 

FIGURE 1 
 
 

 



MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 8(b) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Executive Director 
SUBJECT: Approval of 2017 Prop 1 Sustainable Groundwater Planning (SGWP) Grant 

Agreement 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will consider conditionally approving the Prop 1 SGWP Grant Agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
It is recommended that the Board authorize the Board Chair to execute the agreement with 
DWR for the 2017 Prop 1 SGWP Grant, subject to non-substantive changes on the final 
version received from DWR Headquarters. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The GSP Project Manager has negotiated the attached grant agreement with the Department 
of Water Resources (DWR) Basin Point of Contact for an award of up to $583,100.  The 
grant agreement reflects a number of significant changes relative to the grant application.  
These changes are described below. 
 
Pursuant to Board direction, the monitoring well proposed in the grant application has been 
removed from the grant work plan and budget.  However, the Agency remains obligated to 
install the monitoring well in the future as part of the GSP implementation because it was 
listed in the grant application (this requirement is reflected in the grant agreement). The 
Executive Director has applied for DWR Technical Support Services, which, if approved, 
would cover much of the monitoring well costs.   
 
Unfortunately, and contrary to prior information provided by DWR staff, DWR's legal 
counsel recently determined that costs for Groundwater Sustainable Agency (GSA) 
formation and the grant application cannot be included in the grant.  These costs would 
have covered 23% of the cost share requirement.  To remedy this late decision, DWR staff 
are pursuing a cost share reduction (from 50% to 25%) based on the presence of 
disadvantaged communities (DAC's) within the Basin. Neither of these changes impact the 
amount of grant proceeds the Agency will receive.  Rather, these changes impact the 
amount of cost share the Agency must contribute to receive the grant proceeds.  It now 
appears the cost share requirement will be $204,8731.  Overall, the net effect of these 
changes does not significantly alter the overall financial picture of the grant. 
 

                                            
1 Includes $50,000 of in-kind services to be provided by UWCD and approximately $60,000 in Director in-
kind labor. 



Board Agenda Item 8(b) 
October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 
DWR is now also requiring that the grant application tasks be collapsed into a smaller 
number of “budget categories” in the grant agreement. While this should simplify grant 
reporting and invoicing, it will, unfortunately, delay grant reimbursements for some budget 
categories.  This is because cost share must be met for all tasks combined in a given budget 
category before reimbursement occurs (as opposed to receiving grant proceeds early for 
individual tasks that have low cost share thresholds).  In light of this, the GSP PM 
negotiated changes to the cost share allocations between budget categories to frontload as 
much reimbursement as early as possible. Overall, the net effect of these changes is that the 
Agency can expect reimbursement to begin sooner for grant administration, but will have to 
wait somewhat longer for reimbursement to begin for GSP development activities.   
 
Except for the work plan, budget, and schedule (key issues discussed above), all other 
agreement terms are non-negotiable.   
 
In conclusion, staff believes the Agency has negotiated the best possible grant agreement 
terms, all factors considered. 
 

FISCAL SUMMARY 

Approving the grant agreement will result in up to $583,100 in grant revenue over the life 
of the GSP development project.  
 

ATTACHMENT 

A. Draft 2017 Prop 1 SGWP Grant Agreement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action: ___________________________________________________ 
Motion:_____________________  2nd:__________________________ 
K. Brown ___    M. Mobley___    G. Shephard___    J. Chambers___   C. Everts___   



 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
(DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES) AND 

 MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
AGREEMENT NUMBER 4600012692 

2017 PROPOSITION 1 SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER PLANNING (SGWP) GRANT 
 
THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Department of Water Resources of the State 
of California, herein referred to as the "State" or “DWR” and the Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency, a public agency in the State of California, duly organized, existing, and acting pursuant to the laws 
thereof, herein referred to as the "Grantee," which parties do hereby agree as follows: 
1) PURPOSE. The State shall provide funding from the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement 

Act of 2014 (Proposition 1) to assist the Grantee in financing the planning and/or selected project activities 
(Project) that will improve sustainable groundwater management, pursuant to Water Code Section 79700 et 
seq. The provision of State funds pursuant to this Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted to mean 
that the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP), or any components of the GSP, implemented in 
accordance with the Work Plan as set forth in Exhibit A, will be: adopted by the applicable Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (GSA); obtain the necessary desirable results of Sustainable Management Criteria; 
or, meet all of the evaluation and assessment criteria when submitted to the Department of Water 
Resources as required by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and implementing regulations.     

2) TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT. The term of this Grant Agreement begins on the date this Grant 
Agreement is executed by the State, through final payment plus three (3) years unless otherwise 
terminated or amended as provided in this Grant Agreement. However, all work shall be completed in 
accordance with the Schedule as set forth in Exhibit C.  

3) GRANT AMOUNT. The maximum amount payable by the State under this Grant Agreement shall not 
exceed $758,100. 

4) GRANTEE COST SHARE. The Grantee is required to provide a Local Cost Share (non-State funds) of not 
less than 50 percent of the Total Project Cost. The cost share requirement for projects benefiting a 
Severely Disadvantaged Community (SDAC), Disadvantaged Community (DAC), or an Economically 
Distressed Areas (EDA) may be waived or reduced. The Grantee agrees to provide a Local Cost Share 
(non-State funds) for the amount as documented in Exhibit B (Budget). Local Cost Share may include 
Eligible Project Costs directly related to Exhibit A incurred after January 1, 2015. 

5) BASIC CONDITIONS. The State shall have no obligation to disburse money for a project under this Grant 
Agreement until the Grantee has satisfied the following conditions (if applicable):  

1. Prior to execution of this Grant Agreement, selected applicants (Groundwater Sustainability Agency) 
for GSP Development projects must submit evidence of a notification to the public and DWR prior to 
initiating development of a GSP in compliance with California Code of Regulations, title 23, Section 
350 et seq. (GSP Regulations) and Water Code Section 10727.8. 

2. The Grantee must demonstrate compliance with all relevant eligibility criteria as set forth on pages 
7 and 8 of the 2015 Grant Program Guidelines for the SGWP Grant Program.  

3. For the term of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee submits timely reports and all other deliverables 
as required by Paragraph 16, “Submission of Reports” and Exhibit A.  

6) DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS. The State will disburse to the Grantee the amount approved, subject to the 
availability of funds through normal State processes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant 
Agreement, no disbursement shall be required at any time or in any manner which is in violation of, or in 
conflict with, federal or state laws, rules, or regulations, or which may require any rebates to the federal 
government, or any loss of tax-free status on state bonds, pursuant to any federal statute or regulation. Any 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 2 of 33 
 

and all money disbursed to the Grantee under this Grant Agreement shall be deposited in a non-interest 
bearing account and shall be used solely to pay Eligible Project Costs. 

7) ELIGIBLE PROJECT COST. The Grantee shall apply State funds received only to eligible Project Costs in 
accordance with applicable provisions of the law and Exhibit B. Eligible Project Costs include the 
reasonable costs of studies, engineering, design, land and easement acquisition, legal fees, preparation of 
environmental documentation, environmental mitigations, monitoring, project construction, and/or any other 
scope of work efforts as described in Exhibit A. Reimbursable administrative expenses are the necessary 
costs incidental but directly related to the Project included in this Agreement. Work performed on the 
Project after July 1, 2017, but before April 30, 2022 (end date), shall be eligible for reimbursement. 
Costs that are not eligible for reimbursement with State funds cannot be counted as Cost Share. Costs that 
are not eligible for reimbursement include, but are not limited to, the following items: 
1. Costs, other than those noted above, incurred prior to the award date of this Grant.  
2. Costs for preparing and filing a grant application belonging to another solicitation. 
3. Operation and maintenance costs, including post construction performance and monitoring costs. 
4. Purchase of equipment that is not an integral part of a project. 
5. Establishing a reserve fund. 
6. Purchase of water supply. 
7. Monitoring and assessment costs for efforts required after project construction is complete. 
8. Replacement of existing funding sources for ongoing programs. 
9. Support of existing agency requirements and mandates (e.g., punitive regulatory agency requirement). 
10. Purchase of land in excess of the minimum required acreage necessary to operate as an integral part 

of a project, as set forth and detailed by engineering and feasibility studies, or land purchased prior to 
the execution date of this Grant Agreement.  

11. Overhead and indirect costs: “Indirect Costs” means those costs that are incurred for a common or joint 
purpose benefiting more than one cost objective and are not readily assignable to the funded project 
(i.e., costs that are not directly related to the funded project). Examples of Indirect Costs include, but 
are not limited to: central service costs; general administration of the Grantee; non-project-specific 
accounting and personnel services performed within the Grantee’s organization; depreciation or use 
allowances on buildings and equipment; the costs of operating and maintaining non-project-specific 
facilities; tuition and conference fees; and, generic overhead or markup. This prohibition applies to the 
Grantee and any subcontract or sub-agreement for work on the Project that will be reimbursed pursuant 
to this Agreement. 

8) METHOD OF PAYMENT FOR REIMBURSEMENT. After the disbursement requirements in Paragraph 5 
“Basic Conditions” are met, the State will disburse the whole or portions of State funding to the Grantee, 
following receipt from the Grantee via U.S. mail or Express mail delivery of a “wet signature” invoice for 
costs incurred, including Cost Share, and timely Progress Reports as required by Paragraph 16, 
“Submission of Reports.” Payment will be made no more frequently than monthly, in arrears, upon receipt 
of an invoice bearing the Grant Agreement number. The State will notify the Grantee, in a timely manner, 
whenever, upon review of an Invoice, the State determines that any portion or portions of the costs claimed 
are not eligible costs or is not supported by documentation or receipts acceptable to the State. The Grantee 
may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, submit additional documentation 
to the State to cure such deficiency(ies). If the Grantee fails to submit adequate documentation curing the 
deficiency(ies), the State will adjust the pending invoice by the amount of ineligible or unapproved costs. 
Invoices submitted by the Grantee shall include the following information:  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 3 of 33 
 

1. Costs incurred for work performed in implementing the project during the period identified in the particular 
invoice. 

2. Costs incurred for any interests in real property (land or easements) that have been necessarily 
acquired for a project during the period identified in the particular invoice for the implementation of a 
project.  

3. Invoices shall be submitted on forms provided by the State and shall meet the following format 
requirements: 

a. Invoices must contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and the total 
amount due. 

b. Invoices must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in the Exhibit B. The 
amount claimed for salaries/wages/consultant fees must include a calculation formula (i.e., hours or 
days worked times the hourly or daily rate = the total amount claimed). 

c. One set of sufficient evidence (i.e., receipts, copies of checks, time sheets) must be provided for all 
costs included in the invoice. 

d. Each invoice shall clearly delineate those costs claimed for reimbursement from the State’s funding 
amount, as depicted in Paragraph 3, “Grant Amount” and those costs that represent the Grantee’s 
costs, as applicable, in Paragraph 4, “Grantee Cost Share.” 

e. Original signature and date (in ink) of the Grantee’s Project Representative. Submit the original “wet 
signature” copy of the invoice form to the address listed in Paragraph 23, “Project Representative.” 

All invoices submitted shall be accurate and signed under penalty of perjury. Any and all costs submitted 
pursuant to this Agreement shall only be for the tasks set forth herein. The Grantee shall not submit any 
invoice containing costs that are ineligible or have been reimbursed from other funding sources unless 
required and specifically noted as such (i.e., match costs). Any eligible costs for which the Grantee is 
seeking reimbursement shall not be reimbursed from any other source. Double or multiple billing for time, 
services, or any other eligible cost is illegal and constitutes fraud. Any suspected occurrences of fraud, 
forgery, embezzlement, theft, or any other misuse of public funds may result in suspension of 
disbursements of grant funds and/or termination of this Agreement requiring the repayment of all funds 
disbursed hereunder plus interest. Additionally, the State may request an audit pursuant to Exhibit D and 
refer the matter to the Attorney General’s Office or the appropriate district attorney’s office for criminal 
prosecution or the imposition of civil liability. (Civ. Code, §§ 1572-1573; Pen. Code, §§ 470, 489-490.) 

9) ADVANCED PAYMENT. Water Code Section 10551 authorizes advance payment by the State for projects 
included and implemented in an applicable integrated regional water management plan, and when the 
project proponent is a nonprofit organization; a DAC; or the project benefits a DAC. If the project is 
awarded less than $1,000,000 in grant funds, the project proponent may receive an advanced payment of 
up to 50% of the grant award; the remaining 50% of the grant award will be reimbursed in arrears. Within 
ninety (90) calendar days of execution of the Grant Agreement, the Grantee may provide the State an 
Advanced Payment Request. Advanced Payment Requests received ninety-one (91) calendar days after 
execution of this Agreement, or later, will not be eligible to receive advance payment. The Advanced 
Payment Request must contain the following: 
1. Documentation demonstrating that each Local Project Sponsor (if different from the Grantee, as listed 

in Exhibit I) was notified about their eligibility to receive an advanced payment and a response from the 
Local Project Sponsor stating whether it wishes to receive the advanced payment or not. 

2. If the Local Project Sponsor is requesting the advanced payment, the request must include: 
a. A funding plan which shows how the advanced funds will be expended within 18 months of this 

Grant Agreement’s execution (i.e., for what, how much, and when). 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 4 of 33 
 

b. A discussion of the Local Project Sponsor’s financial capacity to complete the project once the 
advance funds have been expended, and include an “Audited Financial Statement Summary Form” 
specific to the DAC. 

3. If a Local Project Sponsor is requesting advanced payment, the Grantee shall also submit a single 
Advance Payment Form Invoice, containing the request for each qualified project, to the State Project 
Manager with “wet signature” and date of the Grantee’s Project Representative, as indicated in 
Paragraph 23, “Project Representative.”  The Grantee shall be responsible for the timely distribution of 
the advanced funds to the respective Local Project Sponsor(s). Within sixty (60) calendar days of 
receiving the Advanced Payment Form Invoice and subject to the availability of funds, the State will 
authorize payment of the advanced funds sought of up to 50% of the grant award for the qualified 
project(s). The Advanced Payment Form Invoice shall be submitted on forms provided by the State and 
shall meet the following format requirements: 
a. Invoice must contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and the total 

amount due. 
b. Invoice must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in Exhibit B. 
c. The State Project Manager will notify the Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of an 

Advance Payment Form Invoice, the State determines that any portion or portions of the costs 
claimed are not eligible costs. The Grantee may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of 
receipt of such notice, submit additional documentation to cure such deficiency(ies). After the 
distribution requirements in Paragraph 5, “Basic Conditions” are met, the State will disburse the 
whole or portions of State funding to the Grantee, following receipt from the Grantee via US mail or 
Express mail delivery of a “wet signature” invoice for costs incurred, including Cost Share, and 
timely Progress Reports as required by Paragraph 16, “Submission of Reports.”    

4. On a quarterly basis, the Grantee will submit an Accountability Report to the State that demonstrates 
how actual expenditures compare with the scheduled budget. The Accountability Report shall include 
the following information: 
a. An itemization of how advanced funds have been expended to-date (Expenditure Summary), 

including documentation that supports the expenditures (e.g., contractor invoices, receipts, 
personnel hours, etc.). Invoices must be itemized based on the budget categories (i.e., tasks) 
specified in Exhibit B. 

b. A funding plan which shows how the remaining advanced funds will be expended. 
c. Documentation that the funds were placed in a non-interest bearing account, including the dates of 

deposits and withdrawals from that account.   
d. The State Project Manager will notify the Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of the 

Expenditure Summary, the State determines that any portion of the expenditures claimed are not 
eligible costs. The Grantee may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such 
notice, submit additional documentation to cure such deficiency(ies). If costs are not consistent with 
the tasks in Exhibit B, the State will reject the claim and remove them from the Expenditure 
Summary. 

5. Once the Grantee has expended all advanced funds, then the method of payment will revert to the 
reimbursement process specified in Paragraph 8, “Method of Payment for Reimbursement.”, and any 
remaining requirements of Paragraph 5, “Basic Conditions.”   

10) REPAYMENT OF ADVANCES. The State may demand repayment from the Grantee of all or any portion of 
the advanced State funding along with interest at the California general obligation bond interest rate at the 
time the State notifies the Grantee, as directed by the State, and take any other action that it deems 
necessary to protect its interests for the following conditions: 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 5 of 33 
 

1. A project is not being implemented in accordance with the provisions of the Grant Agreement. 
2. The Grantee has failed in any other respect to comply with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, and 

if the Grantee does not remedy any such failure to the State’s satisfaction. 
3. Repayment amounts may also include: 

a. Advance funds which have not been expended within 18 months of the Grant Agreement’s 
execution. 

b. Actual costs incurred are not consistent with the activities presented in Exhibit A, not supported, or 
are ineligible. 

c. At the completion of the project, the funds have not been expended. 
For conditions 10) 3.a. and 10) 3.b., repayment may consist of deducting the amount from future 
reimbursement invoices. The State may consider the Grantee’s refusal to repay the requested advanced 
amount a substantial breach of this Grant Agreement subject to the default provisions in Paragraph 12, 
“Default Provisions.”  If the State notifies the Grantee of its decision to demand repayment or withhold the 
entire funding amount from the Grantee pursuant to this paragraph, this Grant Agreement shall terminate 
upon receipt of such notice by the Grantee and the State shall no longer be required to provide funds under 
this Grant Agreement and the Grant Agreement shall no longer be binding on either party.    

11) WITHHOLDING OF DISBURSEMENTS BY THE STATE. If the State determines that a project is not being 
implemented in accordance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, or that the Grantee has failed in 
any other respect to comply with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, and if the Grantee does not 
remedy any such failure to the State’s satisfaction, the State may withhold from the Grantee all or any 
portion of the State funding and take any other action that it deems necessary to protect its interests. 
Where a portion of the State funding has been disbursed to the Grantee and the State notifies the Grantee 
of its decision not to release funds that have been withheld pursuant to Paragraph 13, “Continuing 
Eligibility,” the portion that has been disbursed shall thereafter be repaid immediately with interest at the 
California general obligation bond interest rate at the time the State notifies the Grantee, as directed by the 
State. The State may consider the Grantee’s refusal to repay the requested disbursed amount a contract 
breach subject to the default provisions in Paragraph 12, “Default Provisions.” If the State notifies the 
Grantee of its decision to withhold the entire funding amount from the Grantee pursuant to this paragraph, 
this Grant Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by the Grantee and the State shall no 
longer be required to provide funds under this Grant Agreement and the Grant Agreement shall no longer 
be binding on either party. 

12) DEFAULT PROVISIONS. The Grantee will be in default under this Grant Agreement if any of the following 
occur: 
1. Substantial breaches of this Grant Agreement, or any supplement or amendment to it, or any other 

agreement between the Grantee and the State evidencing or securing the Grantee’s obligations; 
2. Making any false warranty, representation, or statement with respect to this Grant Agreement or the 

application filed to obtain this Grant Agreement; 
3. Failure to operate or maintain project in accordance with this Grant Agreement.  
4. Failure to make any remittance required by this Grant Agreement. 
5. Failure to comply with Labor Compliance Plan requirements. 
6. Failure to submit timely progress reports. 
7. Failure to routinely invoice the State. 
8. Failure to meet any of the requirements set forth in Paragraph 13, “Continuing Eligibility.” 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 6 of 33 
 

Should an event of default occur, the State shall provide a notice of default to the Grantee and shall give 
the Grantee at least ten (10) calendar days to cure the default from the date the notice is sent via first-class 
mail to the Grantee. If the Grantee fails to cure the default within the time prescribed by the State, the State 
may do any of the following: 
9. Declare the funding be immediately repaid, with interest, which shall be equal to the State of California 

general obligation bond interest rate in effect at the time of the default. 
10. Terminate any obligation to make future payments to the Grantee. 
11. Terminate the Grant Agreement. 
12. Take any other action that it deems necessary to protect its interests.  
In the event the State finds it necessary to enforce this provision of this Grant Agreement in the manner 
provided by law, the Grantee agrees to pay all costs incurred by the State including, but not limited to, 
reasonable attorneys' fees, legal expenses, and costs.  

13) CONTINUING ELIGIBILITY. The Grantee must meet the following ongoing requirement(s) to remain 
eligible to receive State funds: 
1. An urban water supplier that receives grant funds pursuant to this Grant Agreement must maintain 

compliance with the Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMP; Wat. Code, § 10610 et seq.) and 
Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (Wat. Code, § 10608 et seq.) by doing the following: 
a. Have submitted their 2015 UWMP and had it deemed consistent by DWR. If the 2015 UWMP has 

not been submitted to DWR funding disbursements to the urban water supplier will cease until the 
2015 UWMP is submitted. If the 2015 UWMP is deemed inconsistent by DWR, the urban water 
supplier will be ineligible to receive funding disbursements until the inconsistencies are addressed 
and DWR deems the UWMP consistent. For more information, visit the following website: 
https://www.water.ca.gov/Programs/Water-Use-And-Efficiency/Urban-Water-Use-Efficiency/Urban-
Water-Management-Plans. 

b. All urban water suppliers must submit documentation that demonstrates they are meeting the 2015 
interim gallons per capita per day (GPCD) target. If not meeting the interim target, the Grantee must 
submit a schedule, financing plan, and budget for achieving the GPCD target, as required pursuant 
to Water Code Section 10608.24. Urban water suppliers that did not meet their 2015 interim GPCD 
target must also submit annual reports that include a schedule, financing plan, and budget for 
achieving the GPCD target by June 30 of each year.  

2. An agricultural water supplier receiving grant funding must: 
a. Comply with Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction requirements outlined in Water Code 

Section 10608, et seq. Submit to the State a schedule, financing plan, and budget for 
implementation of the efficient water management practices, required pursuant to Water Code 
Section 10608.48. 

b. Have their Agricultural Water Management Plan (AWMP) deemed consistent by DWR. To maintain 
eligibility and continue funding disbursements, an agricultural water supply must have their 2015 
AWMP identified on the State’s website. For more information, visit the following website: 
https://www.water.ca.gov/Work-With-Us/Grants-And-Loans/Agriculture-Water-Use-Efficiency.  

3. The Grantee diverting surface water must maintain compliance with diversion reporting requirements as 
outlined in Part 5.1 of Division 2 of the Water Code. 

4. If applicable, the Grantee must demonstrate compliance with the Groundwater Management Act set 
forth on pages 7 and 8 of the 2015 SGWP Grant Program Guidelines, dated October 2015. 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 7 of 33 
 

5. Grantees that have been designated as monitoring entities under the California Statewide Groundwater 
Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) Program must maintain reporting compliance, as required by Water 
Code Section 10932 and the CASGEM Program. 

14) PERMITS, LICENSES, APPROVALS, AND LEGAL OBLIGATIONS. The Grantee shall be responsible for 
obtaining any and all permits, licenses, and approvals required for performing any work under this Grant 
Agreement, including those necessary to perform design, construction, or operation and maintenance of 
the Project(s). The Grantee shall be responsible for observing and complying with any applicable federal, 
state, and local laws, rules or regulations affecting any such work, specifically those including, but not 
limited to, environmental, procurement, and safety laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances. The Grantee 
shall provide copies of permits and approvals to the State. 

15) RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. If applicable, the Grantee is solely responsible for design, construction, and 
operation and maintenance of projects within the work plan. Review or approval of plans, specifications, bid 
documents, or other construction documents by the State is solely for the purpose of proper administration 
of funds by the State and shall not be deemed to relieve or restrict responsibilities of the Grantee under this 
Grant Agreement. 

16) SUBMISSION OF REPORTS. The submittal and approval of all reports is a requirement for the successful 
completion of this Grant Agreement. Reports shall meet generally accepted professional standards for 
technical reporting and shall be proofread for content, numerical accuracy, spelling, and grammar prior to 
submittal to the State. All reports shall be submitted to the State’s Project Manager, and shall be submitted 
via Department of Water Resources (DWR) “Grant Review and Tracking System” (GRanTS). If requested, 
the Grantee shall promptly provide any additional information deemed necessary by the State for the 
approval of reports. Reports shall be presented in the formats described in the applicable portion of Exhibit 
F. The timely submittal of reports is a requirement for initial and continued disbursement of State funds. 
Submittal and subsequent approval by the State of a Project Completion Report is a requirement for the 
release of any funds retained for such project. 
1. Progress Reports: The Grantee shall submit Progress Reports to meet the State’s requirement for 

disbursement of funds. Progress Reports shall be uploaded via GRanTS, and the State’s Project 
Manager notified of upload. Progress Reports shall, in part, provide a brief description of the work 
performed, Grantees activities, milestones achieved, any accomplishments and any problems 
encountered in the performance of the work under this Grant Agreement during the reporting period. 
The first Progress Report should be submitted to the State no later than four (4) months after the 
execution of the agreement, with future reports then due on successive three-month increments based 
on the invoicing schedule and this date.  

2. Groundwater Sustainability Plan: The Grantee shall submit a Final Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
(GSP) to DWR by the date as specified per the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). 
The GSP shall be formatted, drafted, prepared, and completed as required by the GSP Regulations, 
and in accordance with any other regulations or requirements that are stipulated through SGMA.   

3. Coordination Agreement: The Grantee shall provide the State a copy of the executed Coordination 
Agreement, and all supporting documentation. This condition is only required in basins where GSAs 
develop multiple GSPs pursuant to Water Code Section 10727(b)(3). Refer to the GSP Regulations for 
necessary details and requirements to prepare and submit a Coordination Agreement.    

4. Accountability Report: The Grantee shall prepare and submit to the State an Accountability Report on a 
quarterly basis if the Grantee received an Advanced Payment, consistent with the provisions in 
Paragraph 9, “Advanced Payment.”   

5. Completion Report: The Grantee shall prepare and submit to the State a separate Completion Report 
for each project or component included in Exhibit A. The Grantee shall submit a Completion Report 
within ninety (90) calendar days of project/component completion. Each Completion Report shall 
include, in part, a description of actual work done, any changes or amendments to each project, and a 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 8 of 33 
 

final schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress, copies of any final documents or 
reports generated or utilized during a project. The Completion Report shall also include, if applicable for 
Implementation Project(s), certification of final project by a registered civil engineer, consistent with 
Exhibit D. A “Certification of Project Completion” form will be provided by the State. 

6. Grant Completion Report: Upon completion of the Project included in Exhibit A, the Grantee shall 
submit to the State a Grant Completion Report. The Grant Completion Report shall be submitted within 
ninety (90) calendar days of submitting the Completion Report for the final component or project to be 
completed under this Grant Agreement. The Grant Completion Report shall include reimbursement 
status, a brief description of each component completed, and how those components will further the 
goals of the GSP and sustainable groundwater. Retention for the last component, or project, to be 
completed as part of this Grant Agreement will not be disbursed until the Grant Completion Report is 
submitted to be approved by the State.   

17) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PROJECT. For the useful life of construction and implementation 
projects (pertinent to Implementation Projects) and in consideration of the funding made by the State, the 
Grantee agrees to ensure or cause to be performed the commencement and continued operation of the 
project, and shall ensure or cause the project to be operated in an efficient and economical manner; shall 
ensure all repairs, renewals, and replacements necessary to the efficient operation of the same are 
provided; and shall ensure or cause the same to be maintained in as good and efficient condition as upon 
its construction, ordinary and reasonable wear and depreciation excepted. The State shall not be liable for 
any cost of such maintenance, management, or operation. The Grantee or their successors may, with the 
written approval of the State, transfer this responsibility to use, manage, and maintain the property. For 
purposes of this Grant Agreement, “useful life” means period during which an asset, property, or activity is 
expected to be usable for the purpose it was acquired or implemented; “operation costs” include direct 
costs incurred for material and labor needed for operations, utilities, insurance, and similar expenses, and  
“maintenance costs” include ordinary repairs and replacements of a recurring nature necessary for capital 
assets and basic structures and the expenditure of funds necessary to replace or reconstruct capital assets 
or basic structures. Refusal by the Grantee to ensure operation and maintenance of the projects in 
accordance with this provision may, at the option of the State, be considered a breach of this Grant 
Agreement and may be treated as default under Paragraph 12, “Default Provisions.” 

18) STATEWIDE MONITORING REQUIREMENTS. The Grantee shall ensure that all groundwater projects and 
projects that include groundwater monitoring requirements are consistent with the Groundwater Quality 
Monitoring Act of 2001 (Wat. Code, § 10780 et seq.) and, where applicable, projects that affect water 
quality shall include a monitoring component that allows the integration of data into statewide monitoring 
efforts, including where applicable, the Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program carried out by the State 
Water Resources Control Board. See Exhibit G for web links and information regarding other State 
monitoring and data reporting requirements. 

19) NOTIFICATION OF STATE. The Grantee shall promptly notify the State, in writing, of the following items:  
1. Events or proposed changes that could affect the scope, budget, or work performed under this Grant 

Agreement. The Grantee agrees that no substantial change in the scope of a project will be 
undertaken until written notice of the proposed change has been provided to the State and the State 
has given written approval for such change. Substantial changes generally include changes to the 
scope of work, schedule or term, and budget.  

2. Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this Grant Agreement and 
provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by the State’s representatives. The Grantee 
shall make such notification at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the event.  

3. Applicable to Implementation Projects only, Final inspection of the completed work on a project by a 
Registered Professional (Civil Engineer, Engineering Geologist, or other State approved 
certified/license Professional), in accordance with Exhibit D. The Grantee shall notify the State’s 
Project Manager of the inspection date at least 14 calendar days prior to the inspection in order to 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 9 of 33 
 

provide the State the opportunity to participate in the inspection. 
20) NOTICES. Any notice, demand, request, consent, or approval that either party desires or is required to give 

to the other party under this Grant Agreement shall be in writing. Notices may be transmitted by any of the 
following means:  
1. By delivery in person. 
2. By certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.  
3. By “overnight” delivery service; provided that next-business-day delivery is requested by the sender. 
4. By electronic means.  
5. Notices delivered in person will be deemed effective immediately on receipt (or refusal of delivery or 

receipt). Notices sent by certified mail will be deemed effective given ten (10) calendar days after the 
date deposited with the U.S. Postal Service. Notices sent by overnight delivery service will be deemed 
effective one business day after the date deposited with the delivery service. Notices sent electronically 
will be effective on the date of transmission, which is documented in writing. Notices shall be sent to the 
addresses listed below. Either party may, by written notice to the other, designate a different address 
that shall be substituted for the one below. 

21) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Upon completion of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee’s performance will 
be evaluated by the State and a copy of the evaluation will be placed in the State file and a copy sent to the 
Grantee. 

22) PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES. The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant Agreement are 
as follows:  

Department of Water Resources 
Arthur Hinojosa 
Chief, Division of Integrated Regional Water 
Management 
P.O. Box 942836 
Sacramento, CA 94236-0001 
Phone: (916) 653-4736 
Email: Arthur.Hinojosa@water.ca.gov  
 

Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Mike Mobley 
 
Board Chair, Mound Basin GSA 
P.O. Box 3544 
Ventura, CA 93006 
Phone: (805) 844-4451 
Email: mikemobley@hotmail.com   

Direct all inquiries to the Project Manager: 
Department of Water Resources 
Eddie Pech, P.E. 
Engineer, Water Resources 
770 Fairmont Avenue, Suite 102 
Glendale, CA 91203-1035 
Phone: (818) 549-2324 
Email: Eduardo.Pech@water.ca.gov 
 

Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Bryan Bondy 
Executive Director 
P.O. Box 3544 
Ventura, CA 93006 
Phone: (805) 212-0484 
Email: Bryan@bindyGroundwater.com    

Either party may change its Project Representative or Project Manager upon written notice to the other 
party. 

23) STANDARD PROVISIONS. The following Exhibits are attached and made a part of this Grant Agreement 
by this reference: 
Exhibit A – Work Plan 
Exhibit B – Budget 

mailto:Arthur.Hinojosa@water.ca.gov
mailto:mikemobley@hotmail.com
mailto:Eduardo.Pech@water.ca.gov
mailto:Bryan@bindyGroundwater.com


 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 10 of 33 
 

Exhibit C – Schedule 
Exhibit D – Standard Conditions 
Exhibit E – Authorizing Resolution Accepting Funds 
Exhibit F – Report Formats and Requirements 
Exhibit G – Requirements for Data Submittal 
Exhibit H – State Audit Document Requirements and Cost Share Guidelines for Grantees 
Exhibit I – Local Project Sponsors (Not Used) 
Exhibit J – Project Location 

  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 11 of 33 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Grant Agreement. 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
 
______________________________ 
Arthur Hinojosa 
Chief, Division of Integrated Regional Water 
Management 
 
Date__________________________ 

Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 
 
______________________________ 
Mike Mobley 
Board Chair, Mound Basin GSA 
 
Date__________________________ 

 
 
Approved as to Legal Form and Sufficiency 
 
______________________________ 
Robin Brewer, Assistant Chief Counsel 
Office of Chief Counsel 
 

Date__________________________ 

 

  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 12 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT A 
WORK PLAN 

 
Project Title: Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development for the Mound Basin 

 

Project Description: Mound Basin GSA’s Project has one component, to prepare a Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan.  The project includes basin boundary modification, technical studies to address data gaps, 
groundwater model development, foundational basin study, and GSP preparation. 
 
Category (a):  Grant Administration  
Task 1:  Administration 

This task includes managing the Grant Agreement including Agreement execution and Amendment(s) 
(if necessary), communication with DWR on a timely basis, and maintenance of project files related to 
implementation of the grant agreement. In addition, preparing and submitting invoices to DWR, tracking 
task progress and schedule, and managing contracts and budgets associated with the Grant 
Agreement. Also, compiling progress reports for submittal to DWR, prepare and submit quarterly 
progress reports, and the Final Grant Completion Report.   

• Deliverables 
 Invoices and associated backup documentation 
 Progress reports  
 Final Grant Completion Report 

 
Category (b): Model and Studies   
Task 2: Groundwater Model Development 

A numerical groundwater flow model covering the basin was constructed and calibrated and is now 
available for use for GSP development. The model was prepared by a member agency (United Water 
Conservation District). 

• Deliverables 
 Numerical Groundwater Flow Model Description and Documentation. 

 
Task 3: Geophysical Study  

A geophysical study was performed to evaluate geologic structures.  Study was completed by a 
member agency (United Water Conservation District). 

• Deliverables 
 Geophysical Study Report 

 
Task 4:  Mound Basin Study 

Preparation of the “Mound Basin Study,” which includes a hydrogeologic characterization of the Mound 
Basin.  Study is being prepared by member agency (City of Ventura). 

• Deliverables 
 Mound Basin Study Report 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 13 of 33 
 

 
Task 5:  Water Quality and Isotope Study 

Perform a study consisting of groundwater sampling from selected discrete zones of selected 
nested/cluster monitoring wells in the basin, laboratory analysis of general minerals and selected 
isotopes, data analysis, and preparation of a technical memorandum. 

• Deliverables 
 Isotope Technical Memorandum 

 
Category (c): Planning Activities   
Task 6: Basin Boundary Modification 

Submit a basin boundary modification request to address jurisdictional boundary conflicts with the Fox 
Canyon Groundwater Management Agency (FCGMA) to the south and the adjudicated Santa Paula 
Subbasin of the Santa Clara River Valley Basin to the east.  The basin boundary modification will also 
address the aquifer outcrop on the northern edge of the basin, which currently does not align with local 
geologic mapping. The request will be submitted via DWR’s Basin Boundary Modification Request 
System (BBMRS). 

• Deliverables 
 Basin Boundary Modification Request (to be submitted via BBMRS). 

 
Task 7: Organizational Activities 

Develop a Stakeholder Engagement Plan that will address noticing, communicating with and 
incorporating input from stakeholders, public agencies, and other interested parties during the 
preparation of the GSP. Outreach strategies along with roles and responsibilities will also be identified 
in the plan. This task also includes submitting the GSP Initial Notification to DWR, retaining other 
expertise needed on the GSP preparation team, and assessment of the funding plan over the term of 
the project. 

• Deliverables 
 Stakeholder Engagement Plan 
 GSP Initial Notification (to be submitted via the SGMA Portal). 

 
 
Task 8:  Stakeholder Outreach and Engagement 

The Stakeholder Engagement Plan will be implemented, including noticing and soliciting input from the 
stakeholders and other interested parties during preparation of the GSP.  This task covers staff and/or 
consultant time labor for outreach activities only. Labor for meeting attendance and addressing 
comments are embedded in the various GSP development tasks. 

• Deliverables 
 Outreach materials 
 Meeting Notices and Agendas 

 
Category (d): GSP Development 
Task 9: GSP Development and Preparation 

Develop a Groundwater Sustainability Plan to include, at a minimum, the sections listed and described 
below. 

 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 14 of 33 
 

1. Description of the Plan 
Includes a summary of jurisdictional areas and other features, water resources monitoring and 
management programs as well as a summary of well permitting processes and a map illustrating 
current well density, land use elements or topical categories of applicable general plans, additional 
GSP elements, and notice and communication. 

2. Basin Setting 
Includes a hydrogeologic conceptual model, current and historical groundwater conditions as well 
as address the basin’s groundwater elevation trends overtime, water budget information, and any 
proposed management areas. 

3. Sustainable Management Criteria 
Includes sustainability goal, measurable objectives, minimum thresholds, undesirable results, and 
monitoring network.  

4. Project and Management Actions 
Includes description of any specific project and management actions that will be implemented to 
address undesirable, results, minimum thresholds, and measurable objectives.  

5. Plan Implementation 
Includes description of the approach, schedule, and approximate costs of implementing the GSP. 
Will also propose a multi-level monitoring well to evaluate groundwater-surface interaction in the 
southwestern portion of the basin, if necessary, and describe the GSA’s plan for annual reporting 
and process for completing periodic GSP evaluations. 

6. GSP Introduction, Executive Summary References, and Appendices 
Includes preparing the introductory chapter of the GSP, the executive summary, references section, 
and appendices.  

• Deliverables 
 Draft GSP 

 
Task 10: GSP Reviews and Approvals and Final Document Preparation 

Prepare a final GSP document. Comments on a preliminary final draft will be solicited from 
stakeholders during a 90-day comment period.  After being updated in response to comments, an 
updated draft GSP will be presented to the MBGSA Board, at which time the Board may choose to 
adopt or issue another draft for public comment.  After receiving approval from the Board, the final GSP 
will be submitted to DWR and posted on MBGSA’s website. 

• Deliverables 
 Proof of Final GSP submittal to DWR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 15 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT B 
BUDGET 

 

Project Budget  

Project Title:  Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development for the Mound Basin 

Budget Category Grant 
Amount 

Required 
Cost Share 
(non-state 
source)* 

Other Cost 
Share** Total Cost 

(a) Grant Administration  $80,000 $0 $0 $80,000 

(b) Model and Studies $39,600 $133,970 $0 $173,570 

(c) Planning Activities $10,600 $12,500 $0 $23,100 

(d) GSP Development $452,900 $58,403 $157,797 $669,100 

TOTAL COSTS $583,100 $204,873 $157,797 $945,770 

NOTES: 

*Grantee received a 50% Cost Share Waiver resulting from the needs of DACs and SDACs in the Subbasin. 
**Other Cost Share will come extraction fees 

  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 16 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SCHEDULE 

 

Project Schedule 

Project Title:  Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development for the Mound 
Basin 

Budget Category Start Date End Date 

(a) Grant Administration 5/7/2018 6/30/2022 

 (b) Model and Studies 1/1/2015 12/31/2020 

(c) Planning Activities 1/1/2017 1/31/2022 

(d) GSP Development 9/17/18 1/31/2022 
 

 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 17 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT D 
STANDARD CONDITIONS 

D.1) ACCOUNTING AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDING DISBURSEMENT: 
a) Separate Accounting of Funding Disbursements: The Grantee shall account for the money 

disbursed pursuant to this Grant Agreement separately from all other Grantee funds. The Grantee 
shall maintain audit and accounting procedures that are in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and practices, consistently applied. The Grantee shall keep complete and 
accurate records of all receipts and disbursements on expenditures of such funds. The Grantee 
shall require its contractors or subcontractors to maintain books, records, and other documents 
pertinent to their work in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices. 
Records are subject to inspection by the State at any and all reasonable times. 

b) Disposition of Money Disbursed: All money disbursed pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall be 
deposited in a non-interest bearing account, administered, and accounted for pursuant to the 
provisions of applicable law. 

c) Remittance of Unexpended Funds: The Grantee shall remit to the State any unexpended funds that 
were disbursed to the Grantee under this Grant Agreement and were not used to pay Eligible 
Project Costs within a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the final disbursement from the State 
to the Grantee of funds or, within thirty (30) calendar days of the expiration of the Grant Agreement, 
whichever comes first. 

D.2) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CREDIT AND SIGNAGE: The Grantee shall include appropriate 
acknowledgement of credit to the State for its support when promoting the Project or using any data 
and/or information developed under this Grant Agreement. Signage shall be posted in a prominent 
location at Project site(s) (if applicable) or at the Grantee’s headquarters and shall include the 
Department of Water Resources color logo and the following disclosure statement: “Funding for this 
project has been provided in full or in part from the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure 
Improvement Act of 2014 and through an agreement with the State Department of Water Resources.”  
The Grantee shall also include in each of its contracts for work under this Agreement a provision that 
incorporates the requirements stated within this paragraph. 

D.3) AMENDMENT: This Grant Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the 
Parties, except insofar as any proposed amendments are in any way contrary to applicable law. 
Requests by the Grantee for amendments must be in writing stating the amendment request and the 
reason for the request. The State shall have no obligation to agree to an amendment. 

D.4) AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: By signing this Grant Agreement, the Grantee assures the 
State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et 
seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and 
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 

D.5) AUDITS: The State reserves the right to conduct an audit at any time between the execution of this 
Grant Agreement and the completion of the Project, with the costs of such audit borne by the State. 
After completion of the Project, the State may require the Grantee to conduct a final audit to the State’s 
specifications, at the Grantee’s expense, such audit to be conducted by and a report prepared by an 
independent Certified Public Accountant. Failure or refusal by the Grantee to comply with this provision 
shall be considered a breach of this Grant Agreement, and the State may elect to pursue any remedies 
provided in Paragraph 12 or take any other action it deems necessary to protect its interests. 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, the Grantee shall be subject to the examination and 
audit by the State for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Grant Agreement with 
respect of all matters connected with this Grant Agreement, including but not limited to, the cost of 
administering this Grant Agreement. All records of the Grantee or its contractor or subcontractors shall 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 18 of 33 
 

be preserved for this purpose for at least three (3) years after receipt of the final disbursement under 
this Agreement. If an audit reveals any impropriety, the Bureau of State Audits or the State Controller’s 
Office may conduct a full audit of any or all of the Funding Recipient’s activities. (Wat. Code, § 79708, 
subd. (b).) 

D.6) BUDGET CONTINGENCY: If the Budget Act of the current year covered under this Grant Agreement 
does not appropriate sufficient funds for this program, this Grant Agreement shall be of no force and 
effect. This provision shall be construed as a condition precedent to the obligation of the State to make 
any payments under this Grant Agreement. In this event, the State shall have no liability to pay any 
funds whatsoever to the Grantee or to furnish any other considerations under this Grant Agreement and 
the Grantee shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of this Grant Agreement. Nothing in this 
Grant Agreement shall be construed to provide the Grantee with a right of priority for payment over any 
other Grantee. If funding for any fiscal year after the current year covered by this Grant Agreement is 
reduced or deleted by the Budget Act, by Executive Order, or by order of the Department of Finance, 
the State shall have the option to either cancel this Grant Agreement with no liability occurring to the 
State, or offer a Grant Agreement amendment to the Grantee to reflect the reduced amount. 

D.7) CEQA: Activities funded under this Grant Agreement, regardless of funding source, must be in 
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). (Pub. Resources Code, § 21000 et 
seq.)  Any work that is subject to CEQA and funded under this Grant Agreement shall not proceed until 
documents that satisfy the CEQA process are received by the State’s Project Manager and the State 
has completed its CEQA compliance. Work funded under the Grant Agreement subject to a CEQA 
document shall not proceed until and unless approved by the State Project Manager. Such approval is 
fully discretionary and shall constitute a condition precedent to any work for which it is required. If 
CEQA compliance by the Grantee is not complete at the time the State signs this Agreement, once the 
State has considered the environmental documents, it may decide to require changes, alterations, or 
other mitigation to the Project; or to not fund the Project. Should the State decide to not fund the 
Project, this Agreement shall be terminated in accordance with Paragraph 12.     

D.8) CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT: The Grantee acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract 
Code Section 7110, that: 
a) The Grantee recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully 

comply with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support enforcement, 
including, but not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings assignment 
orders, as provided in Family Code Section 5200 et seq.; and 

b) The Grantee, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of 
all employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry 
maintained by the California Employment Development Department. 

D.9) CLAIMS DISPUTE: Any claim that the Grantee may have regarding performance of this Agreement 
including, but not limited to, claims for additional compensation or extension of time, shall be submitted 
to the DWR Project Representative, within thirty (30) days of the Grantee’s knowledge of the claim. The 
State and the Grantee shall then attempt to negotiate a resolution of such claim and process an 
amendment to this Agreement to implement the terms of any such resolution. 

D.10) COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND PROCUREMENTS: The Grantee shall comply with all applicable laws 
and regulations regarding securing competitive bids and undertaking competitive negotiations in the 
Grantee’s contracts with other entities for acquisition of goods and services and construction of public 
works with funds provided by the State under this Grant Agreement. 

D.11) COMPUTER SOFTWARE: The Grantee certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place 
to ensure that State funds will not be used in the performance of this Grant Agreement for the 
acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws. 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 19 of 33 
 

D.12) CONFLICT OF INTEREST: All participants are subject to state and federal conflict of interest laws. 
Failure to comply with these laws, including business and financial disclosure provisions, will result in 
the application being rejected and any subsequent contract being declared void. Other legal action may 
also be taken. Applicable statutes include, but are not limited to, Government Code Section 1090 and 
Public Contract Code Sections 10410 and 10411, for State conflict of interest requirements. 
a) Current State Employees: No State officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity, or 

enterprise from which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any State agency, unless the employment, activity, or enterprise is 
required as a condition of regular State employment. No State officer or employee shall contract on 
his or her own behalf as an independent contractor with any State agency to provide goods or 
services. 

b) Former State Employees: For the two-year period from the date he or she left State employment, 
no former State officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of 
the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements, or any part of the decision-making process 
relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any State agency. For the twelve-month 
period from the date he or she left State employment, no former State officer or employee may 
enter into a contract with any State agency if he or she was employed by that State agency in a 
policy-making position in the same general subject area as the proposed contract within the twelve-
month period prior to his or her leaving State service. 

c) Employees of the Grantee: Employees of the Grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of 
law pertaining to conflicts of interest, including but not limited to any applicable conflict of interest 
provisions of the California Political Reform Act. (Gov. Code, § 87100 et seq.) 

d) Employees and Consultants to the Grantee: Individuals working on behalf of the Grantee may be 
required by DWR to file a Statement of Economic Interests (Fair Political Practices Commission 
Form 700) if it is determined that an individual is a consultant for Political Reform Act purposes. 

D.13) DELIVERY OF INFORMATION, REPORTS, AND DATA: The Grantee agrees to expeditiously provide 
throughout the term of this Grant Agreement, such reports, data, information, and certifications as may 
be reasonably required by the State. 

D.14) DISPOSITION OF EQUIPMENT: The Grantee shall provide to the State, not less than 30 calendar days 
prior to submission of the final invoice, an itemized inventory of equipment purchased with funds 
provided by the State. The inventory shall include all items with a current estimated fair market value of 
more than $5,000.00 per item. Within 60 calendar days of receipt of such inventory the State shall 
provide the Grantee with a list of the items on the inventory that the State will take title to. All other 
items shall become the property of the Grantee. The State shall arrange for delivery from the Grantee 
of items that it takes title to. Cost of transportation, if any, shall be borne by the State. 

D.15) DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION: Certification of Compliance: By signing this Grant 
Agreement, the Grantee, its contractors or subcontractors hereby certify, under penalty of perjury under 
the laws of State of California, compliance with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1990 (Gov. Code § 8350 et seq.) and have or will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following 
actions: 
a) Publish a statement notifying employees, contractors, and subcontractors that unlawful 

manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited 
and specifying actions to be taken against employees, contractors, or subcontractors for violations, 
as required by Government Code Section 8355. 
 

b) Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program, as required by Government Code Section 8355 to 
inform employees, contractors, or subcontractors about all of the following: 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 20 of 33 
 

i) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, 
ii) The Grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, 
iii) Any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and 
iv) Penalties that may be imposed upon employees, contractors, and subcontractors for drug 

abuse violations. 
c) Provide, as required by Government Code Section 8355, that every employee, contractor, and/or 

subcontractor who works under this Grant Agreement: 
i) Will receive a copy of the Grantee’s drug-free policy statement, and 
ii) Will agree to abide by terms of the Grantee’s condition of employment, contract or subcontract. 

D.16) EASEMENTS: Where the Grantee acquires property in fee title or funds improvements to real property 
already owned in fee by the Grantee using State funds provided through this Grant Agreement, an 
appropriate easement or other title restriction providing for floodplain preservation and agricultural 
and/or wildlife habitat conservation for the subject property in perpetuity, approved by the State, shall 
be conveyed to a regulatory or trustee agency or conservation group acceptable to the State. The 
easement or other title restriction must be in first position ahead of any recorded mortgage or lien on 
the property unless this requirement is waived by the State. 
Where the Grantee acquires an easement under this Agreement, the Grantee agrees to monitor and 
enforce the terms of the easement, unless the easement is subsequently transferred to another land 
management or conservation organization or entity with State permission, at which time monitoring and 
enforcement responsibilities will transfer to the new easement owner. 
Failure to provide an easement acceptable to the State can result in termination of this Agreement.  

D.17) FINAL INSPECTIONS AND CERTIFICATION OF REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL: Upon completion of 
the Project, the Grantee shall provide for a final inspection and certification by a California Registered 
Professional (i.e., Professional Civil Engineer, Engineering Geologist, that the Project has been 
completed in accordance with submitted final plans and specifications and any modifications thereto 
and in accordance with this Grant Agreement. 

D.18) GRANTEE'S RESPONSIBILITY. The Grantee and its representatives shall:  
a) Faithfully and expeditiously perform or cause to be performed all project work as described in 

Exhibit A and in accordance with Project Exhibit B and Exhibit C.  
b) Accept and agree to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions, and written commitments of this 

Grant Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all assurances, declarations, 
representations, and statements made by the Grantee in the application, documents, amendments, 
and communications filed in support of its request for funding.  

c) Comply with all applicable California, federal, and local laws and regulations.  
d) Implement the Project in accordance with applicable provisions of the law.  
e) Fulfill its obligations under the Grant Agreement and be responsible for the performance of the 

Project.  
f) Obtain any and all permits, licenses, and approvals required for performing any work under this 

Grant Agreement, including those necessary to perform design, construction, or operation and 
maintenance of the Project. The Grantee shall provide copies of permits and approvals to the State. 

g) Be solely responsible for design, construction, and operation and maintenance of projects within the 
work plan. Review or approval of plans, specifications, bid documents, or other construction 
documents by the State is solely for the purpose of proper administration of funds by the State and 
shall not be deemed to relieve or restrict responsibilities of the Grantee under this Agreement. 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 21 of 33 
 

h) Be solely responsible for all work and for persons or entities engaged in work performed pursuant to 
this Grant Agreement, including, but not limited to, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, and 
providers of services. The Grantee shall be responsible for any and all disputes arising out of its 
contracts for work on the Project, including but not limited to payment disputes with contractors and 
subcontractors. The State will not mediate disputes between the Grantee and any other entity 
concerning responsibility for performance of work.  

D.19) GOVERNING LAW: This Grant Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California. 

D.20) INCOME RESTRICTIONS: The Grantee agrees that any refunds, rebates, credits, or other amounts 
(including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by the Grantee under this Agreement shall be 
paid by the Grantee to the State, to the extent that they are properly allocable to costs for which the 
Grantee has been reimbursed by the State under this Agreement. 

D.21) INDEMNIFICATION: The Grantee shall indemnify and hold and save the State, its officers, agents, and 
employees, free and harmless from any and all liabilities for any claims and damages (including inverse 
condemnation) that may arise out of the Project and this Agreement, including, but not limited to any 
claims or damages arising from planning, design, construction, maintenance and/or operation of this 
Project and any breach of this Agreement. The Grantee shall require its contractors or subcontractors 
to name the State, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds on their liability insurance 
for activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 

D.22) INDEPENDENT CAPACITY: The Grantee, and the agents and employees of the Grantees, in the 
performance of the Grant Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, 
employees, or agents of the State. 

D.23) INSPECTION OF BOOKS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS: During regular office hours, each of the 
parties hereto and their duly authorized representatives shall have the right to inspect and to make 
copies of any books, records, or reports of either party pertaining to this Grant Agreement or matters 
related hereto. Each of the parties hereto shall maintain and shall make available at all times for such 
inspection accurate records of all its costs, disbursements, and receipts with respect to its activities 
under this Grant Agreement. Failure or refusal by the Grantee to comply with this provision shall be 
considered a breach of this Grant Agreement, and the State may withhold disbursements to the 
Grantee or take any other action it deems necessary to protect its interests. 

D.24) INSPECTIONS OF PROJECT BY STATE: The State shall have the right to inspect the work being 
performed at any and all reasonable times during the term of the Grant Agreement. This right shall 
extend to any subcontracts, and the Grantee shall include provisions ensuring such access in all its 
contracts or subcontracts entered into pursuant to its Grant Agreement with the State. 

D.25) LABOR CODE COMPLIANCE: The Grantee agrees to be bound by all the provisions of the Labor 
Code regarding prevailing wages and shall monitor all contracts subject to reimbursement from this 
Agreement to assure that the prevailing wage provisions of the Labor Code are being met. Current 
Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) requirements may be found at http://www.dir.ca.gov/lcp.asp. 
For more information, please refer to DIR’s Public Works Manual at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlse/ 
PWManualCombined.pdf. The Grantee affirms that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the 
Labor Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or 
to undertake self-insurance, and the Grantee affirms that it will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work under this Agreement and will make its contractors and 
subcontractors aware of this provision. 

D.26) MODIFICATION OF OVERALL WORK PLAN: At the request of the Grantee, the State may at its sole 
discretion approve non-material changes to the portions of Exhibit A which concern the budget and 
schedule without formally amending this Grant Agreement. Non-material changes with respect to the 
budget are changes that only result in reallocation of the budget and will not result in an increase in the 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 22 of 33 
 

amount of the State Grant Agreement. Non-material changes with respect to the Project schedule are 
changes that will not extend the term of this Grant Agreement. Requests for non-material changes to 
the budget and schedule must be submitted by the Grantee to the State in writing and are not effective 
unless and until specifically approved by the State’s Program Manager in writing.  

D.27) NONDISCRIMINATION: During the performance of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee and its 
contractors or subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of sex (gender), sexual orientation, race, color, 
ancestry, religion, creed, national origin (including language use restriction), pregnancy, physical 
disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer/genetic characteristics), 
age (over 40), marital status, and denial of medial and family care leave or pregnancy disability leave. 
The Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of 
their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. The 
Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, § 12990.) and the applicable regulations promulgated there 
under (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 11000 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and 
Housing Commission implementing the California Fair Employment and Housing Act are incorporated 
into this Agreement by reference. The Grantee and its contractors or subcontractors shall give written 
notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective 
bargaining or other agreement. 
The Grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
subcontracts to perform work under the Grant Agreement. 

D.28) OPINIONS AND DETERMINATIONS: Where the terms of this Grant Agreement provide for action to be 
based upon, judgment, approval, review, or determination of either party hereto, such terms are not 
intended to be and shall never be construed as permitting such opinion, judgment, approval, review, or 
determination to be arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable. 

D.29) PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS: If this Grant Agreement includes services in excess of 
$200,000, the Grantee shall give priority consideration in filling vacancies in positions funded by the 
Grant Agreement to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 11200 in 
accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10353. 

D.30) PROHIBITION AGAINST DISPOSAL OF PROJECT WITHOUT STATE PERMISSION: The Grantee 
shall not sell, abandon, lease, transfer, exchange, mortgage, hypothecate, or encumber in any manner 
whatsoever all or any portion of any real or other property necessarily connected or used in conjunction 
with the Project, or with the Grantee’s service of water, without prior permission of the State. The 
Grantee shall not take any action, including but not limited to actions relating to user fees, charges, and 
assessments that could adversely affect the ability of the Grantee to meet its obligations under this 
Grant Agreement, without prior written permission of the State. The State may require that the proceeds 
from the disposition of any real or personal property be remitted to the State. 

D.31) REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: The use by either party of any remedy specified herein for the 
enforcement of this Grant Agreement is not exclusive and shall not deprive the party using such remedy 
of, or limit the application of, any other remedy provided by law. 

D.32) RETENTION: The State shall withhold ten percent (10%) of the funds requested by the Grantee for 
reimbursement of Eligible Project Costs until the Project is completed and Final Project Completion 
Report is approved. Any retained amounts due to the Grantee will be promptly disbursed to the 
Grantee, without interest, upon completion of the Project. 

D.33) RIGHTS IN DATA: The Grantee agrees that all data, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, computer 
programs, operating manuals, notes and other written or graphic work produced in the performance of 
this Grant Agreement shall be made available to the State and shall be in the public domain to the 
extent to which release of such materials is required under the California Public Records Act. (Gov. 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 23 of 33 
 

Code, § 6250 et seq.)  The Grantee may disclose, disseminate and use in whole or in part, any final 
form data and information received, collected and developed under this Grant Agreement, subject to 
appropriate acknowledgement of credit to the State for financial support. The Grantee shall not utilize 
the materials for any profit-making venture or sell or grant rights to a third party who intends to do so. 
The State shall have the right to use any data described in this paragraph for any public purpose. 

D.34) SEVERABILITY: Should any portion of this Grant Agreement be determined to be void or 
unenforceable, such shall be severed from the whole and the Grant Agreement shall continue as 
modified. 

D.35) SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS: This Grant Agreement may be subject to suspension of payments or 
termination, or both if the State determines that: 
a) The Grantee, its contractors, or subcontractors have made a false certification, or 
b) The Grantee, its contractors, or subcontractors violates the certification by failing to carry out the 

requirements noted in this Grant Agreement. 
D.36) SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Grant Agreement and all of its provisions shall apply to and bind 

the successors and assigns of the parties. No assignment or transfer of this Grant Agreement or any 
part thereof, rights hereunder, or interest herein by the Grantee shall be valid unless and until it is 
approved by State and made subject to such reasonable terms and conditions as the State may 
impose.  

D.37) TERMINATION BY GRANTEE: Subject to State approval which may be reasonably withheld, the 
Grantee may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of contractual obligations. In doing so, the 
Grantee must provide a reason(s) for termination. The Grantee must submit all progress reports 
summarizing accomplishments up until termination date. 

D.38) TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: Subject to the right to cure under Paragraph 12, the State may terminate 
this Grant Agreement and be relieved of any payments should the Grantee fail to perform the 
requirements of this Grant Agreement at the time and in the manner herein, provided including but not 
limited to reasons of default under Paragraph 12. 

D.39) TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: The State may terminate this Agreement without cause on 30 days 
advance written notice. The Grantee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred up to the 
date of termination. 

D.40) THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The parties to this Agreement do not intend to create rights in, or 
grant remedies to, any third party as a beneficiary of this Agreement, or any duty, covenant, obligation 
or understanding established herein. 

D.41) TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Grant Agreement. 
D.42) TRAVEL – DAC, EDA, or SDAC PROJECT/COMPONENT: If a Project/Component obtains a DAC, 

EDA, or SDAC Cost Share Waiver, the Grantee may submit travel and per diem costs for eligible 
reimbursement with State funds. Travel includes the reasonable and necessary costs of transportation, 
subsistence, and other associated costs incurred by personnel during the term of this Grant Agreement.  
Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem shall be at rates not to exceed those set by the 
California Department of Human Resources. These rates may be found at:  
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx. Reimbursement will be at the 
State travel and per diem amounts that are current as of the date costs are incurred. No travel outside 
the State of California shall be reimbursed unless prior written authorization is obtained from the State.  
All travel approved expenses will be reimbursed at the percentage rate of the DAC, EDA, or SDAC 
Cost Share Waiver. For example, if the Grantee obtains a 100% Waiver, 100% of all approved travel 
expenses can be invoiced for reimbursement. If the Grantee obtains a 50% Waiver, only 50% of eligible 
travel expenses will be reimbursed by these grant funds.   



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 24 of 33 
 

D.43) TRAVEL – NON-DAC, EDA, or SDAC PROJECT/COMPONENT: The Grantee agrees that travel and 
per diem costs shall NOT be eligible for reimbursement with State funds, unless the Grantee’s service 
area is considered a DAC, EDA, or SDAC. The Grantee also agrees that travel and per diem costs 
shall NOT be eligible for computing Grantee Local Cost Share. Travel includes the costs of 
transportation, subsistence, and other associated costs incurred by personnel during the term of this 
Grant Agreement.   

D.44) UNION ORGANIZING: The Grantee, by signing this Grant Agreement, hereby acknowledges the 
applicability of Government Code Sections 16645 through 16649 to this Grant Agreement. Furthermore, 
the Grantee, by signing this Grant Agreement, hereby certifies that: 
a) No State funds disbursed by this Grant Agreement will be used to assist, promote, or deter union 

organizing. 
b) The Grantee shall account for State funds disbursed for a specific expenditure by this Grant 

Agreement to show those funds were allocated to that expenditure. 
c) The Grantee shall, where State funds are not designated as described in (b) above, allocate, on a 

pro rata basis, all disbursements that support the program. 
d) If the Grantee makes expenditures to assist, promote, or deter union organizing, the Grantee will 

maintain records sufficient to show that no State funds were used for those expenditures and that 
the Grantee shall provide those records to the Attorney General upon request. 

D.45) VENUE: The State and the Grantee hereby agree that any action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
filed and maintained in the Superior Court in and for the County of Sacramento, California, or in the 
United States District Court in and for the Eastern District of California. The Grantee hereby waives any 
existing sovereign immunity for the purposes of this Agreement. 

D.46) WAIVER OF RIGHTS: None of the provisions of this Grant Agreement shall be deemed waived unless 
expressly waived in writing. It is the intention of the parties here to that from time to time either party 
may waive any of its rights under this Grant Agreement unless contrary to law. Any waiver by either 
party of rights arising in connection with the Grant Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver with 
respect to any other rights or matters, and such provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 25 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT E 
AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FUNDS 

 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 26 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT F 
REPORT FORMATS AND REQUIREMENTS 

 
The following reporting formats should be utilized. Please obtain State approval prior to submitting a report in 
an alternative format.  
PROGRESS REPORTS 
Progress reports shall generally use the following format. This format may be modified as necessary to 
effectively communicate information. For the Project, or each component, discuss the following at the task 
level, as organized in Exhibit A: 

• Percent complete estimate. 
• Discussion of work accomplished during the reporting period. 
• Milestones or deliverables completed/submitted during the reporting period. 
• Meetings held or attended. 
• Scheduling concerns and issues encountered that may delay completion of the task. 

For each project, discuss the following at the project level, as organized in Exhibit A: 

• Work anticipated for the next reporting period. 
• Photo documentation, as appropriate. 
• Any schedule or budget modifications approved by DWR during the reporting period. 

COMPLETION REPORT 
The Completion Report shall generally use the following format provided below for each Component or Project 
after completion.    

Executive Summary 
The Executive Summary should include a brief summary of project information and include the 
following items: 

• Brief description of work proposed to be done in the original Grant application.  
• Description of actual work completed and any deviations from Exhibit A. List any official 

amendments to this Grant Agreement, with a short description of the amendment. 
Reports and/or Products 
The following items should be provided, unless already submitted as a deliverable: 

• A copy of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) that meets all the requirements of the GSP 
Regulations (for GSP Development Projects), or verification (e.g., acceptance email, or other 
approved documentation from SGMA), that the GSP was submitted to DWR as required. 

• A copy of any final technical report or study, produced for or utilized in this Project as described in 
the Work Plan  

• Electronic copies of any data collected, not previously submitted 
• Discussion of problems that occurred during the work and how those problems were resolved 
• Final Component schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress 

Additional information that may be applicable for Implementation Projects and/or Components includes the 
following: 

• As-built drawings 
• Final geodetic survey information 
• Project or Component photos 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 27 of 33 
 

 

Cost & Disposition of Funds  
A list showing: 

• Summary of Project costs including the following items: 
o Accounting of the cost of project expenditure 
o Include all internal and external costs not previously disclosed (i.e., additional cost share); and 
o A discussion of factors that positively or negatively affected the project cost and any deviation 

from the original Project cost estimate. 

Additional Information 
• Benefits derived from the Component, with quantification of such benefits provided, applicable for 

Implementation Components. 
• A final project schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress as shown in Exhibit C. 
• Certification from a California Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate) 

that the project was conducted in accordance with the approved work plan and any approved 
modifications thereto.  

 
GRANT COMPLETION REPORT 
The Grant Completion Report shall generally use the following format. This format may be modified as 
necessary to effectively communicate information on the various projects in the SGWP Grant Program funded 
by this Grant Agreement, and includes the following: 

Executive Summary 
The Executive Summary consists of a maximum of ten (10) pages summarizing information for the 
grant as well as the individual components.  
Reports and/or products 
• Brief comparison of work proposed in the original 2017 SGWP Grant application and actual work 

done. 
• Brief description of the Project or components completed and how they achieve either or both of the 

following: 
o Serve SDAC(s) and support groundwater sustainability planning and management in the 

basin (Implementation Projects); and/or 
o Support planning, development, and/or preparation of GSP(s) that will comply with and meet 

the requirements of the GSP Regulations (GSP Development Projects). 
• Identify remaining work and mechanism for their implementation (Implementation Projects). 
• If applicable (e.g., if a DAC, EDA, or SDAC Cost Share Waiver was approved), a discussion of the 

benefits to DAC, EDA, and/or SDAC as part of this Grant Agreement. 
 

Cost & Disposition of Funds Information 
• A summary of final funds disbursement for the Project, or each component. 

 
 

  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 28 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT G 
REQUIREMENTS FOR DATA SUBMITTAL 

 
Surface and Groundwater Quality Data: 
Groundwater quality and ambient surface water quality monitoring data that include chemical, physical, or 
biological data shall be submitted to the State as described below, with a narrative description of data 
submittal activities included in project reports, as described in Exhibit F. 
Surface water quality monitoring data shall be prepared for submission to the California Environmental 
Data Exchange Network (CEDEN). The CEDEN data templates are available on the CEDEN website. 
Inclusion of additional data elements described on the data templates is desirable. Data ready for 
submission should be uploaded to your CEDEN Regional Data Center via the CEDEN website. (CEDEN 
website: http://www.ceden.org).   
If a project’s Work Plan contains a groundwater ambient monitoring element, groundwater quality 
monitoring data shall be submitted to the State for inclusion in the State Water Resources Control Board’s 
Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment (GAMA) Program Information on the GAMA Program 
can be obtained at: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/gama/. If further information is 
required, the Grantee can contact the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) GAMA Program. A 
listing of SWRCB staff involved in the GAMA program can be found at: 
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/gama/contact.shtml 
Groundwater Level Data 
The Grantee shall submit to DWR groundwater level data collected as part of this grant. Water level data 
must be submitted using the California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) online 
data submission system. The Grantee should use their official CASGEM Monitoring Entity or Cooperating 
Agency status to gain access to the online submittal tool and submit data. If the data is from wells that are 
not part of the monitoring network, the water level measurements should be classified as voluntary 
measurements in the CASGEM system. If the Grantee is not a Monitoring Entity or Cooperating Agency, 
please contact your DWR grant project manager for further assistance with data submittal. The activity of 
data submittal should be documented in appropriate progress or final project reports, as described in 
Exhibit F. Information regarding the CASGEM program can be found at: 
http://www.water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Groundwater-Elevation-Monitoring--
CASGEM 

http://www.ceden.org/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/gama/
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/gama/contact.shtml
http://www.water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Groundwater-Elevation-Monitoring--CASGEM
http://www.water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/Groundwater-Elevation-Monitoring--CASGEM


 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 29 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT H 
STATE AUDIT DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS AND COST SHARE GUIDELINES FOR GRANTEES 

 
The following provides a list of documents typically required by State Auditors and general guidelines for 
Grantees. List of documents pertains to both State funding and the Grantee’s Cost Share and details the 
documents/records that State Auditors would need to review in the event of this Grant Agreement is audited. 
Grantees should ensure that such records are maintained for each funded project.  
State Audit Document Requirements 
Internal Controls 
1. Organization chart (e.g., Agency’s overall organization chart and organization chart for the State funded 

Program/Project). 
2. Written internal procedures and flowcharts for the following: 

a) Receipts and deposits 
b) Disbursements 
c) State reimbursement requests 
d) Expenditure tracking of State funds 
e) Guidelines, policy, and procedures on State funded Program/Project 

3. Audit reports of the Agency internal control structure and/or financial statements within the last two years. 
4. Prior audit reports on the State funded Program/Project. 
State Funding: 
1. Original Grant Agreement, any amendment(s) and budget modification documents. 
2. A listing of all bond-funded grants, loans, or subventions received from the State. 
3. A listing of all other funding sources for each Program/Project. 
Contracts: 
1. All subcontractor and consultant contracts and related or partners documents, if applicable. 
2. Contracts between the Agency and member agencies as related to the State funded Program/Project. 
Invoices: 
1. Invoices from vendors and subcontractors for expenditures submitted to the State for payments under the 

Grant Agreement. 
2. Documentation linking subcontractor invoices to State reimbursement, requests and related Grant 

Agreement budget line items. 
3. Reimbursement requests submitted to the State for the Grant Agreement. 
Cash Documents: 
1. Receipts (copies of warrants) showing payments received from the State. 
2. Deposit slips (or bank statements) showing deposit of the payments received from the State. 
3. Cancelled checks or disbursement documents showing payments made to vendors, subcontractors, 

consultants, and/or agents under the grants or loans. 
4. Bank statements showing the deposit of the receipts. 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 30 of 33 
 

Accounting Records: 
1. Ledgers showing entries for the Grantee’s receipts and cash disbursements. 
2. Ledgers showing receipts and cash disbursement entries of other funding sources. 
3. Bridging documents that tie the general ledger to requests for Grant Agreement reimbursement. 
Administration Costs: 
1. Supporting documents showing the calculation of administration costs. 
Personnel: 
1. List of all contractors and Agency staff that worked on the State funded Program/Project. 
2. Payroll records including timesheets for contractor staff and the Agency personnel who provided services 

charged to the program 
Project Files: 
1. All supporting documentation maintained in the project files. 
2. All Grant Agreement related correspondence. 
Cost Share Guidelines 
Cost Share consists of non-State funds, including in-kind services. In-kind services are defined as work 
performed (i.e., dollar value of non-cash contributions) by the Grantee (and potentially other parties) directly 
related to the execution of the funded project. Examples include volunteer services, equipment use, and use of 
facilities. The cost of in-kind service can be counted as cost share in-lieu of actual funds (or revenue) provided 
by the Grantee. Other cost share and in-kind service eligibility conditions may apply. Provided below is 
guidance for documenting cost share with and without in-kind services. 
1. Although tracked separately, in-kind services shall be documented and, to the extent feasible, supported by 

the same methods used by the Grantee for its own employees. Such documentation should include the 
following: 

a. Detailed description of the contributed item(s) or service(s) 
b. Purpose for which the contribution was made (tied to project work plan) 
c. Name of contributing organization and date of contribution 
d. Real or approximate value of contribution. Who valued the contribution and how was the value 

determined? (e.g., actual, appraisal, fair market value, etc.). Justification of rate. (See item #2, 
below) 

e. Person’s name and the function of the contributing person 
f. Number of hours contributed 
g. If multiple sources exist, these should be summarized on a table with summed charges 
h. Source of contribution if it was provided by, obtained with, or supported by government funds  

2. Rates for volunteer or in-kind services shall be consistent with those paid for similar work in the Grantee’s 
organization. For example, volunteer service of clearing vegetation performed by an attorney shall be 
valued at a fair market value for this service, not the rate for professional legal services. In those instances 
in which the required skills are not found in the recipient organization, rates shall be consistent with those 
paid for similar work in the labor market. Paid fringe benefits that are reasonable, allowable and allocable 
may be included in the valuation. 

3. Cost Share contribution (including in kind services) shall be for costs and services directly attributed to 
activities included in the Grant Agreement. These services, furnished by professional and technical 



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 31 of 33 
 

personnel, consultants, and other skilled and unskilled labor may be counted as in-kind if the activities are 
an integral and necessary part of the project funded by the Grant Agreement.  

4. Cash contributions made to a project shall be documented as revenue and in-kind services as expenditure. 
These costs should be tracked separately in the Grantee’s accounting system. 

  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 32 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT I 
LOCAL PROJECT SPONSORS 

(NOT USED) 
  



 
Grant Agreement No. 4600012692 

Page 33 of 33 
 

EXHIBIT J 
PROJECT LOCATION 

 



MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 8(c) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Erin Gorospe, UWCD 
SUBJECT: Approval of Waiver of Late Fees and Penalties relating to Groundwater 

Extraction Fees 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will consider approving a one-time Waiver of Late Fees and Penalties relating to 
Groundwater Extraction Fees for accounts that are paid before December 31, 2018. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the one-time Waiver of Late Fees and Penalties. 
 
BACKGROUND 

Per Article 10.1(a) of the bylaws, Owners or Operators who fail to pay their groundwater 
extraction fee within 30 days are subject to interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per 
month on the delinquent amount of the groundwater fee and a ten percent (10%) penalty.  
Article 10.1(f) authorizes the waiver of any interest payments, penalties or overdue fees by 
an affirmative vote of three (3) directors. 
 
The first semiannual billing, covering the period of January 1 through June 30, 2018, was 
sent out to Owners and Operators on September 1, 2018 and due on October 1, 2018.  As of 
October 9, 2018, $34,758.84 is still outstanding while $44,056.80 has been collected.  
These accounts are subject to penalties totaling $3,475.88 and 1% interest per month of 
$347.59.  Because this is the first time Owners and Operators have received these invoices 
and may not have included funding for the payment of these invoices in their budgets, staff 
recommends waiving penalties and interest for accounts that are paid before December 31, 
2018. 
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

By approving the waiver of late fees, the Agency is forgoing up to $3,475.88 in penalty 
revenue and up to $1,042.77 in interest revenue which were not included in the FY 18-19 
budget. 
 
 
Action: ___________________________________________________ 
Motion:_____________________  2nd:__________________________ 
K. Brown ___    M. Mobley___    G. Shephard___    J. Chambers___   C. Everts___   



MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 8(d) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Erin Gorospe, UWCD 
SUBJECT: FY 2018-19 Budget Amendment 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will amending the FY 2018-19 budget for accrual-basis accounting. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Amend the FY 2018-19 budget to reflect budgeted groundwater extraction fees of $194,750 
and remove contributions from member agencies of $105,000 from budgeted revenue. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The budget that was adopted at the August 23, 2018 meeting showed revenues on a cash 
basis.  The use of accrual basis is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Pronouncement 34 for operations that are considered to be enterprise funds.  One of 
the criteria for designation as an enterprise fund is that the establishment of fees and 
charges designed to recover costs, which is the case with the Mound Basin GSA.  Fox 
Canyon Groundwater Management Agency also is considered an enterprise fund and uses 
the accrual basis of accounting.   
 
Groundwater extraction fee revenue for FY 2018-19 was originally budgeted at $204,000 
($74,000 for the period of January to June, 2018 and $130,000 for July to December 2018).  
An accrual based-budget would total $194,750 ($130,000 for July to December 2018 and as 
$64,750 for January to June 2019). 
 
Additionally, the adopted budget included revenue of $105,000 in contributions from 
member agencies.  These contributions are loans and are recorded as liabilities rather than 
revenue.  Staff recommends removing this item from budgeted revenue. 
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

Changing from a cash to accrual-based budget for groundwater extraction fees will have no 
net effect, as it is simply a timing issue.  Reclassifying the contributions from member 
agencies from revenues to liabilities will decrease budgeted fund balance by $105,000.  
There is no cash effect.   
 
 
Action: ___________________________________________________ 
Motion:_____________________  2nd:__________________________ 
K. Brown ___    M. Mobley___    G. Shephard___    J. Chambers___   C. Everts___   



ACCOUNT BUDGET
NUMBER 2018/2019

2 Revenue from Groundwater Extraction Fee 194,750.00$    

4 Reimbursement from DWR Grant 9,540.00 

TOTAL REVENUES 204,290.00          

ACCOUNT BUDGET
NUMBER 2018/2019

1 Executive Director/Project Manager 50,000.00$    
2 Clerk of the Board 20,000.00 
3 Accounting Services 10,000.00 

Total Administrative Cost: 80,000.00 

4 Website Development 2,000.00 
5 Website maintenance 400.00 
6 Audits 7,000.00 
7 Public Outreach/218 publications 1,500.00 
8 Liability Insurance 1,955.00 

9 Routine Legal Counsel 32,400.00 

10 Special Legal Services 10,000.00 
11 Annual Report 1,000.00 
12 DWR filing fees/etc. 500.00 

56,755.00 

13 Water Quality and Isotope Study 45,330.00 
14 Basin Boundary Modification 5,000.00 
15 Organizational Activites 11,900.00 
16 GSP Chapter 2:  Plan Area and Basin Setting 52,200.00 
17 Project Administration (Grant Management) -   

Total GSP Activites: 114,430.00 
TOTAL EXPENSES           251,185.00 

(46,895.00)$    

Beginning Working Capital/Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 57,850.90$    
Net Surplus (Shortfall) (46,895.00) 
Cash Advances* 105,000.00 

Projected Ending Working Capital/Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 115,955.90 
Designated for Reserves 25,000.00 
Net Available 90,955.90$    

Administrative Costs  

REVENUES Comments

OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING EXPENSE Comments

Twice per year billing. 
estimated based on GSP tasks for FY 18-19, depends on cost-
share spent by Agency.

MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY
FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019
Proposed Revised Budget (10/15/18)

REVENUES

Estimate 
County of Ventura Information Technology Services
County of Ventura Information Technology Services

Provided by United Water Conservation District via contract

Insure Cal Quote

Provided by United Water Conservation District via contract

PROJECTED FUND BALANCE

Professional Services: 

$270/hr - Agenda review and attend meetings as necessary - 
10hrs per month for July 2018 - June 2019.

GSP Activities: 

Cost assumes $5,000 of UWCD in-kind labor.

Costs are included in administration.

Total Professional Services Cost:

TOTAL REVENUES EXCEEDING EXPENSES 

Cost assumes $22,500 of UWCD in-kind labor.

* Net shortfall of $46,895.00 to be funded by expected cash advances from the City of San Buenaventura and Ventura County Watershed Protection 
District, totaling $105,000.
The proposed repayment dates of the cash advances are December 31, 2021 for the City of San Buenaventura and December 31, 2022 for the Ventura 
County Watershed Protection District.



MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 9(a) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Executive Director 
SUBJECT: GSP Development Options 
 

SUMMARY 

The Executive Director will lead the Directors in a discussion of the various options 
relating to the development of the Agency’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan. 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM 
Board will receive information from the Executive Director concerning GSP Development 
options and provide feedback. 
 

BACKGROUND 

In July 2018, UWCD staff confirmed that the District will contribute $50,000 of in-kind 
labor to MBGSA in the form of technical services. Approximately $5,000 of the in-kind 
labor was allocated to the basin boundary modification and the remaining $45,000 was 
allocated to the plan area and basin setting chapter of the GSP.   
 
During subsequent discussions with the Executive Director, UWCD staff expressed a 
willingness to explore a larger role in the GSP development that would extend beyond the 
$45,000 of in-kind technical services.  Services provided beyond the in-kind limit would be 
provided for a fee to MBGSA.  
 
UWCD technical staff support for developing significant portions of the GSP is an 
excellent potential opportunity for MBGSA.  A demonstrated through completion of a basin 
study in 2012 and the regional groundwater model in 2018, UWCD staff clearly has 
significant relevant experience working in the Mound Basin.  Using UWCD technical staff 
would also result in a significant GSP costs savings (UWCD technical staff fully burdened 
labor rates are approximately 1/2 to 2/3 of private consulting rates, depending on position).   
 
UWCD staff has indicated that they would be comfortable working on technical aspects of 
the GSP, but would like the Executive Director (or other consultant) to take the lead on 
policy issues, such as development sustainable management criteria.  Further discussion 
with UWCD would be needed to better delineate which specific tasks UWCD would be 
willing to perform.   
 
The Executive Director’s contract provides for technical services to assist with GSP 
development, if desired by the Board.  The Executive Director will be involved at some 
level in all tasks anyways and could take the lead on tasks that UWCD is unwilling to lead 



Mound Basin GSA Board Meeting 
October 18, 2018 
Item No. 9a 
Page 2 of 2 
 
for a relatively small incremental cost to the Agency, as compared to hiring another 
consultant.   
 
The above described GSP development approach is believed to be the most cost-effective 
and easily managed approach for preparing the GSP.  However, there are several other 
approaches that could also be considered.  One approach would be to retain a consulting 
firm to prepare the entire GSP. This is believed to be the most expensive approach and 
there would be a risk that costs might exceed the GSP budget.  Another approach would be 
to assign the GSP development responsibility to the Executive Director.  This approach is 
not feasible because the Executive Director does not have sufficient availability to complete 
the GSP on his own.  Any number of hybrid approaches could be considered. 
 
The Executive Director recommends exploring the opportunity with UWCD staff further, 
but is seeking Board and stakeholder feedback before taking further steps. The next steps 
would be to more precisely define UWCDs services, tasks to be led by the Executive 
Director, and any gaps that would need to be filled by others.   
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

None.  
 

ATTACHMENT 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MOUND BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

 

Item No. 9(b) 

 

DATE: October 18, 2018 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Executive Director 
SUBJECT: Ventura’s WaterPure Project Presentation 
 

SUMMARY 

The Board will receive a presentation by City of San Buenaventura staff concerning the 
WaterPure Project. 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEM 
Receive a presentation by City of San Buenaventura staff concerning the WaterPure 
Project. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The City’s proposed WaterPure Project will divert up to 50 to 100 percent of tertiary-
treated water from the Ventura Water Reclamation Facility (VWRF) currently discharged 
to the Santa Clara River Estuary for the potable reuse.  The diversion is required pursuant to 
the Tertiary Treated Flows Consent Decree and Stipulated Dismissal with Heal the Bay and 
Wishtoyo Foundation/Ventura Coastkeeper, effective March 30, 2012 (Consent Decree).  
The potable reuse facilities will include construction of multiple components including an 
Advanced Water Purification Facility (AWPF), a product water conveyance system, 
groundwater injection and extraction system, concentrate discharge facility, and freshwater 
treatment wetlands.  
 
The City is currently considering both direct potable and indirect potable reuse methods. 
Until regulations permitting direct potable reuse (DRP) are available, the project may 
utilize indirect potable reuse methods (IPR), which will involve injecting product water 
from the AWPF into an aquifer for a minimum period of time to satisfy regulatory response 
retention time requirements. Even after DPR regulations are available, the City may find it 
necessary to inject water into an aquifer to balance supply and demand.  The City is 
currently evaluating potential well locations for IPR, including sites within the Mound 
Basin.   
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 

Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT 

A. City Council Admin Report  
 
 
 
 



1

0123456789

Cl1Y Of VENTURA 

f\DMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Agenda Item No.: 

Council Action Date: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Dan Paranick, Interim City Manager 
Kevin Brown, Ventura Water General Manager 

June 28, 2018 

13 

July 9, 2018 

Update on Implementation of the Tertiary Treated Flows 
Consent Decree, the Proposed Potable Reuse Pr0ject and the 
State Water Interconnection 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that City Council receive this report on Ventura's progress in 
implementing the Tertiary Treated Flows Consent Decree and in moving forward with 
Potable Reuse. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION 

April 27, 2009 - City Council authorized an agreement with Carollo Engineers for Special 
Studies for the Santa Clara River Estuary. 

December 12, 2011 - City Council approved the Tertiary Treated Flows Consent Decree 
and Stipulated Dismissal with Wishtoyo Foundation/Ventura Coastkeeper and Heal the 
Bay, Inc. 

February 2012 - City Council approved a Bureau of Reclamation Grant Application for 
the Santa Clara River Estuary Studies in which Ventura Water was awarded $150,000 in 
grant funding. 

October 8, 2012 - City Council approved an extension of the term of Professional Services 
Agreement 2009-18 entitled "Special Studies of the Santa Clara River Estuary" to 
complete the Phase 2 scope of work. 

In 2014 - City Council approved an agreement with Carollo Engineers to develop a work 
plan to implement Phase 3 Estuary Studies (February 2, 2014). City Council authorized 
the City Manager to execute a Letter of Agreement with the Water Research Foundation 
to participate in a collaborative research project to determine the feasibility of and the 



2

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 
Page2 

blending requirements for potable reuse of the Ventura Water Reclamation Facility's 
treated water (August 4, 2014). City Council an agreement with Carollo Engineers for the 
Phase 3 Special Studies for the Santa Clara River Estuary, and an agreement with Aquatic 
Bioassay and Consulting Laboratories (ABC) for related water quality monitoring 
(September 15, 2014). 

In 2016 - City Council approved an agreement with ENS Resources, Inc. for legislative 
lobbyist services and renewed the services on February 13, 2017 to seek funding 
opportunities for water recycling projects in accordance with the Consent Decree 
(January 25, 2016). City Council adopted the 2016-2022 Capital Improvement Plan 
which included pending capital projects for the VenturaWaterPure Advanced Treatment 
Potable Reuse Facility and associated infrastructure (April 21, 2016). City Council 
reviewed and approved the 2016 Comprehensive Water Resources Report, which 
discussed Potable Reuse as a potential additional future supply (June 13, 2016). City 
Council received and filed the VenturaWaterPure Demonstration Facility Preliminary 
Research Results Presentation from Ventura Water (.July 25, 2016). 

In 2017 - City Council approved an agreement with Environmental Science Associates 
(ESA) for CEQA/NEPA Environmental Review Services of the VenturaWaterPure 
Advanced Treatment, Reuse and Diversion Infrastructure Project (March 20, 2017). City 
Council approved Professional Services Agreement with Bondy Groundwater Consulting 
Inc. for Mound Basin Aquifer Storage and Recovery Study and City Council approved an 
agreement with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) for the Conceptual Design of 
Treatment Wetlands (August 7, 2017). 

March 19, 2018 - City Council approved an agreement with Carollo Engineers, Inc. for 
Concentrate Outfall and Desalination Intake Preliminary Feasibility Study for the 
Ventura Water Pure Advanced Treatment, Reuse, and Diversion Infrastructure Project. 

March 26, 2018 - City Council adopted the 2018-2024 Capital Improvement 
Plan which included pending capital projects for the VenturaWaterPure 
Advanced Treatment Potable Reuse Facility and associated infrastructure. 

DISCUSSION 

Wastewater Discharge and the Tertiary Treated Flows Consent Decree 

The Ventura Water Reclamation Facility (VWRF) generally provides approximately 7.5 
million gallons per day (MGD) of tertiary treated wastewater from the City's service area. 
Approximately 7 percent of the water is used to irrigate local golf courses and 
landscaping. The treated water that is not reused is discharged into the Santa Clara River 
Estuary (SCRE). This discharge is regulated by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (LARWQCB) under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES). 



3

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 
Page3 

Under the Water Quality Control Policy for the Enclosed Bays and Estuaries of California, 
discharges of municipal wastewater to enclosed bays and estuaries are to be phased out 
except in circumstances where the discharge is shown to enhance the quality of receiving 
waters. While adopting the VWRF's NPDES permit in 1977, the LARWQCB determined 
that the discharge from the VWRF enhances the Estuary based on the Facilities Plan 
submitted by the City. In 2000, the NPDES permit also described effluent discharge as 
an enhancement and included extensive monitoring requirements and limits designed to 
protect wetlands, the SCRE, and the existing habitat. 

Studies conducted between 2002 and 2007 by the City provided the LARWQCB 
additional information to verify enhancement of discharge. While considering the 
adoption of the 2008 NPDES permit, the LARWQCB received conflicting yet credible 
opinions from various resource agencies and experts who predicted harm to the 
endangered species, habitat, and recreation of the SCRE both with and without 
discharge. The LARWQC determined that it did not have adequate information to 
determine if the discharge was harmful or not and could not determine what negative 
impacts if any would occur in the SCRE if discharge was prohibited. The LARWQCB also 
determined that they lacked the information needed to dispute the previous findings of 
enhancement. Therefore, the LARWQCB required the City to conduct the Phase 1 and 
Phase 2 Estuary Special Studies and an associated stakeholder process. 

An administrative challenge and years of litigation followed the LARWQCB's adoption of 
the VWRF's 2008 NPDES Permit. These challenges were resolved when the City entered 
into the Tertiary Treated Flows Consent Decree and Stipulated Dismissal with Wishtoyo 
Foundation's Ventura Coastkeeper Program (Wishtoyo) and Heal the Bay, effective 
March 30, 2012 ("TTFs Consent Decree"). The settlement's aim was to resolve a long
standing debate about the impact of the tertiary treated water on the sensitive ecology of 
the SCRE, and it outlined common goals and a collaborative process which relies on the 
best available science to decide how to use the reclaimed water produced by the 
wastewater facility in the future (Attachment A). 

The TTFs Consent Decree sets a goal to identify, select, plan, engineer, environmentally 
review, permit, an~ construct by 2025, infrastructure projects that have the capacity to: 

• Eliminate up to 100% of average annual flow of discharges to the SCRE; 

• Divert 50% to 100% of the average annual flow of discharges from the SCRE to 
other recycled and reclaimed water uses; and, 

• If 100% of the diversion flow cannot be used for recycled or reclaimed water uses, 
diversion of the discharge would be to treatment wetlands for further nutrient 
removal. 

The settlement agreement required the City to determine, through scientific analysis, the 
Maximum Ecologically Protective Diversion Volume (MEPDV). That MEPDV may be 
determined either by agreement from the City, Wishtoyo, and Heal the Bay, or by an 



4

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 
Page4 

independent science review panel. After review and recommendation from all resource 
agencies (such as LARWQCB, the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, the National 
Marine Fisheries Service, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers) the City may propose to construct the necessary facilities to 
achieve the MEPDV. 

Thereafter, the VWRF's 2013 NPDES Permit required an additional study - the Phase 3 
Estuary Special Studies. The purpose of these studies was to determine the impacts 
and/ or benefits of the discharge of tertiary treated flows on the beneficial uses of the 
SCRE, especially those related to the endangered steelhead trout, tidewater goby, western 
snowy plover, and the California least tern, and the aquatic, marshland and wetland 
habitats provided by the SCRE. The LARWQCB allowed for this Phase 3 report to be 
used in determination of the MEPDV by providing sufficient and meaningful information 
to determine if the effluent discharge enhances the SCRE, and in turn the LARWQCB 
may use this study to evaluate the SCRE enhancement during the next NPDES Permit 
renewal, beginning in July of 2018. 

In March 2017, the City, Wishtoyo, and Heal the Bay entered into a Memorandum of 
Agreement (MOA) to expedite the Scientific Review Panel (SRP) process that will 
determine the MEPDV. The SRP process needed to be expedited because the LARWQCB 
is requiring the City to include the SRP's findings in the VWRF's NPDES Permit renewal 
application that must be submitted at the beginning of July 2018. The overall goal of the 
MOA was to align the obligations of the TTFs Consent Decree with the requirements of 
the NPDES Permit, and to allow for discharge diversion alternatives to be evaluated by 
the City under the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) and the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) that would fit within the permitting cycles of the 
LARWQCB and account for necessary review timelines of other permitting agencies. 

On February 20, 2018, the completed Phase 3 Study, which is available on Ventura 
Water's website, was submitted to the LARWQCB. The Study evaluated multiple VWRF 
diversion/continued discharge scenarios ("discharge scenarios") over a range from o 
percent diversion (i.e., continuation of current average flow rate) up to 100 percent 
diversion of the current discharges (i.e. zero continued discharge) to the SCRE. For the 
purposes of the MEPDV analysis within the Phase 3 Study, VWRF discharges during the 
critical current dry-weather, closed mouth conditions were determined to average 4. 7 
MGD. The Study evaluated the impacts on realization of SCRE designated beneficial uses 
and existing SCRE ecological resources, including sensitive aquatic wildlife species and 
their habitats listed for protection under the state and federal Endangered Species Acts, 
of 11 different discharge scenarios, each varying from the other by a 0-47 MGD flow 
increment. The Phase 3 Study found that an MEPDV of between 40-60 percent (1.9 - 2.8 
MGD) of current flow in dry-weather closed mouth conditions would be protective of the 
ecological functions of the SCRE, including aquatic habitats supporting native fish 
species, nesting and foraging habitat for many native birds as well as other wildlife 
species. Diversion of 2.8 MGD of the current VWRF discharge would maintain discharge 
of 1.9 MGD to the SCRE during closed-mouth, dry weather conditions. 



5

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 

Pages 

The Phase 3 Study is currently being reviewed by the SRP, and the SRP's report will be 
submitted to the LARWQCB and other Resources Agencies at the end of this month with 
the City's NPDES Permit renewal application. The SRP is indicating that their report will 
recommend an MEPDV of 90 percent of current discharge (4.2 MGD) and a continued 
discharge amount of 0.5 MGD. 

The City has commenced the environmental review process and preparation of a Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) on diversion alternatives that will satisfy the need 
for expanding and diversifying the City's water supply, improving water quality, as well as 
meeting the obligations of the TTFs Consent Decree and VWRF NPDES Permit. A 
project description is being developed that will include agreed upon alternatives with 
Wishtoyo and Heal the Bay, including the implementation of an Advanced Water 
Purification Facility that will treat the diverted VWRF tertiary treated effluent to drinking 
water standards, making it available for potable water supply. 

Potable Reuse 

Ventura Water is responsible for the supply and delivery of potable water to its 
customers, with a supply portfolio that is comprised of several different local surface 
water and groundwater supplies. The local groundwater basins are experiencing 
decreased water levels and poor water quality. Heavy reliance on these supplies 
exacerbated by the on-going drought has resulted in declining water quality in the service 
area and has raised supply reliability concerns. 

The Estuary Special Studies, the Recycled Water Market Study, and other related 
infrastructure reports have provided information about, and analyzed options for, 
diversion and reuse of the VWRF' s treated water for urban, agricultural, groundwater 
and potable water benefits. Based on stakeholder input from 18 workshops held 
beginning in 2009, these studies evaluated options for reducing discharges of tertiary 
treated water to the SCRE, and diverting those flows to other l;I.Ses, including wetlands 
habitat related uses and increased reuse options. Factors related to increasing recycled 
water use that have been analyzed include: 1) new locations and technical feasibility for 
creating wetlands with reclaimed water, 2) urban irrigation opportunities, 3) passive and 
active groundwater recharge opportunities at existing and new recharge facilities for both 
augmentation of water supply and control of seawater intrusion, 4) agricultural irrigation 
opportunities and requirements for desalting, 5) decentralized treatment and reuse, and 
6) indirect and direct potable reuse. These alternatives were evaluated as to the economic 
costs and benefits, institutional and legal requirements, and potential environmental 
impacts. Potable reuse rose to the top of the alternatives for providing both diversion 
from the estuary as well as year-round water supply benefits. These studies and findings 
are aligned with the City's commitment to pursuing programs that promote economic, 
social, environmental, and water supply security and sustainability. 

In June 2014, the City agreed to participate in a collaborative research project with the 
Water Reuse Foundation (now the Water Research Foundation) to determine the 
feasibility of potable reuse using the VWRF effluent and what blending requirements 



6

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 
Page6 

would be in order to deliver this water to the community. A demonstration facility for 
VenturaWaterPure was placed at the VWRF and began producing pure water in July 
2015. The pilot project ran for 9 months and contributed to several studies as well as 
provided outreach to the community, City officials, and local regulators. The pilot proved 
that the equipment of an advanced treatment process could effectively and consistently 
treat wastewater effluent to drinking water standards, even when placed under "stressed" 
situations. The water quality was tested and proven to meet all health standards, 
including those for constituents of emerging concern (CECs) that include things such as 
pesticides and pharmaceuticals. Additional testing helped to inform the industry that a 
fluorescent tracer could be used to prove membrane integrity. We learned from this 
demonstration that produced water will need to be stabilized prior to distribution and 
that the concentrate from the reverse osmosis process will require additional treatment 
to reduce toxicity prior to discharge. 

Two surveys were conducted to gather information about acceptance of potable reuse, 
one conducted at the VenturaWaterPure Demonstration Facility and the other by the 
Bren School of Environmental Science and Management graduate program conducted 
out in the community. Overall, we saw a two-thirds acceptance of potable reuse and were 
able to gauge the public's knowledge about the subject that will help us to fine tune 
outreach going forward. The Demonstration Facility held over 60 tours, providing 
educational outreach to over 444 residents and 600 school children. The tours were 
attended by City officials and the Water Commission as well as regulatory representatives 
from the IARWQCB, Senator Fran Pavely, Congresswoman Julia Brownley, and staff 
from Representative Das Williams' office. 

The City is in the preliminary design phase of an Advanced Water Purification Facility 
that would include those technologies demonstrated in the pilot of membrane 
ultrafiltration, reverse osmosis membranes, and ultraviolet disinfection with advanced 
oxidation. In the pilot we tested and evaluated pasteurization as an additional form of 
disinfection and barrier protection and even hypothesized that the use of pasteurization 
prior to the membranes would have a benefit of reducing biofouling of the membranes. 
While pasteurization is a proven method of disinfection and it had been piloted at the 
VWRF before, it did not provide the barrier protection that would increase removal 
acceptance. Ventura Water staff is proposing to move forward with using Ozone and a 
form of Biologically Activated Filtration (BAF) that is usually biologically activated 
carbon (BAC). When considering going direct we need to include additional disinfection 
and organics removal. Pasteurization only provides additional disinfection. Another 
factor that led staff to incorporating Ozone/BAF in the preliminary design is the recent 
studies that have shown a reduction in reverse osmosis concentrate toxicity after 
ozone/BAF treatment. The VenturaWaterPure pilot informed staff that toxicity was 
present in the reverse osmosis concentrate and some form of additional treatment would 
be required prior to concentrate discharge. The addition then of Ozone/BAF provides 
three additional benefits in comparison to pasteurization. The advanced treatment 
process would consist of tertiary treated wastewater effluent from the VWRF going 
through Ozone/BAF, ultrafiltration, reverse osmosis, and ultraviolet disinfection with 
advanced oxidation, then going to either a ground water basin or an engineered storage 



7

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 
Page7 

buffer, that would be followed by additional ultrafiltration and disinfection at a water 
treatment facility. 

Regulations for Potable Reuse have developed cautiously in California with varying 
degrees. Indirect Potable Reuse (IPR) is the planned use of recycled water to augment 
groundwater or surface water that is exposed to an environmental buffer in order to 
protect public health and does not specifically require advanced treatment. This form of 
Potable Reuse has approved regulation guidelines, and it is currently utilized by Orange 
County Water District. Not every community has the ability or desire to entirely use 
groundwater or surface water, so other forms of potable reuse have been defined and are 
being examined for regulation. The City is planning for indirect use to be limited and 
would prefer to rely on direct use in the long term. Direct Potable Reuse (DPR) is the 
delivery of purified water to a drinking water plant or a drinking water distribution 
system without an environmental buffer and requires advanced treatment with 
monitoring and engineered buffers. The State Water Resources Control Board has 
recently in 2018 released a proposed framework for regulating Direct Potable Reuse in 
California that has been informed by expert panel reports and guidelines. 

Ventura Water staff has pursued many avenues in helping to provide insight, data, and 
assurance to the regulators that DPR is feasible, safe, and effective in both treating for 
water quality requirements as well as cost considerations for customers. Staff has joined 
a DPR Coalition through the National Water Research Institute (NWRI) to develop a 
paper on how the City's project along with others such as the City of Santa Barbara, City 
of San Francisco, Santa Clara Valley Water District, and the Los Angeles Department of 
Water and Power, will prove DPR feasibility. Ventura Water is also a member of several 
entities promoting Potable Reuse, including WateReuse, the Water Research Foundation, 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA), California Water Environment 
Association (CWEA), American Water Works Association (AWWA), and Southwest 
Membrane Operators Association (SWMOA). Ventura Water has contributed to the 
development of the Advanced Operator Certification Program with CWEA-A WW A to 
provide training and administer testing for Advanced Operator Certification. The 
Environmental Compliance Team of Ventura Water's Wastewater Division will begin 
monitoring the sewer collection system using real time analyzers as part of a Water 
Research Foundation study on Real Time Monitoring of Raw Wastewater Source Control 
(paper WRF 17-30). There has been great emphasis on enhanced source control with 
permitting of Potable Reuse facilities and staff in this division has been increased from 
two inspectors under the Wastewater Maintenance Supervisor to a dedicated 
Environmental Compliance Supervisor with two inspectors. 

To provide overall coordination, Ventura Water has retained a Ventura Water Supply 
Projects Program Manager who will be tracking the progress of studies and deadlines 
needed for the EIR and permit compliance processes. Staff is preparing to submit for the 
next NPDES Permit renewal that will be informed by the Phase 3 SCRE studies and by 
the SRP determination of the MEPDV. Ventura Water will be getting ready to continue 
with a rate study and keep up-to-date on funding opportunities that may be available for 
Potable Reuse projects. 



8

0123456789



9

0123456789

Administrative Report 
July 9, 2018 
Page9 

FORWARDED TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

~ ~4~/C.t::__ 
Dan Paranick 
Interim City Manager 

ATTACHMENT 

A - Administrative Report from December 12, 2011 



10

0123456789

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 



11

0123456789

ATIACHMENT A 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
FROM DECEMBER 12, 2011 



12

0123456789

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 



13

0123456789

CITY OFVENTURA 

f\DMINISTRATIVf. R£PORT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Agenda Item No.: 

Council Action Date: 

RICK COLE, CITY MANAGER 

December 7, 2011 

15 

December 12, 201.1 

SHANA EPSTEIN, VENTURA WATER GENERAL MANAGER 

SANTA CLARA RIVER ESTUARY SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve memorandum of settlement and direct City Manager to prepare and execute a 
Final Settlement Agreement and Consent Decree in substantial conformance with the 
Memorandum of Settlement for the Santa Clara River Estuary. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION 

April 27, 2009 - Approved a professional services agreement with Carollo Engineers to 
conduct the Ventura Water Reclamation Facility's (VWRF) Special Studies for the Santa 
Clara River Estuary (Estuary), to be completed over three years, as required by the 
Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

SUMMARY 

After years of environmental challenges and controversy, Ventura stands at a 
crossroads over the issue of continued discharge of tertiary treated wastewater into the 
Santa Clara River Estuary. As a result of a lawsuit and administrative appeal of our 
State discharge permit, the City Council must choose whether to enter into a 
comprehensive long-term settlement that commits to eventually remove between 50-
100% of the discharge or continue to assert our legal and administrative case for 
ongoing discharge into the Estuary. 

Today, the City's sole wastewater treatment facility, located near the Ventura Harbor, 
cleans to tertiary treatment standards between 7-9 million gallons of water every day 
before releasing it into wildlife ponds and then to the Estuary. There has been a long
standing debate among stakeholders, including environmental groups, wildlife 
conservation groups, and state and federal regulatory agencies, about this highly 

1 



14

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page2 

treated water's impact on the sensitive ecology of the Estuary. Based on their particular 
concerns for the long-term health of the Estuary, Heal the. Bay and Wishtoyo 
Foundation's Ventura Coastkeeper Program pursued administrative challenges and 
legal actions to compel the City to discontinue releasing water to the Estuary. 

To resolve these challenges and actions, the City entered into a preliminary 
Memorandum of Settlement (Attachment A) with Heal the Bay and Ventura 
Coastkeeper last August. The settlement sets a goal to reduce, by 2025, the amount of 
water entering the Estuary by 50-100% by diverting it to other uses. At the same time, 
however, the settlement obligates the City to reduce discharges to the Estuary only by 
that amount approved and permitted by state and federal regulatory agencies with 
jurisdiction over discharges, the Estuary, and the species and habitats it provides. 

Innovative in its approach, the settlement outlines a defined process and time frames to 
determine how the diversion goal will be accomplished. While the project costs will not 
be known until the diversion infrastructure project(s) are selected, the settlement 
agreement caps the potential infrastructure expenses at $55 million. An extensive 
public outreach effort has been conducted, and will be ongoing, to inform Ventura Water 
customers about the environmental and financial benefits and impacts of the settlement. 

DISCUSSION 

The City's permit to discharge water treated to tertiary standards by the Ventura Water 
Reclamation Facility to the Estuary is granted by the Los Angeles Regional Water 
Quality Control Board. During the permit re-issuance process in 2008, stakeholders 
continued to debate whether the treated water is harmful to, or supportive of the 
sensitive Estuary habitat. In its current condition, the Estuary, including the tertiary 
treated water discharged to the Estuary, is home to a substantial number of shoreline 
and wetland invertebrate, fish, avian and terrestrial species, including the Tidewater 
Goby, Southern California Steelhead and the Western Snowy Plover, which species 
and their habitats are protected by the Federal Endangered Species Act, and the 
California Least Tern, which is protected by the Federal and State Endangered Species 
Acts. 

Estuary Special Studies 

To provide more scientifically-based answers regarding environmental effects of water 
discharged to the Estuary, the Regional Board required the City to conduct special 
studies with stakeholder input and overview. The City hired the consulting team of 
Carollo Engineers and Stillwater Sciences to perform the studies, which included an 
Estuary Subwatershed Study; a Phase 1 Recycled Water Market Study; and a 
Treatment Wetlands Feasibility Study. These 3 studies have now been completed and 

2 



15

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page 3 

submitted to the Regional Board, and a series of five stakeholder workshops were held 
from 2009 to February 2011 to evaluate study methods and the results. 

The Amended Final Report of the Estuary Subwatershed Study concludes that the 
current flows to the wildlife ponds and then to the Estuary provide better receiving water 
wildlife-related conditions and fuller realization of beneficial uses relative to those 
expected under a zero-discharge scenario. Fuller realization of wildlife related 
beneficial uses occurs with current levels of tertiary treated discharge (as compared to 
the absence of discharge) because, for example, the current discharge provides more 
critical habitat for Tidewater Goby and Southern California Steelhead in the Estuary, 
and provides all the breeding and foraging habitat in the wildlife ponds for a number of 
sensitive wildlife species, including the Snowy Plover and California Least Tern, none of 
which would be present under a zero-discharge scenario. 

At the same time, however, the Amended Final Report of the Estuary Subwatershed 
Study concludes that an appreciable reduction in discharge to the Estuary, at least 
during dry-season closed-mouth conditions, would likely further improve and/or optimize 
wildlife related beneficial uses in the Estuary and its watershed, provided that the 
reduced discharge scenario incorporates additional treatment of discharges to reduce 
nutrients. Such a reduced discharge alternative would likely improve Estuary wildlife
related conditions and beneficial uses, for example, reducing certain periods of low 
dissolved oxygen in localized areas of the Estuary, as well as the frequency and 
duration of algal blooms within the Estuary, which together may benefit Steelhead over
summering in, and least Tern foraging within the Estuary. 

Despite the fact that a robust and transparent stakeholder process was implemented in 
preparing the reports, including the Amended Final Report of the Estuary Subwatershed 
Study, not all stakeholders concur with the conclusions reached in the reports. By way 
of example, the National Marine Fisheries Service (the Federal Regulatory Agency with 
the duty and jurisdiction to protect the Steelhead) has indicated in comments that it 
continues to have serious concerns about adverse impacts to federally protected 
aquatic species and critical habitat that are likely to result from reductions in tertiary 
treated flows delivered to the Estuary. On the other hand, Heal the Bay and Ventura 
Coastkeeper continue to refute that discharge of some tertiary treated flow to the wildlife 
ponds and then the Estuary provides better wildlife related conditions and a fuller 
realization of beneficial uses within the Estuary and its watershed. As a result, the 
stakeholder debate over the ecological benefits of tertiary treated flows discharged to 
the Estuary, and associated administrative and legal challenges to those discharges 
and the permits allowing them, will inevitably continue indefinitely absent a progressive 
approach to proactively resolving the issues in dispute. 

3 



16

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page4 

Agreement 

The settlement is progressive in its approach in that all parties have agreed to; 

• pursue a common goal for discharge reductions and diversions; 
• use the best available science to determine the appropriate discharge reduction 

and diversion volumes; 
• respect the legal authority of all state and federal agencies with the duty and 

jurisdiction to permit discharges and diversions, and related impacts on state 
and federally protected species; 

• support and implement identified process steps by defined milestone dates to 
determine how to: accomplish the common goal, determine ecologically 
appropriate discharge reductions and diversions, obtain necessary permits and 
conduct environmental review as necessary to implement those discharge 
reductions and diversions, and build necessary infrastructure project(s) for that 
purpose when identified; and 

• all without engaging in further or additional administrative or legal challenges to 
the City's discharges or discharge permits. 

The scientific analysis, or the best available science, will be provided by additional 
Phase 2 and Phase 3 Special Studies, preliminarily identified in a Memorandum of 
Recommendations submitted to the Regional Board with the Final Amended Estuary 
Subwatershed Report, to determine how much tertiary treated water should be diverted, 
how much can or should continue to be released into the Estuary, and what types of 
diversion projects (e.g., diversions to urban irrigation, agricultural irrigation, groundwater 
recharge, or treatment wetlands) are feasible to implement. 

Working Together 

Collaboration is a critical element to arrive at the most responsible solution for the 
future. As a part of the settlement, all three parties have agreed to establish a close 
and integrated working relationship to move forward together for protection of the 
Estuary. Resource protection agencies, including the National Marine Fisheries 
Service, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish and 
Game, as well as the Regional Water Quality Control Board, will continue to provide 
oversight and direction throughout their permitting processes. Local stakeholders, such 
as neighboring water purveyors and environmental organizations, will also continue to 
add their perspectives. In their role as environmental and financial stewards, Ventura 
Water customers have a responsibility to become informed and participate. As a major 
investment in our community's water future, the decisions made along the path must 
reflect the values of our community. 

4 



17

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page 5 

Expanded Water Recycling 

In addition to protecting our natural environment, this settlement provides another 
important benefit by prioritizing expansion of the community's use of the readily
available water generated daily by the Ventura Water Reclamation Facility. Currently 
about 3% of this reclaimed water is used to irrigate nearby golf courses, Marina Park 
and commercial landscaping. Between 40-60% of our potable water, withdrawn from 
the Ventura River and groundwater aquifers and treated to high drinking water 
standards, is used for landscape irrigation. By prioritizing the substitution of reclaimed 
water for this potable water, water supply is conserved and more water remains in the 
natural environment where it will also be available to the human population during times 
of drought or other restrictions. Some of the other expanded reuses to be investigated 
include agriculture irrigation, groundwater recharge, or groundwater injection to combat 
seawater intrusion into our local aquifers. 

By using reclaimed water more widely, Ventura can delay or even avoid having to 
develop expensive new water supply sources, such as desalination or importing State 
water from Northern California. Integrated water management will help position Ventura 
as a leader and create a more sustainable water future for our community. 

CITIZEN ADVISORY GROUP REVIEW 

Not applicable. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS I PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

An extensive public outreach effort has been conducted since August (Attachment B) to 
inform our customers about the settlement. On November 10, a Town Hall Meeting was 
attended by nearly 50 residents and interested parties following an advertising and 
promotionat campaign to publicize the event. The meeting included a 10-minute 
overview video; opening remarks from Deputy Mayor Mike Tracy, Kirsten James from 
Heal the Bay and Mati Waiya from Wishtoyo Foundation's Ventura Coastkeeper 
Program; a presentation of the settlement details; and a questiory and answer session. 

Media efforts include newspaper articles in the Ventura County Star and the Ventura 
Breeze, frequent postings on Ventura Water's Facebook and Twitter, articles in Ventura 
Water's new E-Newsletter, Pipeline, E-Mail Blasts and updated postings on the City's 
website. The video titled "Ventura Water's Future", produced in cooperation with our 
partners, is available on Ventura Water's YouTube Channel, the City's website and 
CAPS-TV, Channel 15 and is intended to offer an on-demand explanation of the 
reasons for and the details of the settlement. In addition, staff has also presented 

5 



18

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page6 

information at community meetings and will continue to do so as requested throughout 
the engagement process. 

FISCAL IMPACTS 

By terms of the settlement, the total project's cost is capped at $55 million, increased as 
necessary to reflect inflation (as determined by the Engineering Record News 
Construction Cost Index), which could potentially cost an average household 
approximately $3.50 per month until 2055. Options to fund this program will be 
evaluated by the nine-member citizen Cost of Service and Rate Design Advisory 
Committee within the next few months. Exact costs are not yet known and will 
ultimately be determined by diversion approach(es) selected through the process. 
However, grant funding will be aggressively pursued, and expenses long-term may also 
be offset from revenue generated by reclaimed water sales, particularly as water 
supplies become more limited and therefore more valuable. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Council could choose to not approve the settlement. Given the hefty cost and 
complexity of the proposed commitments over the next decade, the City could choose 
to defend its continued discharge into the estuary. This alternative will result in the 
resumption of Heal the Bay's pending administrative challenge to the City's discharge 
permit, and of Ventura Coastkeeper's pending lawsuit challenging discharges to the 
Estuary for violating the Clean Water Act. This alternative is also extremely likely to 
result in the filing of new litigation against the City for improper discharges and/or 
discharge permits. Continuing current litigation and filing of future litigation will expose 
the City to substantial costs of defense, including legal and expert consulting fees. 

In addition, absent a settlement (and while administrative and judicial litigation is 
pending against the City), the City must consider what action the Regional Board will 
take with respect to the City's NPDES Permit governing City discharges to the Estuary. 
The Regional Board might allow the City to continue to discharge under its existing 
NPDES Permit and conditions, which in turn would allow the City at perhaps as much 
as 2 years or more to conduct additional environmental and infrastructure studies, and 
to further engage Ventura Water customers more fully in the discussion to evaluate 
options and potential costs. However, absent a settlement, the Regional Board is more 
likely to act on its own authority between now and 2013 to change current NPDES 
Permit conditions governing discharge. Regional Board changes to the NPDES Permit 
could include new requirements to eliminate discharges to the Estuary, either fully or on 
a phased basis, on a timeline unilaterally determined by the Regional Board. If the 
Regional Board should act to change the NPDES Permit to require elimination of 
discharges to the Estuary on a more expedited timeline than the schedule established 

6 



19

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page? 

by the Memorandum of Settlement, the City would expect to incur substantial legal, 
consulting and staff costs to defend current NPDES Permit conditions, current 
discharge practices, the proposed Memorandum of Settlement schedule, in addition to 
substantial costs for designing, permitting and building infrastructure (that is not 
currently even fully planned) in order to divert discharges. In addition, the City might 
face substantial defense costs and penalties if it is unable to comply with any new 
Regional Board NPDES Permit requirements. 

While successful legal and administrative defense of the City's continued practices is 
problematic, there are arguments for making that case. It may be argued that as a 
matter of principle, the City should continue to oppose efforts to curb what has up to 
now been a lawful practice sanctioned by available scientific evidence, cost
effectiveness and regulatory approvals. It may be argued that a vigorous defense buys 
time for a variety of possible alternative outcomes in the future (due to changes in State 
or Federal legislation; leverage for different terms of settlement; changes in the legal 
landscape that might improve our prospects; etc.) The short-term costs of mounting 
such a defense are much less than the long-term potential costs of ,the proposed 
settlement. 

However, there are additional downside risks to that strategy as well. Just as external 
changes in the legislative and legal landscape might prove more favorable for the City's 
practices in the future, the opposite might prove true. It is simply impossible to predict 
the prospects for ever again coming to a satisfactory conclusion, let alone a more 
favorable one. 

Another alternative is that the Council could delay approval, but under the Memorandum 
of Settlement, extending the City public process beyond 120 days requires agreement 
of Heal the Bay and Ventura Coastkeeper. While such agreement is unlikely, the 
potential for other resolutions is possible. A delay could allow time to conduct more 
public outreach and solicit community input. The delay will expose the City to additional 
costs. Again, the Regional Board may choose to act instead and change the discharge 

· permit requirements with potentially negative consequences. 

Prepar d by Dan Pfeifer, Wastewater Utility Manager 
For 

a pstein, General Manager 
entura Water 

7 



20

0123456789

Administrative Report 
December 7, 2011 
Page8 

Reviewed as to fiscal impacts 

Ja<h?~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Confidential Federal Rule of Evidence 408 Communication - Memorandum of 
Agreement Regarding Settlement Terms 

B Santa Clara River Estuary Settlement Public Outreach 

8 



21

0123456789

ATTACHMENT A 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT REGARDING SETTLEMENT TERMS 

9 



22

0123456789

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

- 10 



23

0123456789

~felip~g ~dnrn,f:~~qt~~g~~B~ui~t+~ws (i<~~t., 
~~):.is.·~·jntoi:l:ifmld.f.UUQ'1g ~is~yp:faunda~Qn/V~tura;.Coos~per:. 
b:~,of San,Bialaventura,and lhlthe.~y .. ~U .. · .•.. ·~ u~~~~. 
not~d wben:f~t~¢,tfeme&itlPt:\lachuie.tit' . . . . · .. ·~<.fOCUUWQt. w~,# 
heref)yiµco~te&Jnto tl»s;~t~~meni~y t1u$~Ce',· . . , 

cf. 

'llle,Parties. believe tbat toitu:1;h« ~stiamdc?Ifu:ni~n1,~~~ff~ .. , . 
ecdl~,gg«~~~aq aJ!ditswa~hcii,~tP'~~ly ~~~P~i 
an,ci~p:terpeµ~Xot,eµ. . . .· ,,, .. tally prote;eti~. stffll~bfe, and~ 
~$tl,J?P1Y amt~~ .· ~ipr~,.~.Cit,needstocle~tQver 
time. QJWor mote yet~ wrotitiei!J~¢~ ~µ$.f<>rVetLtUni', ·. . . 
rec~ation and' dw~,Ol;l;Q.f aQ eqq~jitlally~p~ vqf~9fi~$fJUiet\t, . 

. ~~~ijW1'.~ ~~n;~, . ~tt~,~~~tion1il Tmtil · · .. CJ ·~, . · ·. ,,.. · •· ··· · · i:...:..44~,..A' h.~~ ri •.. ·... . A 
~.~ ~tal:1-91} ii>P~w~lut~Q~*Y~ . . i~t~~~~µ~ ..... ~· ~Ut\leµtei4/0t' 
~tvedi ~ ~c., a~,thatlt:i\~~~ for. the.'Gity w~gage now in. trn;\ 
~tojdentify, ~i~t,,plan, design. engineer, ~~~y,~~· · ·· 
·~f:.ant!,.~x~·c,p~etQ~ ()t;~~~~\m,i~i'·~~·~ ~ra~. (~ible~al}latj~and.~~'8ioll~ttu~~projects, hlcltding,, 
··~ · . . · , etlands. withthegoatrif~vinB:the ol'.UllUMve.capacity to divert 
-c}tm~~JOO% t>fthe'.pftl~t~~~atgt,cfp tlw~tuflt.Y (With a 
,.,~~pri9~i.ty0 f<;;ir di;vel]jQ~ tQ w~~ ~QO U$.~$J $0. t1,at tm!:.WRF cau 
·~·byD~'.3'i,ZOZt,,J!fflueutdi~·illat,~.i~a.di~ 
.~·.m~isderennined.i>y .tne.··a~sq~.~ge~ci1$1~ 1:Je0~1,~k.>gro,ll111 
bendi'®il for'the &,tu~ ~ P~ ac.tcnow~eclihm/~veri iJ~~ Cf~iu:~ 
-f11h.1~ ,,,;;, !:...;: ~;,fo::.ti · 1 • l.$~ft.~• .. r~ • :. • ' ' ~ 1';.:..:~·~ .. ,.;~,.;~ .. ',~J.· 'Hi;;}'· .. ••.· 
;"'~,e ,...., .. ~t::·~.··• yey~~p~ge,'fll:v~~!QO$,µ~~~""~~~g~.;~~e'~i, 
·musts~,to:de'lelop ~~J.yln·pi~,lq<)% ~~e~nt:fiQm~ · 
.D~at~ anctto;¢.clru.m,jjj~~liill.J~bl~~~Qf,fui.'flift:iu~,fbt '~~lt~r . . .... . . . . . . . . . . .·· -

:,~- .. :t=raii~::::c:~=4t:d9~~I:P~~ 
·~·.®,tnriTime;S~shtltt~~~~,~rif::~jj~+fu~ 
l\a~t•1~a~if,req~ by.~~l.~~q~,s,·~ttoan:····· · 

'lr ,#8 a,~tpclprity, dlv~@ttJi~ q®:ig,J;) •. ~~routli.F~·le . .. .· 
Diversion VQI. uine t<1 m-oauly~$:ned. WaterR®!J1b;latiunc l!$¢$';~>a fillt~ bestv,e.()f']he'. Mllient ~ ·· · · ·. . · .·. · .· ... ·· . . . .. · · 
~ ·." ,., '··· -, ., ,.,., _,, -·· : ,;,,1 ",.' .. , .• 

:! · ~n~~.~~It~t'T~~llt:\Y.~t•tsiii:l th~r~~tt~ll~l 
'l ·· . ~r~~oi\,,~i~le,d®i~~olfflll¢tloo'b,Dpl<mitsntat.iqn · 

:i'' 

11 



24

0123456789

~:Fed~Bule«Jt•ride11e1r4C$~ 

~FQqqt·of~~~~t,T~ 
,· 

•.· . 

;-~~f~ 

lr~1it~~ 
j;J' 'L,~~~~ 

4~·-
,, --~limi~ ~()!:)~ of~~v~~iir~ Q1i:~viof.~--
~~~ ,, 

ti,••::,;::~\~:=j~~~· 
,----~~~£=~ 

~~~~ 
-t,.: 

12 



25

0123456789

~tfa1~l;'RuJeofEvid~ee:40J~ 

M~il.$.~A.-~lt,~~;Sdlle ..... Te~. 
·' 

~~lf~v~·eif~'.by the~uib:P.~ntatioo ¢~.:-.~elr:~ve~;:~tyt<ii: ''' - ,:· . '' .·· ' 

,· t =~=~~~·~~~~~=:(! 
ii;: asa;-~d.~t¥,'4i•~uoot'tootl•~W~ds,Jn · 

ib,e,eveutibai:.10(1%.~·w W:aterReo~ot'lU~is , 
=~yJnfe~~~.Itegttlatotl}~-~leiPt\~y 

'.lJJ: .1'4e~,.~~Ob~Up~~ceof~ 
R~ ~ ·p .. ·ts :theCi1;y shall.b. fM:.·~pirati(m;of:!~ T. ·· ~uie 

·~~~~~ tbo~-~~~C.ity' ... Y~due.bm'Q Bf&fen t9... ,tuary, 

!!~~~~ 
Sc~t..A: . .· · t(n: ·. a ~ait:edApc . Penmt mak&s:Jade~'On 
·that'(lt~~~w·ofAppuii.ed Bmii®l5i~:wU6*\?teri:mlf'less 
tban:ib · Maxin.tu· Ee rogicall Prott&nve'Divmmn v; ·JUa~~Cit¥ 
to.~~~r;.e~o;of~e-.~~~;:~fuilstorake'a 
~tl'UPiion!rbpl¢men~tion Co~t.or·R1,1·Qperati~ ~tio~ 

.&~&~:=~: 
: · .· ·•Agooliim•ttfJ ~~@fpl:~ \fu ~- ngi\tno ~~=-'=~~~!di~ 
~t'~~· 

ffie,eed,qd~l.we® Df-c~J M .4Wil :J .. ·~ !~1. 
'.',\ 

13 



26

0123456789

.4.) 

. 14 



27

0123456789

, .. _. 

~- fntent ... ~,E'iffluef~ntr~- 'lbeP~ 
;.~w..·of- so' 1~ 0 as' .dl.,<;-r1!ro'"-· H!rti"i'i..,;;;,;.;;.:.. ... .t ... o: ,.i,;;;.:,~~ and' ',..,.. ...... _~; .,.... . " =---~ . · ,:.1,,.,,.,.e . :JµJ,7.u1,v ~i1t---T'"""'~oiF¥" ~ . .'.~w-rns ~"-'-· 
this S.~ttle~-~~t a.n<l la-~m~oliuion.lielwf, .it,is-.the:~of 

.~~:~~~ ~-~,;fflld!_o,cal~ \S~F~®o~~ ... ~1&~$1.~ 

::W~mndillgt11ei~~'·w•~~~:-~~~;~~t:-
. ts ~-¥~,~®- ' ' ~f~ ~fedei;al; 

~j:~~$~,~~ 
~ . ~~ . ~~ ... al,~ .. ,.~ctinne.~y eHe ~the 
~-wJ.i~ns.w •. roo~taur-j:':R~~t\getiJy,J>emllts-antlto 
C()1'1Ply. Wlfh:11: appµ~·fe.d~:gmt, ir,t:.t•l laWS and~$.. 

'lll.ii)' ~-itte 'el:tden~··aiai~ttht,rC-1;ty~w)iJn~tio~~' tlnft;jt®' 
eomp!fa;t,W& "With ~s &~Ufem~t J\tr~ertt. 

' ' 

....... _j . -~~- . . .~( )®OIL ~- . 
··_":~~:··· ., ' 

... ~~,~~~4·~ 
19applyfb,;. ~., ._ --: i(tlro.J,,t~ ,~t~A~Y 

B'LI~arI~1e~ 
··-· ~ 

Jf;: 

·..j.· 

15 



28

0123456789

why it~addreflingthe~o~ inaaalternanve.nianner. SubJectto:any 
~I~y$'.:ci:eattdJ~~.thl;e,t~sewith respect toa'gpJi¢atrous·{• ~ed · 
Age~:~~~t)~ any Party ofit.s tights··~·~&.P~r~ .aud 9, tti~ Cicy 
·~•W,g()nl}?~~~isubmit~J>~kmsfeti~ Agenc~.~ 
.~farcons~.~'.PP.eration.tlf tbe,;J;lltv~m<:>n ~¢ture 
Projects &clectedas tl1¢Iil'!;}fett¢ al~ative ~r ~· 5.a. by w Wer 
thanJ~ J.,~1~; Wne,Cifs:a;ppllo~ns .tor Req~AgeJ:Wy~®tts 
frem the:J~eso~ Ageucaes.,sma!lreqµestissuance-oftitose,pennits by. a 
date n9·lliter ttiapJan~~ l.t2020~contaitifug terms amfC(.)11,ditw~ tbatare 
ct>~tept wiffi,~e(~tmi'm:J.de6ncijtlons of~Set~~~~ent, ~ . 
. ~rflefollriwing'~'ti~~: 

L. SubJ~tj:(} ~ CQDSttUcti,QJ;l:~~tion CQnstraiµtsantt the 
~·fuiplunentationConsttain($,an<lby e.x~tiQ7;Htftbec 
·'fun~~hc:<lule~ devdoprnent ~ti$ttue~~~op~·9t,~ 
~ver,si~Jnftastcilctut:¢ ft()J~~I · · · · · 

it• Sub~.tc theConstrQctjpn ~lemen4ttioo·Cons~ts aml the 
Qpe~®itat~ementatio~ C~traihts.andby~j:~on of'the . 
. rir~ .. $~~~; a,uthorit;Y r,Qil;r\p~t div~on$~4eliml~ 
Oirect~charge of ~:M~um]Scologieally:Premctive · 
Div~ion V:etume; and · · .· · 

iii. ·~ub~tQtli~,Co11s.ttu~onlnp~nConsltaints@d·the 
~~nm,~let,ne~9nCons.~. l¢dby exp~on. ofthe 
1'il;ne· Sch,e4tile,. awllorit¥ to collUllence di:¥~tcm.s:.~pirec.t 
Qi~ge~),ii~·Ma~imum BcoJog~y.~¢,~tlv°'~i~ion 
.Vol~. ~a,$tstpdopty,to Wa~:.~~n U~:~.asa 
~d.priorlty,:.~o'frea~t Wetl.lnd~. . ·. 

~·, De~~<>,U.M'axirnumE¢ol~~ve~on 
Vo~. J~y nol~terth~.JfuJttary l,.2Q1&.~,p~~~Jo ~t;Uaily 
d~~e, u~~-~av~~m:ti.~·~ti~~g.~a~.oftlle.. 
P~,•sn;,eo~g,~~~~:~W~ffie, 
MrudiP,unrEcolo~y Pfu~ciive I)iv~i(r~'Voltttnt>, Intne.evezttthat the 
·p~are Ullflble ~~ .mutu~ ~~rega.rqmgtheMaximurtl.. . 
&.c,IQgically ~tiye Diversion V'Gtiunecii oi:Eiefoi.e ~uary. l. 2011. 
the~~· B~ess~rulproceedwitfj di~ffllolu,tio~ as setfortb,,-iµ 
r~,s~ ~(a) t9.,~achw~tionthat~l>iQ~ontbeffatiti.es 
re~nittle~murn Eoorogtoally.:PtQiec~v7~'Ye~iQXl.,V\i.q•.w~ 
~~ iji,ty.·~.tll'eti. inciutk~·in· j~ ai,plkati.Qµs·~~~#ig~y~J$:·· 
' •..•... :pc,...-t.;• . ~..;;. ....... h .<. b ,,,, ;~~..i.w.~'JD.,.,".';"~g, .. .,,. '. 

16 



29

0123456789

Confidential Fede~ :Rule.of Evidencei!O$ G<tnnms.mealfon. 

M~ntndumw~ntR~gatdblg~tT~ 

cl City Rep~ to ~~es~ J~op.::Walii.ts~eations 
foi~~niredAgency Permits, the·City ~toinfonnMd~~that. 
the Aseilcies with Jurisdictionapprov~t adQ~·~t1e, inld/or grmitRequired 
Agoocy Permits onall terms andcon.ditlons•necessa.cy:ior: 

i. · ·t11e C~ty 1;o• Iiave the, abillt;y t.o achi¢:!le:its goals fo1; construction of 
Divet:si® ~ Projectcapacity as.serforthin Paragmph 
t.cl;li;j - • ·· .. 

li. theeity to.fulfill its· of>ligationi for designdCQnstrnction;·pf 
DI~ionJn.fra$tJ.tW.tU(e:~j~ rut~Jwrth.in,~~h l .b.~ and 

iii. ·tne.Ciey:to ~rain:all ~ ~¢i fijpmfSto implemeEtand 
op.er~ the Diversion Jn.frast:J:UctUte ~oje9ts in accordanc.:e wi1h it$. 
o6li.gati,ciu.s ~~aph.2. above, to the e:~llt tha(r~ltip:g 
AI?,Pt.:~Ye4Eff;1~t.Dhtersions ~.cQnii~-With e~gfi:Qtn 
~tDi~~bar~ei:the~Ecologibally 1?ro~ve,Divffl.1lion 
Voltntle. .· .. . 

~- ~111tfon. 'the City, VC& and EfFB~lleaq~. indtvidually andjoiritly, 
coopgratcto aclyQC~ au<X·sUpPQrttq~~ ofl:be Requked A.ge1,1cy 
'Permits,.e~ntaining ~:audiot:1dit'.ions thatwe consisterlt with, •ttns 
Se~A~Jncludmi~ withwt.·funitaa,qn, .. aohieve~t·.swject' 
·~ ~;(;'.~t:rttetign~~tion Co~aud·~~ ~~ 
Constructto'rl CQ~is; and by the ~xpira#onpf the TimeSchedul~. 9f th~ 
iffluent div~and~tiqn goa.ls and Ql,ligat;ie.l1$9f':~,S~tde~nt 
Agreement.·· 

f. ~forObtmnint~ l'beCieyshalJ~.·~ 
apJ?,fi~f;iQns pursuantlP Pat~graph 5.b,, tll'lp:.use alL<lilig~ and reawnable 
effgrt, to ~ti~ tne~µb:ed ~geµcyR~ts bf 1aµu~ l,.2020; ~vided 
howe:vei;. tl;lat,tf antn~1rlm1,~getJ.Cy ·~1mit;th1it.ttate ,x,,ofo~er sW;>jecNo 
~ll"ative,,-0r;~~inyalidation ~ not.,avaflal)l~fortlwlJi~n 
~l1Sb:uctu~Proje¢t$ audlo;\Bffiuent<.1ivetsi6ns.~ J®uaty 'l.12021, ~en 
th~Parti~$alltneetand ~,;-~ ~w;~e if~ei uqa~ of any 
cettainand\ztilid~uitedA~Jlerrmlts•tftopreclude-.~vent, ot: 
ity~;ih.eCity's~~nofDiv~<m ~~l?to~t$,!1~ 
:E~~fffiY~Y~,~tion oftbe.'Jlitne.~~ule •. ht~~~ca~tbe 
~~ •. ~.···~~·~l~for.br~ of·th:.Se¢1~~~~·~'~ 
I~~· ·~.tne~twie,thC1fa.t1~1P~~~y.Ja~~ 1, 
itttl, aR~ed Ag$1.cy·Pemutthatl$.no.lo~etsub~tto,1~gal or 
~tttttiyftmvali~¥>nshall flr)tfe~'i~~l]i,w ~~ ofits 
oollgationste'oonstruotDiV~:~~•:~jectS'andimplement 
~ ... \ · · ~, · · · ··· · ' . · ·· ,;r.~k llt .t.,;.. '-'=.,.y~.;...t A <Tri>P1">1Pn1' ..-.-J ~\..,.. l:>arl',,# 
:i,:;.u.~~entu,i.~~OUS-~8-';%~~, •.. :~.~~~ ,:.,~-·~-..,. ~J.q ~-f""'-· . 

.. q· 

17 



30

0123456789

~d-.tW:t~·~ot~4Qfl.C~• 
M · _ _. · ... of .. --.. R -...11- 0 --"' .... ..ou."'"" ,r, ·. ~a;~IQr, .. '4.,,. .......... ,...- ~s-._.g;~~·· ·,.,_ 

" . ,._ 

.. ':r::===r~~~~=:ond 
fo the unaWtilab't.nro of a~ aricfvaiiifRi . -. -:::::LA __ ,. . ~:..··· . 
L',l . , ·., w.:, ... , . . . , ~~~ ........ y.,.~~ 

·~an~~waier·~eM~# ~Gif¥ shaf,Luseafl,~naljle.. 
~t'Q.aAOpt t~ a~e1;~'.i,j.r~;fflV~~-~i:inQludhlg, 
wi~t~,-~, aa,,~atjt ttt~lY:witb ~pbttgations.set 
fmtb'in th.is'~~~'~jb~~-j~~ptl:e·t11!:i~"! 

~lw~ on ~·~1U.a:Ja,e()nffl:etWJthf~ taw·on the gromtds 
~;;.::.:~ ~i --~t...:: . •· ht.~~~~1 iib~~;.,.;.kti ··. atid:~on Q'f tbe'Div~ . · ·· ~·~.., Q;,~~oo •. c...,.~~~ .·· ,, .. ,~~!-"'Ollt .. ,,.:. .. _ ... · .. ~ 

ri~~~Z~z 
;park. j .fl~~upp~~5i ~9~10 (~tD. ~~.·~ffl)/ti(f!;llllyt~ v. ··~ of Allen 
Paik:.. :i'69 F.3d>~l (~thQit.1999), ce.~t ~.·~.;:icy slWJ,,nqtqppose 
challengeato R~R~m'ls·~ by v:zett~lltr:B. -

=fea~~~ 
&, ~J.tyPtiigc ~· VCK av,d.H'.I'B,.~ ~w.,ltehft€;i,Ly 'With 

~,.,A·he,a,~ '• . 
-~~:·..;~.i ,. ·~··~lffl~~ts..·~~;~~·· ;b.i ·~·pe~ draft and. by Qle close ftbe@ir~~~ 
~·~o(e,, .. t~i~1 hiP~ J;kllm~a~iiy~i~i~~~qx>@~ 

• 
18 



31

0123456789

Co~delltfalFe~I llulellt'Eviu~486~~tkin 

M . ··· · .. · .;...:t.......... ·f .. An.,--g..-....unn a~ .. -.... ....... __. T 
~J:'3µ,v;~u 0- "'~"~~ ~4llU-_,,., i.:,q:~i.v'"" ~~~, 

and itnplementall t&nns andcongiti~ oftbis Settlemlfflt' 
A.gteement. an,i,rtbat:are: futJy CQ~istent wub..thfa Stttlth,'1ent 
Agteeuien.t;, and,one an!ltf\er~ Q,Qnsisti~ .. of: (i) for :f:rQ3· and the City, 
a FinajSettlem~nt Agr~ement;artd (U}::for VCK and,the.City, a fully 
exe¢ntedCo~®tDe~~: ··• 

.C;.· Stutement~t~ O>nminmeaimn$ .. VCKandH'.lDl·sball 
~er~·withthe City ,t~ jointlypi:~pare, te\fi¢w, ~r~··t® 
con.fe~t of.~d di.$em3nate ill), ~~etpa:I puijUc comrnuniq,a.tions 
.regardttig th~ :~rtna and cotJditj:Q;ffll ~ftbis S~tttement Agreement and 
tile c.la.lm~ dis~ed:herel;>y1 i1.1¢ludn1g, without limitation, any sewer 
a.µd·· wa.i~:e teyerme nieas'U!:es ~ce.s$ary to ilpplement;lbe.tei;ms and 

· CQnclitibns of"fui,s, Settlement ~eme:nt: Wcit11out:iimlti!1:8" we: . 
F~sl obli:gati.ons to OO(}petate \Uld.et tkis P~gr3Phi.l1'.I'If and VCK 
each a~·to p,;vvide: ~ <Jit}(, a,tl$~t twenty~ouH24) hours prlor.:to 
:release Qt re.spo~se1 .tb.~ icitnent 9fth;e ftilloWinJ j;ypes of 'ti~e.maJ 
wtitt~tltgttui)•atioU$ ;~a~ip.g the terrol. and)zon(ti.tionsQf this 
S~~tAm-~~t,ang,the .cr~m'S dismi$;Sed. hereby: pre~ 
releas~s. pre~ article&, public notic~ atldP9Stings, external w;ti~en 
091P-~ie@.tlOil$1.pu,blic ~.pq~c ~~nts.,andresponsel:!, 
r~~s;f9rintervie:ws, res.pon~s. oroorrunents receiyed fr0m the 
media, .and ·conununlc~ipns with Agencies with Jurt~ction. · 

d. . P~l'mitting. The Parties snal[cooperate .withrespectroinltiatlion;. 
implementation, andcoilPlrisiqn.o'fall~nsuI~.n, f*nJnt.tin.91, 
certffi~tio~. and appJ."Ovaf~'Wi(b t,neJ.g~ie$with, 
.Jurisdip~on to obtain valid~~~ffiQY ~ •tbat are. CQU$1$tent 
witl.1 this ~ttl~A;~<.m9r~Jmtuacy;i.,, 2020, subje;ct to 
f!llY cfelc}ysas~.With aoyf~ ~iitl.gi~ rigijts undei; 
~.8·~d9. 

f. 

Sm~~ ~if~$ shall ~p,«ate ,wit4~tJo, ~.sb~!l actively 
¥~~~,as s~b,ql~,mjttiepr~~tionQf tb~E~~ 
Sifpw~hee SWy·~~,¥;~PQrt) and.~Ph.asei R.~cyof~ 
W~i;Mar~t'~}' fot's~ssioti.to t:Iu;RWQ~ that are coisi§tent 
~~~-~~~-pf~$~enwit~~tbe'NlW .. 
NPDBS P~f:requmnnents, and aay additional requhrementsirt\posed 
by thecRWQCS, 

19 



32

0123456789

'Conffileatia.lFe«eral Ruleof 15vide~0()~~ 

.MemorandtmiofA~lltRe~&ttlement Terms 

ReclamationUses:(as a~t:pri<Jtit:)andthe Tr~atnu~~W¢flancls{tl$ a 
sec~-EliorityJ, Whwh'ate lO OO~nfed by>the City.W comp1i~ce 
wi,ffi.~S~.A~t 

Notkeof~nt(>fFo·M~ or'E,v~tof~entati~n·Constrain4 
~t;ot~.,Penodm.U,~aatt'Meet;and~~ 

.. 

~,· ~ce of~~efJlqreel\frd.~e Ql",twenteflin~M 
·QJ~&aint,~n,.or Q~. 'J'bePartiey ~ that,.4espite 
the City's ~uable effum toJden~;~leot, p!!Uli ~engineer, 
environmentally review;~~ ®~ct, and JflWler.neutDiversipn 
Jnfr~~ ~ec$ andEffl~nt div~rsion~. thectfy ~y ~ 
prei\"ell:~PY.an B~t Qf Force~jeure, the Q:)l)S~liQtl' 

~lll~tion C;(>~~. or ~tioAAl»uP~nt!ttion ~ts 
:fttml t;roptementio,g Di-v~on Inmistruc~ Pro~, anotor'Effluen,t 
cli~ersions bythe~piranon ·o{the time ~l~duk{ Tri ~di~ni fmm 
ume.m ~··~ f.hetermpf thfs S~nt ~t. any Pai:ty 
maybtJ~Ve~J:·wtotheJ:~ ijasbt¢abfied the.S~ Agreement, 
or the Parties may disagree ~ to tne~ropriate io~rpre~on or , 
~~~ffiU®Qf~S~ent 4~nt, or th¢.sWU~otA~R¢Y 
of ~y Patty's~qrmana\l'iof jt:, ot,jlijttjons.hereuos;fer, ll) ~$V~t:that 
.any Party reaso~W~li~v~ that an Evegr,9fPorce Majeure or Event of 
Jlnple~nll¢lQll0.m$"~t1~~j@~i;~~~~b@ ~. thtm 
such Party shatt,~~~oM l?attie.s written nati~ofthe.occurrence 
ofsucb: ¢Vent. . . . . 

b.i. RighttaCure;•Meet ~ Confer. Ul)Oll niceiptof wri~Noti~:from 
.any~· of ~~vent otEorreMa,jeure Q:J; an Event QED:riplen11!ntation 

.. CoQs~ Disa~~Qi:Breach.. the affec~ Party ()l' Parti~~ 
:ba~~rtt loostthiny (30) ~days ~~eipt of the:.Notl~iinirore 
~y~gaj.b~chpf tbe~ettle~W1~t.prtoaddress.~~ 
ot~J",{Qti.c~~andt:Qprqvid.¢!a wti#ffltespcmsetQ~~laiins •. If, after 
~thirty (30) calen(Ja.r da}1S (or su¢h lo·~~~.fbefaqies.roay 
~tually ~·f9·~wtj~)anct~\iASiqn; ofthe~;~i;,nsejo th~ 
Notice, anf ~.re.a,$0n,ablyl:)ooi,y~~theEventof~~,~~jeure or 
'B.ventofltnpl,einet1~~c.o,~t,.~ew.ent,,pr:'B~~.QQr 
·been'adequatelr:addtessedl:woate<i, ~(!;~~shall moot andoonferto 
pe~eJlow,~tp~to~f()f:floroe:Majeureorllventof . 
Iinpl~tn(,,:o.~ti~fo~~~nt,,.gr, I,Jreac~ \fbioh res~may 
• · · J,.t~M .~~.1..t.,,.,..;.1~~ t,1,;,, .~-~· . ~t· ·.. ···· · .·. · ·.· · .. ··· · . l ·) .,...,..;t;F,;, ~V~1,1t~~~;w,,w~~~~i:~~. muiU4.li:ft~~:tQ:.,a .. ·,..-,.,,,J·, 
ci:ulngc;?,~, or·~te·Qjffet:tmtDiv$'Siol'.i~ti.'U~~P,,,o~c~ 
ott>iv~ IQft~ctw-e Proj~tcomp9~ents from.tlo~pfy:V:19~1y 
~~d; (bJ iden~~$¢le9t, lm4p~iirop1ementilrii>ti·e.f~nt 
'Bflluent diversien,tiow altmti11~:ru:id:requiietnents:thanprevlowtl:y 

iir 

20 



33

0123456789

·~: 

~•t1aUrea.a1;~-~ip·~~tton 
;:.-. -~ '·" ·.-.· .. ....,... . .... ·A ...._.,:..&';,A o~nt.R...,...dlnn: .. " ... "" - t-'....._~,~~---·q)!! :c,.,.,........._._..... ~--~~ .:K;&MetnelJ . .l.~-1111.!f 

~ (c) aqjustcapltafnwesnnent co&t$; ~ arnUitmneing 
-~®Ut$;{d) ~~!;mQii~;~i~~·-~.~,h~or 
~~~uit •. ~ .. ~~J(~)r~vise.~. 
anif~'tfi .. Yfimei&~~Qlf(f)delete. ~ clt. · ~ 
~~~~~~~~nai$.tfut~~-t-~!i - , .. ' 
eq~ 

··9'=m~s:~ 
ii\§~:and-1 . ' - ' ' . P~&;.b Wittiill ' - (90,) 
·qh4aY1tX~ftie,, ·cor~-tonger~aa.U::m.UUlally 
=~;:;=~~~~~·:~~;~f~~µ~ 

i§~l!t~ 
tight, -·· c11~~w@tm:N~ td~~disptlte, ~t=~~~ws: ·, . -~· ... · . . . .. · . . . 

-~ =~~~===t~ 
~ &-~8does'ilot-~y~olve;!l,ithir\~{99) culei;:tt'fat~ys(~·· 

it!!&W:~ 
~witfi~~ ~·WittQ·ffiirty(30) ·~ 

;' , :ti 

21 



34

0123456789

(?-tntkle~llf~lRltw:Qf·Bvi~408 Com~tiQn 

M~nfJJmJ,Qi'~~nt&~5'~1'~ 

c1$.and.inf~tioom sll}?;POrtoftheFarty'sposition. Withlnforcy~ 
ti"<{e(45.)oal~days aftet.the~c ReView Pauel.1$convened(or 
such.lo~~ asmaype agreedtoinwritm.ghI lhe~J, ~ 
Etlliy ~ ~tto ~s~~i¢ Review Panel. witft a c~y tt:>~haf 
-~~~i any wcitte~rebuual.sta~l4malol'-~lcllp&tincnt 
<Wa.orti){Qrtnati<:mfor~q,tl,l.'>y(he.~ .. ·TueScientffic)~.eview 
~el:@allJ:hen~viewAAd Q~~Y oo.nsi(W·~~~ and. withinc 
,fQtty,-{ive.t45JCffletlciat:'c.14Ys,~~d.tJedateforrebp,ttalstaremenlSand 
lttfot,tµatitm(Qr sqcft~ ~od as.may ~agreed~ mwritipgby'the 
~' tlwScientifro ~e,vi~w P.anef shall decidean4tf~~ by 
majomy·•VQte,· tbeMtiximum&o!ogicfflly.~v.t1Divetslon VQlume 
b~on ,the:bestavairablt,scienonc mfurmation aud:d'ata. 'The'Sclentffic 
Revi,ew ~,s.hall~~;ancl~ ~ntly Wiffi~uingits · 
cl~~~/ruhf)liittee®b-Of~.Parties a w.rlltett~exp~ 
~··~~·the~UIU~fo~f~Ve 
Uiy~1~n \(olumi.,; ~ ~~h~atl\;tninimum, fuclude.the l?anilP& 
&vafuatii;mQ:f tm:;e.nvir~J~pacrsof~~mativelevels of 
Rffluentdiscl,rarg~to the Estw.\ey·ffiat,tliey cQmndere~lin :making their 

,. ~o~qf~~uniBcologically ~dive-Diversion 
v61ume. anf.i~ett~~~offfie;Bffl~~ge!regime 
that they~tennirwconstit.utes theM~~~y·~ve 
Div~on.Volume. '1'hi$ ~·n~~vi~~ lP an~ 
st,tidi~~etX>rts} @~$ta tfuitfhe.Panel~~,µpgn.~.~ its 
®~Qn. '{b~;Ciiy~subnittl:ll$~rt;to ®Resp~ Agcocies 
Qo,11~}1 wiJh.Qf~f.l~:Otits~lica~ for any~ Agency 
Pertzjits. The ~i~JlficB:~•w P•f.sdeteo;nhlatiQn qfMaximum 
~Qk)g~tilly Ft;~veJ,)iye,rskinV<il~shall be bincthlg upon.the. 
~;amt~@t oo~~~tofurtherchallengeorteview, The 
sci¢tJtijl!fe~~lected and:servit:li, Qll dr~.Scien(iflt:i;ReViesWPitn¢l shall 
k~~~~ ~Jo~of~ur,s~in f1?V~wihgand 
re.sot~gt:l:w;$C~tific,~pute, aa.d.!.ihall btt~~by~.g,tyfot: 
~.b,ours~f% atprevailing cown~~~edby~ 
$~.p(Of~sionaJs'Woi,th.substant.Wly~q~nrancI 
~~; 

;}1, ~~· ~ ~-~v~nt~ fh~~~RU~~lqtionprc>eess 
discus$edinthe P~Ph8~not~fy ~lvethel?arties' 
~'Witnin~(90)~~~~:(~~~.~~maybe 
~iitu~;~tf> in wtitj~~¥ theParti~}~,~erii ~reseect~ atiy 
~,t1ot~~tofo~di~~lnijoo,pi.gsuantw. Par:agrapl\9,a.. 
~ttae Cjty··Ol'VCX<. W;ilti· VCK a®ngan:its own,~ll.alf Wld/oron 
~·<!f~~~ymv~fQnnaldi$pnteresolution,by.fjlmg a motioo tQ 
show.c;aliSe'}or ot11«-~1y~~~911 ('kl\1~"), in~ .. · 
Dis.ttlct'Comtforth~~~t;~f~otnia;~~Judie~~ 

. . ;, ... , ·.,." 

J~ 

22 



35

0123456789

C~F~trQllt~orE~.-C~nrniuBi~fif,ffl 

Meniorantbun-uf .. ~tR-egardmg~ntTerms 

King,to whQm tbe~W-0. ~v~1~!$'.~~ is~ ro: 
~wtm,edtsp~1 IfJ~i; ~j~ "'*·a~aqleto~ot;I!1, Qr:dei:lib~ 
~pen.~tbf ~i®}.~ ~ ~J;l~agr@tMttheMQtion$hall 
~~sigµe4i:>another·jut1ge; co~~ ma~e, or ~Qr p~ to 
~~a'ble ml~ of:tJ:ie· Di&~'Co~ for the Central Disrr.ict.of California, 
-~d~ision or rutfug by the Com:iorthe O;rurt'.s•i~ shall.~ . 
~·upon.tteParties;i:m::i.d~llnntbe:s~~;~~obru1engeor rev.iew. ,- . . . ·... . . .. 

~;,~·~w1¢geanit~ tbat~ is~~.~.to Qlse·NQ. 
,ev-1(}-oow2,-0HK (PJWx). ~.white the,~intwctthat~. 
subs_taritwe.provisiQns of~Final -Soot~Agreemerit.:S~a!I·~ 
COQSis~t~tll.-~~A1Jyfhestµ,~;@$,~ot'tlte€Q~-1J.ec~ 
VCKand.HTB ~y:iU~ ~.ha1*diff~vrews or~ons of 
iile.proV1$~·ofiftietwo. ~ttillµentsi andthePmal &tttl~irAgreement 
wilh:1ot be ~fo,rel<! Cm.m. withjurisdi,QliQn ov~VCK1.the C~~~ 
l)«ll!',e,·and Case.No. ~V~1Q..02Q72--GHI{Q?.IW°l1'i), Nqtwitb,s~din~1fle. 
foregoing, y~and~.affeee tmtt Eill.~~QlviPg lll'll~wh~~er 
~g~def~~ement~er~~-~~ 
~~t~~not~~pin1,~ua1~f~~hs .8 Ql9.a., $ial!be 
~sed.l>Y VCK on behalf:ofli'f.B~ ~foll.~; 

t ~ab!Y,~~br.~«}®~in wti~ya< 
·~1:me· ·~~y~we:ro~on.a~ti~fot 
funrtaldispute1eselutl6n~anyis$les~g~.~. 
$~emmt,b~e11tot~al ~em~A.~enti so long 
.····.Lo- '; · •· · .ta.,....: . ..,;,....11,.,i, ,;i.:.>t,1's,:""i:,,-~ ..... ~:,..··mnrt ... .;..for as. u;i.c,.. .. tl'i@u\vn.:v~ ..,~ ~.iµ: · ... ··~~ ~l?!-<•7'P~"'l'··-
~J '-; ..... !~ttQf~~8awi9artdffi.e 1em$'and 
.~tis •. of~S~.~~ . 

ii. l:Jlit~:fh(!t. ~.Wi. is••~pattyfQ VCK;'~,actA<m 
en~·~N,Q. @ .. i~i-Qa (P,Wx) ~~~tly 
~--1h1the ~~10(:)qtt~r~ ~~ J:i}istrlct c:,f · c.,,;lf~:... ~- .. ~ •. lffl· f{.~g: ...... 1·0.-..1......:..=· ,,. . .....,............... will · ·,~u.a.. ~;,_.,..~~~:~.,t.!','~,~:~""a.t...-c~~ .... en.t .. · .. not 
®J;ffore~~ CQu1{iu ifxat~~~(l(.t~m wi.Q,OQtbe ~-~ '!,t) 
~~·~ot19 AD:Y\l,f~o~;fl,1,ecl µyV~~Jtli~· 
~. ~rand.all HrB dispures~~,1:t~~ 
~tQf~~t~~~:ar¢·~teselVeq 
~®tier.P~ph,8 QJ;"~Ji~~~~~:~lv6d, as 
~._,;A:....i;~..;:.i....~~~..J:,"9:1.. ··bv;iVC:l,i'l'lt:~a......:Motioo"'"' 

~ :,¥:'_.~_--,,~~~4::~ -1r~~;~'-;;":_;!JJ~ __ J:: :;ff.:'.:_:· ___ ,·:·-.'-:,~~}1:~:· _._'.i_:· · -:?{:· ._..:.,,.~-

~:~a:l'B Wl4f Pr bqtft~ll~~ . . -. 

ijli,. In a,J,:ffitpn.J-ft'B. ~~tth¢:jadgment or l1llu;l.g on,Aw 
~1;\lJy~Cou:i;tQf~:ComVs••~~tvitl1~~ 

l··~ .: .. ~ 

23 



36

0123456789

-. 

-€&~~f'~f$1:'~ofBwle~··~n 

MaJi~4lllll.;f~~~~tTo.,uN: 

24 



37

0123456789

£onffdentit\lifed~l~QfE.~4()J;~ 

MeinonQlifQmofA~-... ;~--~~. 

h· VCK__.aa~-~~W'ftrin~(30) 

.~~~~~;; 
vc, . li~i m:lheevemihat,i< ~f$tn th· . . . rs 

~~~~ 
~dr~~t:jty shatllia; · at ·. ·· · ·. {14) calemlar~ · 

;.:t=~=~:zt,,r-:;1· ~ 
.~tµ,t(\~~1 f.9;t'illelf . .. . .· ~~City p.t;().'1de 
· addilioruil f@it,non.:confldential and: . . ,·~.~tsuppomtig 
d~J~01.1i:or~thatis uotreadily~lt,:<Jr~stl,le, 
tbeCif.y ~.ba.vea:reasonabletimc<to 8fOC!SS~~~~ 

=:=~•=t~ '¢81~~.aftet ~df any,~tm~nfrom v tora 
'~-~:1n)iui~siaPh:tom9~a~~ §ij~~~:coU:enis 

if~~~FM 
;~=~=as 

aoo~ . . videc\. andshallmdi*to·VCK,m wdfll8 

a~\nitr'.$.. .. df:~g~ · tw.~apprqacptQ,~ 

i1.f 

25 



38

0123456789

Co~tial,,~'.JllJk,ofE~-c~-~ 

~~d$1t·of~t.~J~tT~rms· 

11ar.,,...... ... i.....:. 0. ,,...,;;t.":g 
.. ~~4~Q:.~" 

! ~. • . .: 

·,f 

26 



39

0123456789

CfJOflde:ndal ~l ltule~lviiie~408! Co~¢a'*ot, 

Mmno1.'811dumof A~t,Re~~~.SettlmnetU Te~s 

a;;;. ~~tNQlto<~UeQJ::<.Chall~,~,a, .. pe.r~~J~y,~ 
S~.ipeni AgreementiriP~~aph ·.i Lb,; b'~~~.shEJl1 n(?,t advoc~, 
:pursue, orrequesta~~~rt1~~~tton •. or,~~val 
from, or·petltion,,appeat,:ad~v6ly, legally, orjuqiciatly challenge 
Qf ~·.er ~srwpott en~ut~t; or'im~any Clatmbefoiw~y 
~Qf tQ~,;\gencies Wifl;l Jtu:is({lbliQo Ot, any c.Qutt Wi~ jncl$dictiQJ;l, to 
obtaiuauyLegmor;g~g_uw,tQcyActi<m that isco~ tQ.tneS~ttlement 
A~enJandtbat would be:~of.0, and,f>ind.µlgµpo~ any Party. 
11;1 tbe event thatany.Legi,il. pr ~~ry /,\cuonis ®utj:1 or adopted 
tlw iscon~t@.~fe~''®d·co1.1ditjous of tbii $ett1~~~t 
Agteernent, eachPany:~ all tts'.~ghts to pursue iuly available 
Oafmto ~ slicb,Legalpr Re,gmatc!ry:Actk>n.. · 

a Ex~ti;ons·iocov~t,:NoU~SJlfHlr~l9'i, Notwithstanding 
Paragral)11 I 1.a. o,cth¢~l~ ~t'9rth in ~gti,ph 1 Le, bel~w. the 
Pm;ties ~rve anclsl:$Ilriave the,f'Q.Uciwin3 rigflts tQ pqrsue Claims : 

htyPatty 111ay ad~vety·appealor~~oial:tevie.w. 
··qt' tbe.~l.lUSiartd con~nsefany ~:Agency Permits 
~tffli~®~ fA,~S'eutertttdiAgt:ee~t 

J;J,, I)m;rug 1:he tetw of the &ettl.®1eot Agreemei;tt, any Party may 
itl$t;i~O~ to ~ufor~ the temis:and~on(Utions of,.Md 
r~yiat,,t breaoh of th~Se~A~~t, subj•to 
a.o4l;ll .. $1ct.accqn:4mce WifPJ'ar,,ig,;~plis a·antt'9 ~bQve: 

.:~ ~'.~;sflallbedee~tobepieclu~ftbJ'.9 ~gi'g 
· ·.~ Qf ~erting l:lf~rm,nts q~~ ayail~~le,iQ, tbem it) 
the ~~enceof ~ S7~~ent;4gree~nt.it~ 
~~ti~orjudicial·proc~¢o~,:geneta} 
,polioy ~itions. the genei;al vali(lii;y <;>f~tanl-: adniini»ttative 
niles. i;egulatipnS;Qf:~n~;~~ts, ~;m~~ral 
a~llityand~atto11~~~ifsubh stiiu~. 
adi~iiws~~ye rule.$,.te~n,g.,,~peru;ilts, orregulatocy 

. ,pdli~~d,~ ~fu..~pfy:tp~tc~. HTB; or VCK . 
·~~'?:f\a'¢~~·Wmi~.~uties,so 1ongas noPaizy·•~ 
~4,~y ~ ~ a.~eqsIMt Ot:OPPQ~nt~h.~ucµ Glajm, 
an.<\l~~ . te~ that.anyothe(Patcy:s·~ti<n1Sor · · 
~r .gWitbout~ntb~~t 

.ges)area~a:for,oraGaSe~~Y:1:f~;suppoiting the 
general vfll,ioj,ty or~~, of stl® i~ •. a&i:rlmsttati:ye. 

;[1· 

27 



40

0123456789

mles"~tipflS, general}.)ffl1lits, 01:u:eguiatory policies. 

·iv. In th~~~ntthatthe:City fails to irµplernew the A~9ved 
~tbivemi9~on the Time ~ule 6ecattSeto do so 
wouidrtq~ :r;:ortS,.ll'.tlctioo and~on of Diversion 
Inf:tas~i~eql:$ tbatai:e.~y lbfeasil;>le ~se, 
al~ugh·~ Citi\\V:iU,0:u1eedt1,naiseit.•lsewet~to levels 
tm\t would~ausff~Medjan ~e~ C~tan,(j the A.~l ~ 
·~ comP,9q.tmts ofF~~iliffl~J911:)ee~¢4. flle 
·i:otarN« ~v1$n~HQr~UivfJ.'sionJ~ctmey 1;11'ojec;ts 
·~ theNetfuve$tm~@\,p •• th.Qn da~ Gil;f sfialinot be in 
breach 9f fhh,Settle~ntA~gi,eµt; ~d~ Parties. shall 
tneetanci l!OnI$' as sei,\t'~tttii mJ?'ata~phs S and 9. Putrher, in 
adqinenio,mo~e.remedi¢s provided by this se.tti~l 
A~. tbe PartieSc a~ ~tinsu®case, .at@_S¢l~lyin 
stiqh case, I-IT~ aridVCl<;.~'*1.~~e. ~u·1:e~ any legal 
rigb:l'.$ti.~~~v:~lcto~,inthe ~n~·qfthis 
S~t/\~~t.~a.,~:;¢faim.ohall~g~~City.'s 
fail~W'impl~~tJ)iversfonlnftas~c~t~Piojei;:ta•as 
~Sallf tt!•.tiia1¢ ~· ApprovedEfflue~t:;l)iV.etsiqiison ~. 
'Iitne Soheoute. 

:y,. ·'n;! the ev~that theCiey;02U~ or ~~ally contribtrtes to a 
signilloan~ unlawfulfflSQf:uttgeot.wRunmts or W8$,~to the 
~unn:y tha,l'~ts in~ m'wtigureooeupymgtbe ~iu~, 
or ctesu:uctiQn mJJi su®tmltfal! ron~term degr~d4fion 9!,habitlt 
.prot:t~hym¢~tµacy. tbenea,efi,Qflfll3,~~lV'CK;~~~ 
~y Jegaldghts orh.erwise available,totben;\in the·~ of 
~ ~t ~~i:wnt t9 ~trattvety gh~~~n1e~ 
i:1,~~~ ~:~utcmts Qf waste. 

··,1,.. ~.~trq~ orrigQ:ts1;1~fQrtf:(inl=!~graph~1ll\b)ii, 
ll,p;Jv ~:1ci:b.v. 9pei;ate,Q~to r~re and1~~ th~ :tights 
oft?ar:ties to ~-Claim&tha.tdJ.e J:lai(tie.s woui(J,,a~be 
~ly entitled to ~rtfu tfieab$~iw¢ of tlnf~rnen! 
~ent, but nofh.l®.1mthoseprow.~9~··~be~¢W~~<i 
t() create any new rights orCiaimsjor.any '~f-01·,a:new'. a~ . 

28 



41

0123456789

Ph~.~ Dis~U~ e~eCUU90.,<#'this S~e.ot 
AgiseeIXlfflt byl-fl'a}and; the City, the-·~ shalhtake all 
rtl'isonably rt:qU;~;~p~ .and ~~~.ana ~hall JQtnrty filei the 
d~~nts.~te, t~fhq\cirq. abey~~or·otl)erwise 
~"-~~ .. Cil:f's:.~~ to~d to ~·:a P:®i~QU A-};9',7(a), 
whieb.is~~yperunnga~theWlilF~FS ~it· 
andZt;n""the!City (as a@a.lp~Jlt·~test}befo.re"tne State 
W~R9soru:cesC~trbl B~cl,until:at~t11@ da,ysaft~ 
tfi.e-date,of~ectlfionQftflis .. Se~~tAgreement(or·such 
otber dffle,m.ttt$U,;t~foby~and:fl\e Cuy) to 
.acco~odate.~onofthe·~·'~Urresp~tto•the 
· City Public~- ,So long as the .. ~~ ~its obligations 
~~,tht,;·Se¢J~tAgree~ .. Hf:JJ·.··~·.•the,~ty ~ 
~ noeto ~an, ~~CI~µn;tt~tDother dtiring tlle 
Cif¥,~~~w~~~~f~ A":1927(a)ortbe 
subjectma,tteroftbis ~ekleroentAgt:eement (fucludklg, 

· ~m~taiion., any(2laµn~~g1ne ~ NP~ 
PerroitQ.t a~ WltFdisoh~~ of Eftlu$1p,,ex~pt~s 
pennirtedby'Patagrap& ! t:,{lji,· \'!sb.w. ~,11.b.y.i, and 11.l> vi. 
Upon: ~1'¢lu~*of{h~:Gi1ry Public h~.and~xooution of 
.tlJ,e.f~SeffJe~~\.~~ntJ>y ~· 804.tlj~~' ttio.~ 
~~·shl,ul·~:i~~ably ~ ~~psa11d~qti,Qns,.and 
~ffllftle the ~~ts ~fQPria~, to assure.adequate 
~i witllp~W,ice'ofajlpendluglfr;B C\~.a~~st 
~)5'.t;y.:eg~~g.tln.t;s~tition..¢\-f927(a) andd:l$Charg~ 
ofBf~AenlaAdl~r·tne·WRr NJ,>Jl~ Pennit, and ,t~11ro¥i<le 
the mµma!.t;eJ~es of }?eq4iAg Cl!ll~s ~$ ~t £orthji this .... 

. P~g~.ph W,ldFaragraph l(g.iH., and/t\).r~le.~. ~limit 
~ ~ttl:t~ ~ l>y th.e Pai;ties ,~ s.et,f()nb iu; r.m:ag,;a_pl;it 
n.a,, 11,c,.v .• apdll.d: · · · 

tt.: ~:VCK,l)~,.·Upolle~ntionof·~·$~t 
Agreementf>yYC~~~~.th~Patp,es $aij:,~~· 
~~onably ,;eqgir~.~~~· ~ ~ti9ps,;1{Ul~s~.N:Jingy file the 
'1~.JJIDe,U~~ij~,·tp~\~:~J~x~PQndt9 the 
~g~~sin~~N&.. C~~1~z ... GHl( (PJWx) to 
a,d~thilr,i~~'.JbaS~l20i~s,··after the'd'~·of~eeution of this 
!e~~~.~~iWll;t:~!)tSucll 9tl.1erdat~ mutUallya~l:9 

· ~y¥':Q(;~~~~''l'pt;OV€:dby tl\epi$ttiQt:~~}to 
a~·coopert\ponoftf:lePa,mes.wl~~e¢t;t,~',~ 
City~~~'. Solong~tbfCit>'~$ i!sot,~~ 
~tbis·.~tt1emewA~~V~1,aµo,:the Cuyeach. 

!ft'' 

29 



42

0123456789

iF'! fi~~JO.-L.P<lll o ....... ~~ ...... AAO~~ ... ~~ 
· ,.,QB ~~1'~"';'P·~1;1!.tPTJ.q~~-~~~~ 

., 

30 



43

0123456789

~~I~.t~:488~h 

1\JE,.,.._ -.1~~ ·of A .... ~>11-ndbu..C!-Ht,-..- 'E , .. q;;a,aQl'a~~·· .. ,...........-.~~'W.~~·~~·i•.UIIF&Jt '.~ 
.,.'-.. · .. ;.· 

~. 

31 



44

0123456789

Cen(._tial F~r,:~1 lule'Qf!Evi~IM,it498 ~tiqp 

MemQrandUQl QfAgreemeatRega~g ~ttfen:ient Terms 

C;>~r$, $bateho~.~r~~ ~1Qyee$, agents~ 
~tive$, attQt:@YS~~Jj~. c<m,su1tants; sue~, 
arid assigns, Qt; persons. firms'.,.:and 9Q1p0Tatirins having an 
intere~t iu.~ ~. except as specffical11, ao4~~s$1Y 
permitted by th&reservations of rigQtssetAmtltin Paragraphs 
rta.1 Ub;14.c and 1$. Th:iS, releaseniclu~ a ~er, 
~~~ase. andcove;W10tnotto~~qr~any Cla4Af0):" 
~ f~ ofstaff, ~~ys:,,~~_,Calffl.µfiant's, and·others,, 
llt'¢c>stsore:xpensesi 9t,,any·~sU1'.tl inctntedin co.rm.ection 
witb·fl:M ~mettt4~~t! tlie F.i.n4!S~ttlement 
A~W~Xlt, or tb,e CoJISen~~. ~c.ept as e:.irpm~)' 
~~"roi Paragraphs l4~c~d15 .. 

d.· General P,ovisions ~ns:Waive~ aud'::Releases Executed. 
'~tttJ.thJs~-~t 

Ji Wlliv~NW~31ifm,QiaCrru:c*~:1S'2: nt 
connootiorpvith the waj.vers atid~~ of'exi~ting,, 
fu~e, ~own! ~d onkP.ownelaims:1,r9vided ai:id/Qr"executed 
pu.,tSUant to Paragraphs.9h,iiL, '}O.ct,'114, U.c., 1!3:.J4.a., and 
l4.b, ~d;s~bjoohltdy rotn~d!cepti911S .set forth in Pru:agtaphs 
it •. J,.,. J4.e.t .d;iroo~J4,o.ivi~and .. 15,eachpf11\e·City.WJ,, 
and ¥CK', oabehaff of itselfland it$'<.iW~, ~ool<J~,, 
.~~tQCS{f.'m,pto~tag~,t~~~V,~ ' . 
atto~~. affi,ijates; cqns~IAlJJts, s~~~iruvl· as&~. 
expr,e~waive,s;for ~bQne~tof~li~t Party ancfall 
w*ffitespectto aUmtv~~ .µ)cl,tele~~t fortpin the. 
S~enient A\~nt. t;h.e~tof£alifomia Civil Code 
§ 1542, whiohprt?Vide~ as tu!lows: 

'~A &ENERAL.RJ?J.-.. ,ooFSmT·g~TEND 
TOA,J.,j,C~SWHICBTBECREDITQR 
.pav.s·~'rKNOWJ)&~trf TO~TIN 
.:IUS,QR: ·•.. 'AY~B,~1:DIETJMEOF 

·=Silt 
· .. "_ . ·,.-.:. , :_., .. 

ll'fllfS··Jidli• 

ii.· ·~R~eµtaQ~~W~ Qt,.M,~Oold. 
~~~1and warrd inatbl;} is auJ:hprize<l rp~tecure this 

22: '--·~.-,-~· 

32 



45

0123456789

Cooffilen'tialF.ed~ Rule ofE~nceMJS~ 

11.ll"-...0..-.....:a- of.A · ,» ....... "" · . ...u .... .. · 'Se""1~,....,,.~'t1 .. \.,. ···~ · ·=. l.:o'.l.~.UUJE·llQIUffllJ . .greeJlleJI. ,&~~ '\U'CUu;AI", .!1,,;,J,ttli) 

;~crs, ~~;members;,~> employees, a~. 
rt!l~e&.atto~. affni,r.esr~uttants, s~om. 
~~,ot~.~,an,dc~qhs·havitlgan 
lll~t i;litb.e Partr •. e~ceptas.~y audtm.pressly 
perftli~bythe~ations ~\ti~setfotthinP~s 
Ji.a.., 1 :t.~ 14.G-aoo lS. ll:risiij~ me~ a-waiver, 
~ooml r~l~.:a(ldcrove~notJ;osueor·f.'JleaayCJifflll.for 
~~f~ofsta:ff,.a~n,;~, ~SUlhmrs~·aw1~. 
or co.st$ or expeme.$1 ot·aey otllet• ~µini,.icurted.cm coruiec.tion 
~itfltllj$ ~~~m~~Final Se~ 
~t,or~C~~~~~e.~ 
~~~y·~@pb&l4.c·and15. 

d Geneval PJ;ovislons Reganting'\Vajv~J.1S;fllld~~~U-'d 
Pu.-.............. ·· ........ 1..:.,c,.,.u.1 ··"ent. ,.:&··· .. ~· .•. •·.· •·•.•.. . . . 

,. .... ~"·""' ... ~~eQJJ' ~.........,.-

i. W~:,>f"~:CivJHble~~; m 
· · emm~tiPn Wlth th~ waivcm·ao,d g~j1eJ"al .n;~ .of existin¥, 
futu.tt\knovm, and unkn.ownCiaims••~•ahd'orexeeuted 
pursuantt9 Paragrapb~.9b.iii .• IO.&; tta., \:!~o .. , 13.J4.a .. and 
~1~, aild. s~~t ~yto.tµ~~~ptibm; ~fl;)rthihPfl'ij~ 
1 tb~, .14;ex thtQugh 14.o.iv., and 15, each. of theCity, HTB, 
andJtCti ~tlebalf Qf~,ai.ul it;s oW(l~.~ 

.. w~~;~, empl~,·asen%~¥es~ ... 
atteme.ys,.affiliams, oonwltants, ~ot$,:awlassign&, 
~ w-hlves,for elle be~tQfe®h <.>the,; Patty audal.t 
witll~apectto all w3iv~andreJ~~ •f<>nhintbe 
Settfe.m:entAgt:eem~the benefittifC'~ Civ:jJCode· 
f 15421 wliidtp1,;9vt~ ~~ws.:. 

"A GENEUi,l.mJ:.mSE!OOE&I'iTOTEXTENil 
TOALL¢~"1U~·~ciU)~11,. ·· .. 
DOF.&.NOl'lOKlW(jitiQ'Sl$$t;F''°~IN 
HfS~.88.l{FAVOB;fl~!~lllli.J:JMEO,F 

-~:~ 

33 



46

0123456789

.•. 

~~.J!deral',ft.Qf.Evidentei48S,C~~ 

MemorandUl'1.Qf~••ll~fiW~·TeDll$ 

~···:-U£~~i::m~°t::i,; 
••• 

.. 

34 



47

0123456789

Settl~~Agree,rmmtitnd·tbe:FmalSen'tement~nt, 
andtp Q~ispact on legal rnattei:s Q.t,1 lJebalf qfHfB, 
~µhou~ seeking advice or cc;m~i,o:f an attorney Jicensed !CJ 
~~lawmeant:om;,. Dr,Oold~~~:., 
wm;rai;ns that lle is a p~on e:xpj;lti,mctd:in ~e typei of ~g1:11 
a~ts.and:ttansact.ions, ~··11As.•substantiale~perience·in 
~Vie,wir:lg~.h;q,le~~I mw.~rtitlg agreements like this 
Settle~nt A~t~·as. well asJhe Iegal·and .~atocy 
~~se~tllel;e,tn. Or. Goldacknowledg~ fhar the 
Cityh~~~ded ~ HWB haYethis &ettte~t 
~ment,re\'iew~ by I~ co~1 bur, iA,1fie:eX&Cise,of 
Dr. GolcJ!s,so1e~on.a¢~. as,~~ntQffl'TB,.he fo~s 
.decUned toba~~galc9wiselrev.jew the te1lPS of this 
Settl~tA~ut\,~~ed onJrisexpe,rtise and experience 
~legal ~tt~tf&'ijki this o~, anc;t wi~ re$pect to the fedeµu 
Ck@l Watet:Aet1 the,CalifoJ.1Ua,~ol•e,Actyand state 
atdfederal Eudang¢ted Specie.'t Mts· .· 

~·' : .. · .. ·.·."· •.. :,_,:·::-· .... ·.: .. ' -,: -'\ .:<Y" --'-·:-/ _., 
.· ,, .... - .. - -

· 1.2.) Cc;qnpliall® Mo~~g Paynreitfs. Io,~ ~f,;.uttt satisfaction ofaUof 
VCK' s collective ~rued i.md fu.ture. att9merys'· ~s.1egal and ~hnical 
consultants' f~. staff-fees and costsi'e~ fees, expense$, an,rl costs, and ~Y 
other CCJSUs·:and ~~e_s incuqtchby VCK'. Ill connection wim,lw.plemeutingits 
ot,lj~tio~ uw:1~~$:~~~ment.~~ audthe Con~m.Dooree (when 
~x.ccuted). ~ludiJJ~., ~qut lin,iratio~~ V(;;K's;~c~on and cooper,ation 
under l>atagrapb?;it's ~ylewAf}d coilment on tµe Anuual Report and.~y 9tl1ef 
data,~xts~stµ,Jies, iufo~~. orooeuments prepared and provtdf!d tp VCK · 
andlorlflllp~tto iAA'.~P~ '7 ~10; its·cha~ge.to any Rate ~aj~c£iop 
tJ.¢yt. P~llh(j;;its ~~QJJ;m:®y .mf~.dispuw resolution·prooess 
W1<1exf~$;:~QJ!JiW:~~at;ion,jp anyfotmal ~utetesolunpn 
~ .. µµde,r~tigmpn:9:lll;to addre.~s an·Eventof lmp~entati.Q,QCon~~ · 
·or.Oisagreetnetlf,.tne:Cityshwlpay VCKatQtal,~ot$1~~~;m~ix·~uat 
t11m!$1.P~efi!s,of$2Q.OOO e.:iin. wi~oor~t or~c~_~of~y 
·~~r~ ~t~ual paymeutsfuut.beqµei;{rC>ip t.ae::City to VCl{;,kUl'thedate 
that ittlmty {'3f,,}) ~Y~ after tbe~~ve pateit;fth,~-C~ent :Qeet:ee {tegardle$ 
of the ~ffepti~e.Date of the FmalSettl~nt Agte¢im$t), ~otlt~r 
mv~,or notfue,be~~µinr«t~ tcK. Ttw.i;~fiv.eannual 
payntfa.,~·~li:\,e,~~fiJVCg;·~Q ~~ate ~tis~ laterQl!Ja) .tllirty (30). 
4ay~;,~rtl1~Cit}';f¢¢~~avmttea fu,·oiceftom YCKreq~gp.aymentof 
·.tue.aJ,ltltml ~OJ)@() ~~t, QJ;(b) the date th~t~~~dle~t secon(l,. 
thfui,~J;Uld!ifth~earannivtrsaries (~pectivc\yJQftnb,f~t-~ 

'~: 

35 



48

0123456789

Qmij~tialFederal Ru-otEViden~ ~· Cortnnuni~tkm.· 

Memo.ntndum of Agr~ltfieJ~gSetU~ent.l'~ 

paymijnt. ~ payments shall bemadepayableto "Ventura ~per," 
~edt<> mo~ person.s. aqd at th.£; address specit'ied for wttoes py VCK,.m 
th~~entIDecroo, and shall:m~availahlefor VCK to coll~t wli~ ~ at 
the Ciif' Cl~fk'·s·offi~. ~ f®tTu pwvi~ Pf (ht Ciiy to VCKJ1~ this 
P~~ph 12 ~olilybet}sedb,f Vqtt, on ~bwmbehalf a¢ o;nbebalf of 
HTJil,fol'pUfPOSe$Ofin,lp\eo:}ffl~its dblJ:~QUS UP,~, andmpnit,oring l® 
,~mtus and.,progress Qi'~ City~s oemplianoo. with $.e ~tilemoot Agreement and 
the CQnsent .Deetlle{when executed):'and under no cir~t:ances shall the 
nmds ~ used u:, ,~te any Clau:n a~t. thecCit;y_,,ex,eepta Claifil for 
enfbrce)nent ciftttt:fSettleroent Agre¢ment: ~· pennitt,ed by, an.d,,,put$1.4ifilt'to, 
Pm:agrapb.t; 8. 9. U.a., U.b.L an,'c!t:liJ,b.ii. Vct'sbalU<~W aa~~gofall 
~nditures charged agaipst tb.i$ $.l 20,000 monitoring:fund, VCKshall 
pmviq~?;. copy o,f 1lrls awquntin.g t9 f!W. City 9n ~~ eru;ljer date of'(~) e$apstipn 
e{tb1ei$l40J)OO'.fund.Qt (b) tem;J;ination of th~ CqnsentDeci:ee pm:suan.ttQ 
Paragt;~h .16. .. 

13.) · litfB.be@kY expteSSly waiv~ its:~ to; .an4 ~UlQt to{>~t·to·~ver or 
make a .Claim against theCit;y forany accrue(i or future attorneys; fees, legal 
and tech¢caiconsultan1$" fees, •fees.and costs., ¢.Xperts' fees,~s. 
cos~.or any Qti:ierfee&, cQsts.an..d exr?~ ~mrect by HTB or VCK,in 
connection Withimpletn.entmgaTft•s·or VCK'sooJig~underthis 
~ttlement A~~t tWd the.~ Settlement ~m~(wben exeou~). 
mcJ;tldt~ 'Wii:hou.t: lll,llitation, feesi cqsts or ~xperises. associated with, HTB' s 
tipd/or VCK's;p~~ii;!adon ·~· cooperationu~r;Pa1;:agt;~h 7; their nwiew 
8.llti ~ti;)n ~e'AnpualReport.artd.any ~t data.~te~,st:QQi~s. 
ifm)rmatioQ, or~ents prepared and.provided to VCKand/or Hfl3 pursuant 
W ~ Ta.ad 10; their challenge tQ. any Rate Rejection under Paragtapb 6; 
their patti.oipati.on iJ:l. any informal dispute resolution process .under Piltagmph 8; 
aJid/<;>,r ihe.ir patt,icipati<Jnin anyformal dispute te.'l'Olutis:mproeess under 
fafylgi:&pb 9.b. to ~$SM EVent 0,f:(m11lemeot,l!fonCQQ.sttai1'tor 
Dis.a~rnent. 

14.) At~ss'mW·~utungFees. 

i:f S~t~f VCK~fSti\lf,A~and:{Jonsul--' F~ 
ln~ t)lro~'.~$IecUveDate-~fthefJ~~t~e~~ Infuµ 
andfmal se~Mtof~y:anda.fl:QfVCK.?;3 ~~~,_,attorneys'. 
qonsultams~.~.~j,(~~·.3¥.~~t$·.~VC:Kmay be 
en~~ootQ.daimwco~t fngppp~on WittJ.thej~ern;A~t. 
Oi>~~~·MY'~~~ d~nmi~e#andreleased .under 
P~~sll.cJt~ud t l.dv., th~CityshaRpayVCI(the,5~~fFifty 
Ji{n,¢~0\.\Jand dQn~ ($59,000)within thirty (SQ) days a1'ter tne 
Effeciive D~te of ~Co~t ~· .All pay~~~ sll@.µ1:: madi' 
payablem ~'VenturaCoastkeep«t ~e.d to#lose~·~ 

if: 

36 



49

0123456789

fQt~ti~lzy VCK il:Hhe~t~~JShall,waf.kavrut~for 
~· tct~Uect:wht,~ due a.tst~e,,eity ~~s Qffi~; Vpo~_paytpent of 
§tjcli-suin. vc~ sliallbe~tq_bavQ.~any ~r'Cl~for 

lif,,......_..,s' ul ts' and ' ; li ' ', and . a • .,.;:,_. ..... .,. "C()llS tan. !~.. y.~ ~-~~: . OQSI.S·~ 
iniC?~troiit.wiih.truHiaimsctmmissed~d~ease<t.~·:e~hs· 
ll.c.ii audll.c;\v. · 

~ =:~~i:;r.:it=::== 
l;).~eby e~ly wai~:itfµ~ ·~~.·ffl¥f·~ngtte see&;:; demandt 

37:S:~~~'.· 
~-and.:@Y ~ &11 ®imn~.di.$1:i~alldreleased undm' 

. Baragra_p:is. U,c;iand 11,q;;iji, 

·~ ~~ta1:i~~~~r~ 
aaj~~~iµfe wr·~ ofits·Qwn,fumre~tfilf,drpey~' 
cons~·, staff'; andsc.iei:ttffic; ~i or other~$~-'and 
~JJ:ayts'~~J4nd~tl~;i;n90~tion'Witbany 
ClaiRt:of:w~ver Icm.d aod.natute .·~to-~Patty1, -_~ce 
uri: ·';· ·'.·:· .·r ' :' tio' 'of ori:i;e ,.{-i:'w·: ; ~-~:. '; ·'.or· p ~~'I»,.~~ tl ' Ual_l)' ~ .,,ffl' ~. un,d« - J.n 

E~~~~~=r:. 
awar(!.ef:staft.,c._l:lttQl'.Oe.YJ' ,:~ns.ul~ts\ ancflor e~fees.~XJ?OO~. 
and.costs pursuauttQtbefollowing,e~: · ·· · 

. \., a,s;(l~-~t!Qrth'~~Q.?,a.,withrespec,tto 
co~Qll of a.Scien~~iiewP'alleli prhvided.. 
bowe:vet, that in,tt,ie.et~~:~·aQY'.~ refers;~is~ to th(' 

It =~=:=::~~~~~lianee 
fit,· as~seset~inl?amgraph;,15·1--~penaltiesthe. 

·25 .,~-.. .. -.: 

37 



50

0123456789

.• 

'iv. ~e~v'aiJ;wgotsubsJ .. ,nttaIJy P.f~v,~i,Itngpat:fy in an.y·furn:uil 
d•te:~4tti;rin. Pt'Q~dmgbrought pq~1,tant::PatEtgraphs 9,,b, 
madttb.ii~r a,greaeh9f~:J¢t~e:~tA.,greemeijt s1ia.µ:~Qff~
its ~Q,n~~ c;o~ aw!;~Ili~ts.~itm~~d in~corcl{!1t4 ttti' 
stijndard es~u~:tty )§ ;so~ ~·~-Ciea:Q, W'~i,\o.t, 33 ,fl::S;G, 
§ 136.S: SlW'hJae.siaait,~ paitrto;the prevailmg or substantially . 
p,~~mngp~·ih 'dl.$'.'·fenn~ ~sju~NJsolnW>~1l;ro¢editlg under 
Pa,:9aph. 9~~ for a ~~h o·trne SettletnentAgre.ement~ ptoiiaed,. 
b,Qwev~; that: 

• n Part that.the .. e~ to ~(Ina t ate a Cl ·· fo , Q. ... y. ~ .. p ,~·~~~ . "'~ . Q fi{ "" . . .• ~ +' 
any fee1, CQ~· Qr ~DSeSincttl~ej.~ pu(lt);Wg infQ{(Va{ 
!ii~~:·~lutQn;yQd.crP~~~h. 8, whwhJs.~~ty a:~
a_pre~~te ;tQ ;~vo)A~g formal ~~pute ~lutio,n u~det 
~&*9;b,( ... 

• no Pa~ shall ~~ttt~. rp:d~~f>.i;:mai.:a Claim for 
a~'f,®l'. .coS1$~ or e~sesi~eif..i~,p.ut.~g fori1,1al 
~ute re&olutton. {o~a,n,EY.ent p.f1Jmpleineµtaµ.oq 
COQ~qtot,~~s,a,~~-:',\~iW·Par!J~::9,b,~-

• no ~:r@il:~"·anf dtgmnd for •~t:s:' :~~ during. 
~J,t)lin~~~-dr~p,~ t$01Wion.pIOCJe.fl~~v~~r 
P.a~~$;bid 

• no Padr)',slµtll, i•m1i,to coitdi,t,b~n •. Qt don~tf~~&J\Y 
· mfor.mil di$plite. re.JQmtion1~~~i!lg M®t Patagr,pb,!, 

.ftt~:5&:: 
,~µ~~· 
• '... 1 

.f\~M{)i~~:~•~lf ~~-b.t®ft,~pb.-14,e~,uo · 
f:arty ii,:~ ml,lke any ~(,{or C1•:f~r~y,s\ cons.n:ltants\&taff~ 
agd SO(et1~. tecb.niea\,Qr o~er etp¢tts~ -~ Q911$uitan~' t~i s.~i · 

£EST7:Z5:~ 

·• 

38 



51

0123456789

C~d~l~·~ef.:Evf-~i-~~ 

.:l\fbmorandum·~~~~f~ 

l5.) -~ '?~-·~~City. ()~a.ll exten.llofanappliea6ledue 
~for~~ :W'.li<?h~iil>nsbaltmtfie ~ Wilhhelilby 
Vt?M;. if:~~ty~:~:~~tifu #q¥~¢ff1?V~at~e time du~ ~lder 
~!0.i:J,,~n "Gl:~:pro~ ~~~ to#ie·C.iy o!~c.hfaibm;\ ::::~=z==;~ik~~~;==~;:e~da,~·· 
a:t'teI' receipt ~y~tsw.a~~lp pmvidethe Ann~ :t·~~t() v~ then. 
thtrCity mia:Il_p~y,-:~pa.)'me11ts a.cc.ruing £r-0m1he ~ ealendar·day . 
~=~11~VC!l,(:~·~tlfll #1¢(.d~~ tfia.ttlie.'Cii.Y previ@s tbe Ann.um Repon 

16.) ··ii~,,. 

~QiQd?l)~--s.· 

~1~ 

Dmll~(iO 

Da,ys~© 

. ,i20°: pet' day 

fS()Qpetday 

=~~==t1~==:n~n::3::y 
·~ 

39 



52

0123456789

. . 

17.) 

·1'6~-.......... - -"A · · · u...;.~huo c, .. ~ •r 
:.1,-1'£1;,D .... "'•~~.,."'Jt · ~CJ)lellt·.q.~~~~eqnt ..,enns 

A~rilent shall:~afel!S~;llt1:} and t'be City Qfl'~.idatethatllle 

~J=~~~)S!~ 
•,~(1:) thi 1-·®fe.of tbe~,.tn w.bMl toe:City,ba$oommencedo~ 

. of;·~~ ~;Ptw·~~ ()~ aw proje<tr&forfiv&(5) 
years; Qr (2,ithe1Mt:<1~ot·~ ~in wtuch. ttie city has.~°">ed · 
·~tiQn6f~.Piv~lhf.rwl-.-.i~~ amt.e~te4ithopro~for 
three(3) ~ ina;manner that~aduevedzet'Q ~J)j$Clt~(~rthan 
$;ty~t·Di'sc~e..$ ~d'tt$tc Bl'eakdo\im 8itaati~p~.or Majn~ce • 
I{e~l.th~ W~ Siiuati.®s). . . . . . . . 

General Pr&YISio · ·· .. .. ,.'···· .. ,·.~ 

.a~ ~·and~. The-provh;iq~ of t11i$·Set®mmt Ag,;e~\lWllt 
~pfY,·tfJa@,(li~ eacti.of "y.'(S; Ff,I'ij'. and ~.€l~, l!}~U~~~h 
fartf~. dir~ors,-emp{9y~ o~rs. mettlll~ .ag~t.&, ~pres.e•res-, 
s.h~bt~;.servail1$:1 ~~ae~ .. (X)bsultail$-~•:SU~£$r ~ssigrJ:S, and 
Ieg~#&lfates. $~~ge· i11,~ture, .9Wtw$bip,,c,i;potat•~ ()f. other 
lestj..~~ ofantPartY, n.or. any~swn:lf tn~ ~sd qt liaBil~ies of 
UJ'· P~; · :t~~ iti~nf;WJY.~(~ tb.t,~Q~ib~i&.s·of. suehfarty,~n.~ 
.th~. Sttjem~Agfl:}elllt#t.~~lil,cijngJts, <nrec~~s, employees,. o~,. 
mei;iibe11s.~ge$, l;~ti$ijv~. ·s~lder~1:~e,van~,:eon~ 
co~~:~Cte$SQ~, ·asstgnllt.iWdlt;,Jal at'ftlta.i.e$.. 

:~ Ali~. Sa~ oft~ Wldersigitaf:re~rit,ttives .Qf ttie Patii~: 
cctrtije$;'tbl\thel:iheiif fully ~,iq.Jegally ~ml,l~;i~d ~Y th.¢- PltfQ tti etttfir 
into. thiS:i$eUl~n.,t:;*8feemeat, ex~ute:it;on ~half'af th.~-indicateci 
-~/@d .·~ :~y·&md tl:re i:epresemedPartr;~,:i;t& t~s. ·,Ip any action 
, f.O ~e tmtSettlem~t 1weement, po P~f:Y;,$hall tai$'&a8 a d~~e 

-=~~~~:: 
w~~~~t~nte.ot. 

~_g{~~°!iS~~ 
);,r.op,:;i$ed. abti,ou.. · · ~. · · · 

~ lz~§t@;3'S~ 
}~ 

40 



53

0123456789

~s, ia.r~ ~~f·ef a~t.o.ptiatc.fm t!i~ ~~t~U.· 
.- l~ ~e~. ~tiQn, Qf e~uft(ln-Qftbi:$ Sl$'le.ll\Wnt 
A~ij\'erit;:f.be C9~1,1t I>ectee~ ~or·tbefi~ ,&,.~~~~4gt~em~mt, 

-- at~;p~y ~~eby, w11ives.~c,~ti~ iµQ}fP~~a:i:t.IUJYha"e- to 
theDistµct:Oourt" $:~•b~ent w r~tentiQn;.QfJ~di;ption, ov~t 00$ 
S~ttle.~nt,~eem• ~tie:~~f~~fttnen;t-~ment1 ortfu? (:on~ent 
I'le¢reerand,ea~ P~ ~• to.~ suclifurtn~ actions. inQ!udiijg 
~g,-aad]iling s~o1t&ttuments with tne. Co~,as may be:lie.cess1zy · 
'Ul:-'le U;tc- CQtttt to ~~blisb! oi ~tain J~<Wtit>:i;,, .f.ott~ ~-~ set 
Jogh in "11,1 Fatagtap~. · · · · · · ··· 

~·~~~4¥~!.M~'e 
~~ 11~)\~CQ.PlelQ.~e~,pdfj-~ fu9slmil 

~~!l~E 
·~ S=SC1:::·~c:::: 

sµpe~ ·~·PtQviB~'.Of~~con~t~~d~ulat¢, 

.---~~::,:~~~~=~=:::. ·-~~~~•aiw:;oo 
.~ =:!5~1iai~ 

. ~~~~~ui~--~~t~i~er~:~~jti.tt~q~.,--.~ 
~-~Wow. Attyc~Jn:Jheffldtv~.€B:~ 

-~P#~:~Y.~-0,~'~Jo~·~~. 

. ' .. 
·', .. 

41 



54

0123456789

=i-~ $~.fraQ.c,i$co,:CA 94121 
T~~~~ (4i,S.f~3r-3,76 
¥'~! (4.1~ 356-.15695 
.~ .. 
csproul'l!'.~viroadvoeates,.CQm 

lf,trt·lle City; 

E::: 
\TjWU[a, C:k 93002 .. 0099 
t~ie,ppone: (60~) 654-774Q 

. ~~.vennuaca,us 

•=~~ lelet,hone: .· (895}6$.Z4503 
·~: . 

~ti;m@Qi,venan.ca;.ns 

lftQ.BT{J: 

Matk:GQld 

Sv~ ..... 
SaotalM.1:1u.wa,. CA. 92401. 
Telepbone:(3lQ) 4§,t;;j~ 
·'Email~.mgold@healffit,,ay:.~. 

Jason W~rStaff Attorney 
WW.~9~µn~·n·s Ventura sn~.-
t~; (*1$ &23:--S:30.l 
Jpnail: 
· j~einer.-ve~tilraCoas~pet@wls~yo, • .org 

Riek t{atvf;\5 . 
n..hnei w~~ ~-- l':lth, ,;::-"'1-t. .. · --~.,· .V~~..,p~~~W·t ~}'" 

Gf,&tul"~v~ ·· 
5(:)'l Poli S-t.Bt)Oro 120 
v~,.CA: .93~~ 
'.f~po~: ($(JSHi524S18 
~ 
;i.1.w.ves@:dhtebh,Uaca.us. 

'.;'. · ···'S'treet S~te26 
Ve~.,CA 930024)99 
.JEJleph.one: (805.)654~81~ 
&natl: 
acalb~@a:.v~,ca.tts 

42 



55

0123456789

'D,;;:.-... ·~,·:( 

-~F~~--,~-c---·~· 
~nt-~ef~t~~~-t~-

Date;,· . ~· ;_, , .. · ;:,~·. 

.Dilte,t ......... -------

·'!'. 

~:._.,,. -------
121 
~ .. '. 

43 



56

0123456789

tonfideniial,E~ R.ul&of~:4QIC6J.llll1Utlkatioo 

M:emor;pi(lttltlofA~Jlegardtog$ettlementTenns 

~00:VB.D,ASTO ~FOR 
CTl'Y QVSANBIJF;N.&~ 

A.PRI\OV.W·AS TO J!Q~F08 
WJSllI'()voFOONIJaTioNr 
·~~:C~ 

44 



57

0123456789

·'·-t 

;::;:::_~,::-,tnwfl*.SddeQlellf:~ 
crn·OJ?·SA·}~~· 

·Y:~ (\J · ,.). ........ · . J .. -,·~ · · tit -Ll*-.:;itis-:-:: 
· .]{ickCqk!,, Cigr·~r 

AWa•as,p~~.~
e.ITY:OF'~llDBN.,~ 

45 



58

0123456789

UE10$$'_oQle,t-w~~ly d~ ~' -~·Ul)ed·.iA~-Se~~t,that are 
de.fined,,inthe0CWAooinre~Qt-~:Pmmulgared un-tlje.,(;W~ have the meaning 
aa§i~tQ the.J;U in those statores, regutatiohsor~, ~ver~l~ be\gw are U$ed.· 
.h\ ~s,8¢ttlement A~enr. the followingdefmiti9Ds~:y~ 

A. '' ACOF' meaus the thuted States Army Corps of Engineers. 

It "AgeAQies with Jurlsai~tion" h;i,e,ans, CDFG; RWQCB;, ACOE, NMFS, 
U$:PWS, ~d Q~et gu\lerni;ne.nta,1 ~genoi:es withJurlidiction to 
enYU'9PJll~.R~Iy i:~:view, c:onwt witJ.rre.spect tQ, c~rlify, *'Pprove~ eondition, 
or otll~se ~nnit.E>i:vetsi.0,1:f filfrmta,~t:ure Pr:ojects, ~on;tpo~nts th.ereofl or 
ovettlie elimination. ofDtri:ctDii;,l$bat~. at,1dtf;lfth~ implemel)taticm qf 
al~tiye discbiix1~s QfJifflluentW new or ~retit fot~ions or tmes. 

~- ''Annual Rate.·Oaf' mea:ns a 3%m~ in aJ1¥,mteyeai',~ the-Time 
Sc~ule. ·· · 

DI "A,,pprqved Efflu.ent Dive.csions'' means tha.t volume or flow of ~fluent 
dt,.v:ersiQ.ri. pemiitt:ed, and approved. for diversion. from Direct Diacliru:;ge·:tQ. the 
~~Y tty the B,e$Q~S A,gel),ci~s punuantto Paragraph S .of ttµs 4\#eeme'tit. . . . . ·. . . . . . 

B., '"Bieats:<lowo Sit11~us·~ Bl~S: ~y ~otai;;j',f:.~¥,t OQ~trmg:~fl:e~ 
c.qn;ttucti(;lU of the Diver,s.tQ~ ;ln{ra,trucfure Project§ amti[n.I?l~n;i:el}~tiop .of 

. EfflttentdivetsiQ.US that i.;<r b~yond the. City' S: reasonab~e contr()l aqdi,that 
preclude~ th.e City from div~og Effluent, or mijterially_rpg~es tlle volume 
or'Sfflu~µtthatmay be,;diverted-fl:omOirect Disc~e. suoJ:i,,;a~: 

i. an Eventof Rm::e:Majeure; 

if ,.t~ e~nt or~ries of,evei;its e,c.'-!e~g theEive-Year:~-Hour 
Slot~ fu'tat or.the Fiv6-Yeat ~™Y Stonn,J3~nt; such tfult qiversl® of 
Efflu~tit lPttie'(;~nstruc~ cyyersibij,,Itllr~c~ Pfoj~ is precludecl 
~dtor~p9tentialf01:.muuclw;on of the :wRFtactli.ties:c~es a.~® 

·iri$k~ta \\V'RF.~~~··~ br:l?~JJ.s~d}and/or 

··:I.; any rn.ecbanical·failµre. ~-f'®Ui~.,eq,TJ.i~9~g~e~, whether 
ope~J~ythe Qty or by, qtncrwater di$ttiPts·or.users to wnom th.eCitj' 
lllay~sfetJ3ftt~t, :~e<i'to;iuw~~t4i-versions: of~U¢nt$rom. 
D~t D~je'JM' to.til.eWater Redatrtation Uses,and/oc'f'1~t 
-~~· ' 

. ~ . . 

F. "C:Ol;<<J~'..·1Jiean$'~:-Calif ornia l)eP,at$enf Qf .Piatt mi;tl O'am.e. 

Q, "Cio/' ~us the qty of$~~ .t},11e11~v~ttu~ ~,CAllfprnia:~ City, 
:.,.~ 

46 



59

0123456789

.. p,;.· 
··~ 

··'~. 

~~n~•:Pecre~» ~-aprqw>sed,~t,f.t~r~.~. ~llitb, sb.~ll be.eoosis~ 
Wif.h. lUldilnplemetfi;*ltte~ aud C~; .of·tbi$ Settl~nt:cAgteeim,nt. 
and~ ~~~,exi~uaxf~a.t.l s~edi;;··i~rs~iut~ent.~iu~t.·wgeth~twitJl 
· an.y ~_J?.µf~cl di~rn1~sat w~ pr~jlldi~I and.~y·Q~ required_ doc~. 
· Whi~()hallbe e.ntered.i11f9, e.(~~aad:ftled.j9ijtiy by VCK an¢·~ Cit7 
'Witb;-'DisQ:ict'.fCpu11fo~:t.b¢:~lff>i~etQfQflifQ~ in Q~e, No·. CV 
l:Q:-~2.(jHK CPTW:tJ.1cij~ i,i~~-, to ~§~~·iijl'hprqjudi're all ~mainin.g 
YCI{~lmms~~t·~ •• ~y;,~·tQ ~v~~ll'~=41ld'liwitaU.future 
~ha:fl~ntes.~~ · ~.Oi:tY a~ ... CK as.~,.~ .. · . 

· "Constmcl;itm Iropl~titti,Qn Co~nl~*:®alls, alilPJl~~abl~, -~ . 
~rreµc~(s).Qf- 9;ftll~foU9wl~ m a m•ntr ~Pff=qlq~s;.-x~ts Qf 

·~~~c&t=1=:-f=r· 
lnfea&tlMJit)t~'.2);_~eiatlf~ty. andlot .,).Rtgulat•~ ,Iffl'wibiiicy . 

. ~Q.W~11' m~~ fl. \V'.aterPoil'tt~u;ff.U~to~~~·:gs.tr..St.:~· ;~i et. ,,~ 

~. er~m;m,::: 
47 



60

0123456789

A~~'~tt\{"lt• 
Memo1;andum.m'A~nt ~·~tt;lement Tenns 

T~mta~ Ddmi~ 

''l)e~jgo Coasidelia!;ions·" ~S that the capacity for ·t~lamatiGD and 
diyeJJ$iqn iajr~:ttµc~e prQj¢c(S" .ts ,~snedt~ a¢®}?f,fhe. tot1ll combined f]Qw 
or v.oluwe of Bffluent and nti:t¢;U du,;mi a Fiv¢¥ear 24,-~our Storm Event, 
;®P' a Five-Ye~ $0-D.ay $h'.!rrn E:¥en(,' ~:x:~ep.t during M'$ntenance. ~Ith and 
SafeeySim.ati<i>,p;~ Qr Brea~~Stiuat.tllus:· 

''Dh:eotD~~: means any <li$cbatge of EfllAent:;to me &tua,ry ftom th~ WRF 
or the:WfiF s e:,cigting wil:cllift: tr~tmen¢po11ds·, exehidin,g tkoi¢.discharges. of 
Effluenuo the Esnmry from Treatm¢.o.t Wetfanclsthat are· approved PY the 
Reoources A~lilcies, and ttiatar~ otherwi~ colld.ilc.tedpur~uantto the. ,~ls· 
of tqis Settlement /\greement, whi<:h dis~~m:g~s of Effluenf 1:0 the Estuary 
tnAY be permitted>as seytottb b.ei:ein,. 

"Pi~iQ.n Iofrastmctute ~jece~ or «Divrion fnft~truciure-.1Pt:oja..>ts!' mei.w,s 
tl;tostrtec!arnation and cfi.v~rsioni'ttfr(;lstn!,Ctore.proj~. fiwl~ding theTreatm~nt 

· Wetlands that CLUn.ulatly~* ~~ve_tp.e pap~y, taking into accot1ntand 
-auojeot to the D<m.gn CQnsidet'a~lis, ~on lmple~tationCo~tr:amts·, 
®d Operational~JemetUilti~mC6nstramt$, to divertto·WatefReclamatiQn 
lt~l:\tld/otT:tea~t~ancwtl;l~~'.f~le:Dt~sion Vo~~: 

ftEff~tive Date" m~aus the date tbata<i<litional; m~ ~edt,gaUy biilding 
docume~. O{jilsisteJ;\t w.ul:i a.nti ~ple@entin,g tbi.§ .Settlemeut-~gretroe~ 
t;a.ke ~ffec~ i.ma $'e 6inding upon the Par~; Witl:1 t:.~peet lQ,:tJ.ie doctn:neQ,t, 
~~~ti by fl:rB 1:1ri:d,fb~ C!ityi such date shajl be ~ date 1lb~ d.~ly .~uthorµ~p, 
~~$'eutathr~ o{ ·oot:h. .~Ta· ltt;ttlthe City {'t;tUy ~~u:te *e,Ffual· 8ettl'cmern: 
agreement, With. respect to VEK and the Ctt.y. sucb: date_ iba)J he tbe last- date 
tbt·th~ Unitaf States Departll)entofJus.ti®tdc9mnteµtPntbe Cons~nt 
Decree, i.e., t~ 4sh day followiia$ the l.foited Statesl)qp-artru.ent of Justices' 
receipt of -the Cons~t Decree. · 

"r;:{Uuent" means cumn.t and. futqre atJ.tit#p#Jed Wt:W·terti,ary treated sew;age 
efflu~t, · wmdi alao ~onstitti.tel'; re:qycled w~{; 

"Estuacy·'~ · m~a.ns .ttre ~µtit ~lara~iv~r:Ji!&~. 
, . . ·,, .··· .. ,·. ,, '. 

''f;ve~t.qJ ,f9(eeN,la~,e"is: a1,l~,et~.t';~bt,q.ltr~n~ -the City'\). C\llW1fance 
witll tht,~•eilt A~t~~f!~ibJ.~. cl~spjjefueJimeiy m,1d E~i\$.Qnab!e, 
e{t;Ot;tSQftj,le Cj;~~-~~-fRe)toij~tan¢-is-beywd lire',COntrol <1f th&'City orJ.ts . 
~lits~ awtwij~oou)4noqij_V.ic, b~en teaspnably f.9reseet1;~~d prev1atd~ ~y tl~e 
e~®of du~ dit~~e by ihe Oity. Any: tWlay~ or faijuretol'roperly perform 
a.~:~it~a: by tWi.Settlement.Agi;~weni:du~'~'tb~ C!rif s-faiµ~to ~timely 
oo.tfO()na fide aPllli.datio~ ·and' to. ex~i$_~·w~~t,~~-f14icfiligeuteffo~t9 '•. . 
comptywitli tb,e t~ in this S<;~~~t~~~~.: or due to no,t~a{ ii,i,qleroe,llt 
w~•r .events t~:tnto aeQoUttt b~,tl\~\l)~~~,Go.l;l.Sidtll'~ti.01J.s. 11tu.U nPt.itHW.Y 
ev.~nt;be:consiq~~ct-0'6e an f!v-cnt9f FOJJCe Majeur~, 

~-

48 



61

0123456789

c nfidentialj;,,~, n-1-,-·~- ;8\0 'Ft· ___ , ...... ~:..-. o ... ~:~-~~~~·r~"""""Q"~4·~ 

49 



62

0123456789

. ,.~tt .. l;f~-~·f-~4D81~-
Altauhinent '~'"Te . ......... ot~=-.: ,,:;, : ' .. · ($dement'lmms 

1'1· '~S~tmtA~ttt"1J.:n~.afinai0•~a~nt. wbwlt:$ball. 
•be:. ce~~~UJ wi\ihi'alld, ~ t~ i~plettWf).t all ~.itd~nditi~ of, ttwt· 
~~t·~gr~~·:aq(l~,vhen ij;,i;ecuted,.,~u ~µ,persec(e ·~· ~~IlleQ.t· 
~tJJ~tQg,th~ wi_b, ~~ ~tipp~:.cfi,q~iµ wltq p-J~¢f>,·a~ any 
other ~uired documc~. a1l Qf w.bwfl.sh~ be:th~.~tw:edtti.te, eJreeutlKI 
an.g-<filtd jqjnrlyhy H$ andtp,e Citr~~ the.·~~ ·wa~ R,~QlU:Gl~1·Co,ittol 
J'o~;an.d @Y <>th.~t,llll ~plicaJ:;IJt&-9'.~n.W. ~g_encw, w.i$J~lo11, as 
;~~·tp di~~th.p1ej~ alt.~JUling·:ar~. adn:wiutr.ativ•:a~or 
le.t{~,.t~~qes ag~me City re.g~g ~~t~ of Hfflu~ntan@'~ th~· 
'Wl{~7?Nr~.SS fenajt~ indlucll1;1g Stru:e W(tet:-Re:liP~S G4?{ltj:9. !}~cf 
Ptt:tlij~µ i\.~i-9®{~). ,:od toJ:P,fCtVh.Je ~1:flTa t,el,@~~·~Q 'Jimi~.a}J future 
ch~l'ftmf~·by·or·~~ru;~t:be'City • Qt ::ffrB:, :~dltjftheir Qpet'.~tiou.s. aJ,iret forth. 
h. ·.· .·" . . . .•. . 
et~ 

-Y. ''Five,-:Y:~·~o:urStr>gn Bveut· Uleatl(itflAAarnount.:of tot4~aII~eu~a 

:::~=.::e::~~-=~";~~~==:;~Y=· 
~very fivey~. · · 

:..,,, u-c: •·'!tr.·· .1.:10 .n.. <:!-.- 1!!%.;..__t'i . ..i. t . "'"."J: ........ t ·· ·.:..a;,.n. ..-....,:1 ""' ,;-.ye;.~ .. :;..v-_vqt: ~.u;1.t.:AY11a.t ~ wa · a,meup. .. v.t?w~ lllh:.u,ew, g.,.,,p,~ 

=:e~r;:~(1=2;=:1:r;=~~=~-
., 

. AA. ''l;l'UJ'':~:~:~~fW:,a 501{~{3).~fit.Ql'-&lU1i~tipti 
. . ' :, . ,;1.: . ·., ... :. : : .· .· . -.. -·~:;- . .I ; . .-

cc. 

50 



63

0123456789

~'.f~J;~ .. ()f·~.4ft8·~~t1Qn 

. 4ua~t''A~To:, ;Mmior.«J-.af;==::==Sed:mment1"--

·'¥~~OaP,t~lJ%·:9f~,ffi~~.aw:iµal.~n~& . 
~e lllfflS~3t.~Y. ffl.n~4ttrin.J~~~eSeh~. · 

-~~*~~ ~ . . ,,.~a~ffl«<tr.r~.· , . . an · · e . . 0t.~aupn. 

mt, .·.·~,.~awuh~~~~~,,:~::~~ld~wil~'tbe:. 
11,.'i, 1e, ..... ~1 ~.,_,;,;,. ~;,,..A A,h'HA~rih·::,~,:~..,;,.,..,.,;.,.,:n.;';]~~"'"'·of~.....:.,..,), 
;;:,;l)ct01t.u ~,;,·<U;"M ~ ... .......,.,~-j~uq~9'.'q•~,,;.p~ · .,~·i~~,J•, 

···R, ~~ ~:~ffJll~ooQtsq~¢~atiql1,~~ 

51 



64

0123456789

~·~.~~-·~lllllllb--
~enf'a""·~· ~,·jc. c,:.~.>~en-.T~ 

•s;t~~~~ 
'.RR;, )#~~~,~~~~~~~-Qqaljty~ta~ 

52 



65

0123456789

VV' 
AA.• 

Confftfe~ F~al~,ofE~498~watil)tl 

A1fu~t;t!~'"'.J;.'9 
··M~amlQl,(d·~.~SettlffllentTeI'JllB 

Tel',mSand·. Dd'inlftons 

,:'Schctfulliii'M~~~tb,tllldS~«, Si~Qs'' ~ any M~ce. 
H~~dS~ty.SituatiellS thatare.~~~~ .. ~.witllin,.~.~.Qf~Cey~ 

d. ;· )Qe,~lQ .· · . ..tl'M:'<nnca,~tii't)e""""riM 1-n,tfti.Citv . ap cm: . . .. . . . .•. occw.; ,-s-~ . .. • •••.. ~ "IT v. 

''Te¢bi;uct.tJ ~ilhf' or•1!6c~~Uyfnf~ible'' means that; constru(;;tion of 
thtflliv~iQn,µmas~ProJ@.~·by the 'fime·Sehedulespeeifted by this 
~$menrA~ti.s not~s$~l~ d~itf:tlie.C.tty's.rea.1on~Ie,eif6ttsduet0 
e~ting, Phy~I. en:viminnentm~\or other tegfulfua(pmhlems ~yon.d the . 
C!fty' s i::e.~n;,lble ~trol, 

~el ~ure,.~ ~s onerbef<qt:e-imzy 1, :2~, .or by such Ia,~r date 
estaJ,li~,~Setfodhin.~.8and 9: . 

., 

' 'Tou;l~et~Y~nti, m~ns the,to~·~~.myejtr®nt{i,e., the bCJnd prin,pip!e 
amotlllt) tba;tJsneededforpfiuming'; ~i~in,eerlng, environmental review' 
~~~~ort.amiiJ.nplemen~t>f tlre~litabJe ~vi~ or 
~ •. ~ ~g.qr orediti;J:lg~ totaf·CQ;pital inv~s~ntor,oo.nd 
princii,le·~by: ~i~venue$; genem~fl:om~tsor·s~,;~vol'1iagiund 
I~i.PnlC~fromthtl.sales9f.Efflt:tentdiv~orth~1.1g,l1tS.terec1atme<l 
Efflu~nt;and/Qr o$er l'l;!Venu~ i\Va.il,ijolef~sew~g;~·~t~atnati.Qn syst.t#n 
e$.pet®S,pr~{tal in:v;~ts ~~from Q~;noo ... t~tepaye,:$0~ of 
funding .rea.lizedby the City, · 

"'T@ttrtent \Vetlan~·· means 11~r~;.~~t sy.stel.llSq'.tbet~ thJf~ti.tlg. 
wildlife tre~t~,;:on~etetf cinl1phulds and/or asa,tet,n;>frtqftbe wfl~e 
·tteatme»tponds;. wijicl) shall oo des~.eoginee~, andco1JSttu41:ed&nch that 
in~i11atiq0;w.\th.~ ~~toi,lmWtte~i;illt.qnitprooesses,.Eft.luent 
disobatgedu;qrii th~ n~ :~tment~l(St¢~ s~lf not;.~· IIllltually determ.i,ued 
by tneP~.es,and ~~Jw the aW.QCJl.Jl~the W,DEs permitting 
~S$, OOltSe',Of~{lltjbU~~ a.viqlati~ Qf'~,appJi~bJe receivillgwaterbody 
water qua}Jw obj~\ve&~ ~ anyr¢eei,.f~·w~ beneficial us~. or 
centainniltite in coooe~ns ~fer thffl} 4.,,l>~&a a;J;rl0,l'lth}yav~~~ 

''U$¥Ws·~ means tlw UtµtedS~~;s;~ andWil(llife:&mce. 

Y'(.. ''VC.K?' m«ms Wis'b:toyq FoundatiQl;l,'~Ji'entura Coastl<.reper~gl,lU14 Wi81ltQyo 
~utl.dati~n being a501(c.J(3}~oigaclzatiou, · · · 

Zl. ''Ventur~'~·· the Cig. 

MA. ·~w~tet.~~l~~o.n u~~· ~.diveE$iQtl Q~ ~liv~·oc·limuent to uses to 
. . Jltlprove·t>.i;:e~ b~~~ u~es(~d~~under-P~rColdgneand 

~~itlf#t,RW®~'s ~~t;.Qualtty C~~lPlan,~Min l?IM}}qr 
,"{)~·.for~u~ qf:illlproving conserwrti~ ofrPtQV!4hlg;~.uppiy in lieu of; 
Qr <l'ffsef.ting u~ Qf: other;des~nat¢<1 soigc:es of state,, r~$!9nal~ i;lrJoea\ water · 

It 

53 



66

0123456789

CQnf'idffldal Feder~.uium~J,il~ce ··~tion 

·~~~-
suppty,·h\clttd~.\·w~~i:t~~ lff~lands~,ill'iptl®. '@:gricwiumf 
·in:i~· groun~atet~:~t:peroQw.ion.cn:,~· 

i"r&iliA·~~i~ 
':a~it '1'\VRF1 mea:ll& tlftfVenturaWateJ; Redamation. Factlity., .. . •·· .. · -~. 

CCG .. ·~WflPNPDJ!$.Pemilt' ·~eans ltWQCB-~t Nbi R+20QS~ooo1· mtd~ 
~o. C-A000$365:l, together, wffl,:11ge)''titne$¢he(1Q:lo,.·~ that may·pe i$1ed by 
ttie-RWQBBJn coqjunctiou ~n,witp. ~'.~t~ai, rev,si~ 9i: 
replaeem~((her:eof. Qt'any:~~g Qr~,,NIIDES pe•t. or 1'8Soci~9, 
::tiln<{se,hed~ofders. · · · · 

.~-· 

54 



67

0123456789

Date 

1/17 

12/7 

12/2 
11/22 

11/20 

11/14 

11/11 

11/11 

11/10 
11/9 

11/9 

11/8 

11/8 

11/6 

11/3 

11/3 

11/2 

11/2 

SANTA CLARA RIVER ESTUARY SETTLEMENT 

CIVIC ENGAGEMENT 

Avenue 

Pierpont Community Shana Epstein, General Manager 
Council Presentation 
Downtown Ventura Shana Epstein, General Manager 
Organization and Westside 
Community Council 
Presentations 
"Ventura Water" Article Ventura Breeze 
"Community Turns Out to Ventura Water's E-Newsletter, 
Learn, Discuss Future of Pipeline (Vol. 1, Issue 3), Ventura 
Ventura Water'' Article Water Facebook, Twitter 
"Ventura Water's Future" CAPS-TV, Channel 15 (airing 14x 
Video weekly) 
"Santa Clara River Estuary Ventura County Star web article 
plan laid outn Article 'Water reuse drives debate", link 

~-
posted on Ventura Water 
Facebook, Twitter 

Town Hall Meeting Pictures Posted on Ventura Water 
Facebook, Twitter 

"Water reuse drives debate" Ventura County Star 
Article 
Estuary Town Hall' Meeting City Hall 
"Town Hall Meeting Nov.10 Whisenhunt Communications E-
Addresses Water Future" Newsletter, News Flash 
Article 
Town Hall Meeting Event Facebook, Twitter via City website 
Repost; Community 
Meeting 
GM Invitation to Attend Ventura Water's E-Blast, Ventura 
Town Hall Water Facebook, Twitter 
"Ventura Water's Future" Posted on City website 
Video 
"At what price do we protect Ventura County Star 
water" Guest Editorial Rick 
Cole 
GM Invitation to Attend Ventura Water's E-Blast, Ventura 
Town Hall Meeting Water Facebook, Twitter 
"Ventura Water's Future" First Posted on Ventura Water 
Video Presentation Facebook, Twitter, Ventura Water 

YouTube Channel 
Town Hall Invitation Letters Personal Letters 
From GM 
Attend Town Hall Meeting City website 
Press Release 

ATTACHMENT B 

Reach 

11,000 
2,450 

22,000 (ongoing) 

FB 183 

FB205 

20,369 

50 attendance 
400 

FB: 251 

2,450 customers; 
FB 211 
YTD 250+ views 

20,369 

2,450 customers; 
FB 124 

85 key 
stakeholders 
600 

55 



68

0123456789

ATTACHMENT B 

11/2 Attend Town Hall Meeting Ventura Breeze 11,000 
Advertisement 

11/2 "Town Hall Meeting" Article Ventura Breeze 11,000 
11/2, 4, Attend Town Hall Meeting Ventura County Star 20,369 each date 
5,9 Advertisement 
10/31 "At What Price Do We CM Blog 650 

Protect Our Water'' City 
Manager Rick Cole's Blog 

10/30- Ventura Water Town Hall Facebook Ad 27,430 
11/10 Meeting Advertisement 
10/28 "Community Invited to City of Ventura's E-Newsletter, 4,982 

Attend Santa Clara River Achieving the Vision 
Estuary Settlement Town 
Hall Meeting, November 
10" Article 

10/19 "Protecting Ventura's Water Ventura Water's E-Newsletter, 2,000 customers 
Future" Article Pipeline (Vol. 1, Issue 2) 

1·0/15 Town Hall Meeting City website, Ventura Water Web 600; FB 251 
Calendar Event Posted Facebook, Twitter 

9/30 "Santa Clara River Estuary Ventura Water's E-Newsletter, 2,000 customers 
Settlement" Article Pipeline (Vol. 1, Issue 1) 

9/13- Attend Town Hall Meeting Ventura Chamber of Commerce 2,000 
11/15 Advertisement HomepaQe Web Banner 
9/8 Midtown Ventura Shana Epstein, General Manager 20 attendance 

Community Council 
Presentation 

917 "Ventura water and public Ventura Breeze, link posted on Breeze 11,000; 
interest groups protect Ventura Water Facebook, Twitter FB370 
estuary with settlement'' 
Article 

8/29 "Ventura accord will Ventura County Star, link posted Star 20,369; FB 
conserve a precious on Ventura Water Facebook, 256 
resource" Editorial Twitter 

8/19 "Collaboration to Protect City of Ventura's E-Newsletter, 4,982 
Santa Clara River Estuary'' Achieving the Vision 
Article 

8/18 Radio Coverage of KVTA Radio 4,000 
Announcement 

8/18 "Ventura reaches discharge Ventura County Star, link posted Star 20,369; FB 
water deal" Article on Ventura Water Facebook, 182 
. Twitter 

8/18 "Fresh Start in Ventura" Web, link posted on Ventura FB 158 
Heal the Bay President Water Facebook, Twitter 
Mark Gold's Blog 

8/17 Settlement FAQs, www.cityofventura.net/water/rivers 600+ visits 
Information, Legal (ongoing) 
Summary 

8/17 Settlement Announcement City website, Ventura Water 250; FB 154 
Press Release · Facebook, Twitter 

56 


	2018-10-18 Agenda FINAL
	5 - ED Update
	7a 2018-08-16 MINUTES Mound Basin GSA Board Meeting DRAFT
	7a 2018-08-23 MINUTES MBGSA Special Board Meeting and Public Hearing
	7b Monthly Financial Reports
	7b Attachment A - September 2018 Proft & Loss Statement
	7b Attachment B - September 2018 Balance Sheet
	7b Attachment C - Proft & Loss from Jul 2017 to Sep 2018
	7c Invoices for payment
	7c Attachment A Check Detail Report
	Ck 11251 2018-08-16 MBGSA insureCAL annual premium
	Ck 11252 2018-10-18 MBGSA KDGCRK LLC
	Ck 11253 2018-08-02 Bondy Groundwater $16585.50 Grant app
	Ck 11254 2018-10-18 MBGSA Bondy Groundwater Jul Aug invoices
	Ck 11255 2018-10-18 MBGSA County of Ventura IT Services - August 2018
	Ck 11256 2018-09-12 MBGSA Michael Mobley reimbursement
	Ck 11257 2018-10-18 MBGSA Bondy Groundwater $4903.95
	8a - Stakeholder Engagement Plan
	8a -Attachment A MBGSA Stakeholder Engagement Plan Draft 10-3-18
	8b - Approval of Grant Agreement
	8b Attachment A  4600012692 MBGSA Agreement_Prop1SGWP_20180921
	GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
	(DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES) AND
	Exhibit A
	Work Plan
	Develop a Groundwater Sustainability Plan to include, at a minimum, the sections listed and described below.
	1. Description of the Plan
	Includes a summary of jurisdictional areas and other features, water resources monitoring and management programs as well as a summary of well permitting processes and a map illustrating current well density, land use elements or topical categories of...
	Exhibit B
	Schedule
	Standard Conditions

	8c - Approval of Waiver of Late Fees and Penalties
	8d - FY 2018-19 Budget Amendment
	8d Attachment A Mound Basin GSA Budget 2018-19 Revised 10-15-18
	9a - GSP Development Options
	9b - Ventura WaterPure Project
	9b Attachment A  PotableReuse_VenturaCityCouncil



